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Important Notice

Santander Chile is a Chilean bank and maintains its financial books and records in Chilean pesos. These Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Compendium of Accounting Standards issued by the Superintendency of Banks and Financial Institutions (SBIF). The SBIF
is the banking industry regulator that according to article 15 of the General Banking Law, establishes the accounting principles to be used by the banking
industry. For those principles not covered by the Compendium of Accounting Standards, banks can use generally accepted accounting principles issued by the
Chilean Accountant’s Association AG (as approved by the National Council in its December 21, 2009, session which amended Technical Bulletins No. 79
and No. 80) and which coincides with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Acocounting Standards Board (IASB).
In the event that discrepancies exist between the accounting principles issued by the SBIF (Compendium of Accounting Standards) and IFRS, the
Compendium of Accounting Standards will take precedence. The Notes to the consolidated financial statements contain additional information to that
submitted in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Income, Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. These notes provide a narrative description of such statements in a
clear, reliable and comparable manner.

Differences between IFRS and Chilean Bank GAAP

Chilean Bank GAAP is substantially similar to IFRS but there are some differences. The principal differences that should be considered by an investor are the
following:

Assets received in lieu of payments

The Compendium of Accounting Standards requires that the initial value of assets received in lieu of payment be the value agreed with a debtor as a result of
the loan settlement or the value awarded in an auction, as applicable. These assets are required to be written off one year after their acquisition, if the assets
have not been previously disposed of.

IFRS requires that assets received in lieu of payment be initially accounted for at fair value. Subsequently, asset valuation depends on the classification
provided by the entity for that type of asset. No deadline is established for charging-off an asset. The restatement of gains and losses from repossessed assets
would have an impact on the restatement of financial statements under full IFRS guidelines although we would not expect it to be material.

Loan loss allowances

On December 29, 2009 the SBIF issued Circular No. 3,489 which incorporates changes in several chapters of the SBIF Compendium of Accounting
Standards. Among other changes it states that starting on January 2010, an entity should complement the basis on which insolvency provisions related to
contingent operations are determined, including unrestricted lines of credit, other contingent loans, and other loan commitments provision. In addition, it
should also apply the changes in risk exposure applicable to contingent loans, to be found in Chapter B-3 of the SBIF Compendium of Accounting Standards.
The accumulated effect of this is approximately Ch$63,448 million (Ch$52,662 million net of deferred taxes), which was recorded in equity within the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. According to specific instructions from the SBIF in Letter to Management No. 10 dated December 21, 2010;
the SBIF established that it will not be necessary to calculate retrospectively the adjustment for 2009.

On June 2010, the SBIF issued Circular No. 3,502 which among other things requires that Banks maintain a 0.5% minimum provision for the normal part of
the loan portfolio analyzed on an individual basis. In addition, on December 21, 2009 in the Letter to Management No. 9, the SBIF specified that the
accounting treatment for the effects originating from the application of this minimum provision is to record it in the income for the period. As of December
31, 2010 the adoption of the changes mentioned created a charge to income of Ch$16,845 million (Ch$ 13,767 million net of deferred taxes).




On August 12, 2010 Circular No. 3,503 was issued which included certain modifications of how Bank must classify loan loss allowances included in
Chapters B-1, B-2, B-3 and C1 of the Compendium of Accounting Standards. Such modifications will be enforced from January 1, 2011 except for those
relating to additional provisions included in No. 9 of Chapter B-1 which are enforced since 2010. In addition, and as a supplement to the Circular, Letter to
Management No. 9 was issued on December 21, 2010 which specifies that adjustments as a consequence of the adoption of the modifications starting on
January 1, 2011 could be recorded during the first quarter of 2011; however, there is nothing to prevent entities from anticipating recognition of impact these
adjustments, in total or in parts, as additional provisions, charged to the income of the period. As of December 31, 2010 the Bank has chosen to book the
entire provision adjustments aforementioned, which created a Ch$39,800 million (Ch$32,597 million net of deferred taxes) impact in the Consolidated
Statements of Income, under the other operating expenses line.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Sharcholders of
Banco Santander Chile

We have audited the accompanyving consolidated statements of financial position of Banco Samander Chile and subsidiarics as
of December 31, 2000 and 2009 and the cormesponding consolidated statements of  mcome, comprehensive income, changes in
equity, and cash Mows for the vears ending December 31, 2000 and 2009, The preparations of these financial statcments are the
responsibility of the Management of Banco Santander Clule. Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our andils,

We conducted our audits in accordance with anditing standards generally accepled in Chile, Those standards require that we
plan and perform the awdit 10 obiain reasonable assurmnce about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, An audit includes examiming, on a 1est basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures i the consolidated
fimancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, a8 well as evaluating the overll consolidated lnancial statements presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our apinion, the consolidaled fnancial statements referred 1o above present fairly, inall material respects, the Ninancial
position of Banco Saniander Chile and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the resulis of their operations, ithe
comprehensive income, and the clanges in equity and cash flows for the vears ending December 31, 2000 and 2004, in
accordance with the Compendium of Accounting Standards and instructions issued by the Superintendency of Banks and
Financial Institutions.

As indicated in Note 2 1o the consolidated financial statements, the Bank has chosen to early adopt the dispositions contained in

Chapter B-1 of the Compendium ol Accounting Standards. This carly adoption resulied in a charge 1o net income for the vear
ended December 31, 2000 amounting to MCh$32.397 (net of deferred taxes).

deihL!

January 24, 2001

Ul

Z\.‘Iﬂu'ricio 55 M,
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BAMNCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
For the penods ending as of

December 31,
2010 2009
NOTE MCh$ MCh§
ASSETS
Gash and deposits in banks H 1,762,198 2043458
Un=satfied ransackons 5 374,368 468,134
Trading investments § 379,670 798,539
Investments under resale agreements 7 170,985 14,020
Financial dervative contacks a 1,624,378 1,383878
Inferbank loans, nat 4 69,672 23370
Loans and accounts recetvable from cuslomers, net 10 15215318 13378379
Foraitable for sale investments 12 1473980 1,630,090
Held to maturily invesimenks 12 - -
Investimants in ather companies 13 7215 Ta1T
Intangble assets 14 77.990 17,260
Property, plant and equipment 15 154 085 184 122
Cument taxes 16 12 499 4,541
Dabarred taxes 16 117 964 95,229
Qther assels 17 540,937 452559
TOTAL ASSETS 22,082,219 20,770,996
LIABILITIES
Deposits and ather damand liabilities 18 4,235 434 3533534
Unsatfied ransacions § 300,125 275474
Inwestments under repurchase agreements 7 284725 1114605
Time deposits and othar ime lisbilites 18 7,258 757 7175257
Financial derivatve contracts ] 1643879 1,348,906
Interbsank bomowings 18 1,564,007 2046750
Issued debt instruments 20 4,150,858 2524676
Other financial iabilites 20 166,269 146,811
Current taxes 18 1293 63831
Deterred taxes 18 5441 3380
Provisions 2 275,298 186,121
QOther lahdibes 23 261328 263396
TOTAL LIABILITIES 20,218,612 19,082,681
EQUITY
Attributable to Bank shareholders: 1,631,798 1,658,316
Capital 5 891,303 891,303
Resarves 5 51,530 51538
Valuabon adustments 5 {5.180) (26,804)
Retained sarnings 25 894,136 142,278
Retained eernings of prior years i 560,128 440,401
Incorme fior the period 25 7T 155 431253
Minus: Provision for mandabory dvidends 25 (143,147} (129,376)
Wen centrolling interest 27 3.800 8,79
TOTAL EQUITY 1,863,607 1,688,115
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 22,082,119 20,770,996
4
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the penods ending as of

December 3,
2010 2009
NOTE MChs MCh§
OPERATING INCOME
Interest income 28 1412983 1,207,778
Intarest expense B (473, 264) {351,262)
Net Interest income 930,718 B55,516
Fee and commission ncome 2 338183 35925
Fes and commession expense 29 [74,601) (61,785)
et fee and commission income 263,582 254,130
Net income from financial operations (nel rading income) 30 38755 3887
Foreign exchange profit (loss], net A 51233 163,241
Orther operating incoms 38 83400 33,243
Tofal operating income 1,362,689 131,07
Prenvision for koan losses n (271,663) {333.847)
NET OPERATING PROFIT 1,111,028 877,170
Parsonned salanes and exparses 33 (250, 265) {224 4B4)
Administaive expenses M (147,343) (135,712
Depreciation and amortzation kL (48,403} (46.623)
Impasrmand 36 {4,928) {75
Other operaling expenses % (102, D68) (44 405)
Total operating expenses (554, 0048) (452,299
OPERATING INCOME 557,022 524,8M
Income Fom mvestimants in ofver companies 12 1.1 207
Income before tax 558,183 525,168
Income tax expense 18 [78.858) (88862
CONSOLIDATED INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 479,834 436,306
Atiributable o
Bank sharehaolders (Equity holders of tha Bank) 477,155 431,253
Nen conirolling inberest a2 2079 5,053
Eamings per share atributeble o Bank shareholders
(eapressed in Chilean pesos)
Basic earnings 5 2532 2.288
Dilded earnings 25 2532 2.288
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the penods ending as of

December 31,
210 009
NOTE MCh$ MChS
CONSOUDATED INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 479,23 436,306
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Fyaiable for sala investments 25 10,708 (8,285
Cash flow hedge 8 15,120 {14,035
Other comprehensive income before income fax 25,828 {23,320)
Income tax related to ather comprehensive income 16 (4.273) 3,064
Total other comprehensive income 21,553 {18,356)
CONSOUDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 500,789 416,950
Alfributable to
Bank shareholders (Equity holders of the Bani) 498,779 412,001
Mon controlling inferest a 2,010 4549
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIMARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHARGES IN EQUITY
For tha pariods snding &3 of December 31, 2010 and 2008

—— e
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

For the pariods ending as of
December 31,
200 20039
NOTE MChS MCh$
A - CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CONSOLIDATED INCOME BEFORE TAX 556,193 525168
Debits (credits) to income that do not represent cash flaws (B89,082) (T43.870)
Deprecsation and amartization k1 49,403 45623
Impairment of property, plant, and equipment 15 4525 5
Provision for loan losses 2 302,142 iR |
Mark 10 market of rading mvestments - 6,940 (29.926)
Incorme fom invesiments in cther companies 13 (1.171) (297}
et gain on sale of assels recatved in lieu of payment ] {5,544) (T A06)
Provisions for assets received in leu of payment 3 3647 2797
Met gain on sale of mvestments in other companies kL . {1.858)
Net gain on sale of proparty, pland and equipmant 15 (31,225 {7 58E)
Charge off of assets received in lieu of payment 3 10,815 8,192
Net interest income: bl {639,719) (856,516)
Net fee and commission income il (263,562) (254,130
Other debits (credits) to income hat do not represent cash fows (427 1.561
Changes in assets and lisbilies due to defarred taxes 16 (25,268) {18,447
Increase/decrease in operating assets and liabilities 185,594 1674983
Decresse (ncrease) of lnans and acoounts receivables from customers, net - {1,829,692) 651,085
Dexcrease (ncrease) of inancial investments - 778,084 71,538
Decraase (ncreasa) dua bo repunchase agraaments (assats) - 158,965 {1387E)
Decrease (ncrease) of interbank loans . (46.302) 1212
Deoresse of ssels received or awarded in beu of payment . 36,084 7825
Increass of debits in chacking accounls - 553745 506 557
Increass (dacrease) of tme deposite and other Bme liabilities - B3.500 (2.212.375)
Increasa (decrease) of oblgations with domesbc banks - (26,301) 27400
Increase of ather demand liabilties o tre obligations - 140,155 116913
Increase (decrease) of obigations with foreign banks - 1435,562) 56713
Decrease of cbligatians with Central Bank of Chile - (543) (GOE)
Increase (decrease) due b repurchase agreements (kabdites) - (B19,B80) 554 51
Increase (decrease) of other short:lerm liabilties: - 4,992 8512)
Net incraase of olher assats and habiites E (511,132 (113,118
lssuance of ketlers of credit . . 4,505
Redemphion of letiers of credit = (94,281} (104.878)
Sensor bond issuances - 1458 072 748 400
Redemption of senior bonds and payments of inferest . (225,315) (258,500
Interast recaived - 1,384,762 1,579,452
Irharest paid . (516,441 (119,174)
Dividends recaived from investments in other companies 13 1,081 833
Feas and commassions recened 29 338,183 5925
Fees and commessions paid 2 (74.601) (61,785)
Income tax paid 16 (78,959) (88862}
Net cash from (used in) operating activities {145,295) 1,456 281




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
For the pariods ending as of

& Santander

December 31,
210 2009
NOTE MChE MChS
B - CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment 15 {19.001) {11.756)
Zales of property, pland, and equipment - T 1T 410
Purchasas of investmeants in ather companias 13 (4} {32
Sales of investments in other companies 13 209
Furchases of intangibles assets 14 {28,331} {33 960)
Net cash used in investment activities {20.019) (28,129)
C - CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
From shareholders’ financing activities (177 454) (305, 104)
Increasa af ather cbligations - 40 8648
Essuance of subordinated bonds 116,871 6,014
Redamption of subordinated bonds and payments of inferest (35613) (128.708)
Dividenids paid (258.752) [213.205)
From non controlling Interest financing activities (4 342
Increases of capital . . 5,604
Dividends andior withdrawals paid 25 (4} [5.258)
Net cash used in financing activities (177,498) (304, 758)
D~ NET INCREASE (DECREASE] IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS DURING THE
FERIOD [342,812) 1,123,353
E = EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION (56 865) 4 461
F - INITIAL BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2236118 1,045 264
FINAL BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5 1,835,441 2,235,118
December 31,
Reconciliation of provisiens for Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow 2010 2008
MChS MChS
Provisions for baan losses for Cash flaw 302,142 N
Ressovery of laans previcusly charged off {see Nete 32) (30.479) (30,274)
Provisions for loan losses for Statements of Income 271,663 333,847




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES:

Corporate Information

Banco Santander Chile {formerly Banco Santiage) Is a corporalion (sociedad andnima bancaral organized under the kaws of the Republe of Chile,
headquartered at Bandera St #140, first floor, that provides a broad range of general banking senvices to its cusfomers, from individuals to major corporations
Banco Santander Chile and its affikates (collectively referred to hevain as the “Bank™ or “Banco Santander Chile™) offer commercial and consumer banking
services, as well as other services, including factoning, collection, leasing, securities and insurance brokerage, mutual and invesiment fund management, and
invesimant banking.

A Special Meefing of Shareholders of Banco Sanliago was held on July 18, 2002, the minutes of which were noterized as a pubic deed on July 19, 2002 at the
hotarial CHfice of Sanbiago before Notary Mancy de la Fuente Hernandez, and it was agreed to merge Banco Santander Chile with Banco Sansago by merging
the forrmer il the latter, which acquined the famer's assels and liabilities. It was Bkewise agreed b dssolve Banco Santander Chile in advance and change the
name of Banco Santiago o Banco Santander Chile, This change wes authorzed by Resolution No.79 of the Superintendency of Banks and Financial
Institutions, adopled on July 26, 2002, published in the Offical Journal on August 1, 2002 and regisiersd on page 19,992 under number 16,346 for the year
2002 in the Regestry of Commerce of the Curator of Real Estate of Sanbiago.

In addifion o the amandments o the bylaws descus=sed above, the bylaws have been amanded on mulfiple oocasons, the last tme ai the Special Shareholders
Meseting of April 24, 2007, the minutes of which were notarized as a public deed on May 24, 2007 at the Notarial Office of Nancy de la Fuenie Hemandez. This
amendment was approved pursuant fo Resclution Mo.81 of June B, 2007 of the Superintendency of Banks and Financial Ins§iuions. An extract Sereaf and the
resslution wete published in the Official Journal of June 23, 2007 and registered in the Registry of Commearce for 2007 on page 24,064 under number 17 563 of
the akorementioned Curator

By maans ol this last amandment. Banco Santandar Chile, pursuant 1o its bylawes and as approved by the Supamibendency of Banks and Financial Irsttubons
[SBIF), may also use the names Banco Santander Santage, Santander Santiago, Bancy Santander, or Santander

a)  Basis of preparation

These Consolidated Financial Staternents have been prepaned in accordance with the Compendium of Accounting Standars iesied by the SBIF. The SBIF i the
banking industry requlator that according to article 15 of the General Banking Law, establishes the accounting principles to be used by the bankang indusiry. For
these principles not covered by the Compendium of Accounting Standards, banks can use generally accepled accounting principles issued by ®ie Chilean
hecountant's Association AG (as approved by the Nasonal Councll in its December 21, 2009, session which amended Technical Bulleing No. 79 and No. 80)
and which coingide with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the Infemational Acocounting Standards Board (WAS8), In the event that
descrapancies exist babween the accounting principles issued by the SBIF (Compendum of Accounting Standards) and FRS, the Compendium of Accounting
Standards will take precedence

The Moles o the consobdaled financial statements contain addlional Inforrabion o thal submitied in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Pesibion,
Consobdated Statement of Income, Consolidated Skatement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidaled Stelement of Changes in Equify and Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows. These nates provide a namatve descriplion of such statemeants in a clear, reliable and comparable manner.

b}  Basis of preparation for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Conschdaled Financial Statements include the separate (indvidual) financial stak ts of the Bank and the companies that participate in he consolidation

&s of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and inciude the adjusiments and reclassifications needed to comply with the policies and valuation criteria established by
the Compendium al Accounting Standards swed by the SBIF




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:
Subsidiaries

“Subsidianies” are defined as enbibes over which the Bank has e ability fo exercise control, which is generally but nof exclusively reflected by the direct or
indirect ownarship of at keast 50% of the investee’s voling rights, or even if this percentage & lower or Zere when the Bank is granted control pursuant 1o
agresmints with the investes's shareholders. Control i undersioad as the power to significan®y influence the invesies's fnancial and operating policies, $o as
to profit from its activities

The financial statements of the Subsidiaries are consobidated with those of the Bank through the global integration method (line by ling). Accordingly, all the
balances and transactions between the consolidaled companies are eliminated through fie consolidation process.

In addion, third parbes” shares in the Consolidated Bank's equity are presented as “Non confroling interests” in the Consobdated Statement of Financial
Posifion. Therr shares in tha year's income are presented under "Non confrolling interests™ in the Consolidated Statemant of Incoms

The following companies are considered “Affliate associate enliies” in which the Bank has te ability to exercise confrod and are therefore within the scope of
consolidabion

Percentage share
December 31,

Subsidiary companies 200 2008

Direct Indirect Total Direct  Indirect Total

% % % ) % %

Santander Comredora de Seguros Limitada $9.75 0m 99.76 .75 0.01 9678
Santander 5.A. Comedores de Bolsa 059 U3 .00 5050 0.41 51.00
Santander Asset Management 5.4, Administadors General de Faondos 99.96 Q.02 9996 B9 0.0z 9593
Santander Apgente de Valores Limilada (formerly-Santander 54 Agente de 5003 - 2503
Valores) 8903 . 8903
Santender 5.A. Sociedad Securiizadors 9964 . 9964 &0 64 - o084
Santander Sendcios de Recaudacidn y Pagos Limitada 9990 .10 100.00 8080 010 100.00

Special Purpose Entities

According fo curment accounting stendards, e Bank musi continuously analyze ils scope of consolidation. The key crileria for such analysis is the degree of
control held by the Bank over a given enfity, nal the banks inferest in such entity's equity

In particular, g3 set forth by Internafional Accounting Stendaed 27 “Consolidated and Separale Financial Slatements™ (IAS 27) and by e Standing
Inlerpretations Committes 12 "Consolidabion — Special Purposa Entities” (SIC 12), ssued by the LASB, the Bank must defermine the existence of Special
Purpose Entities (SPEs), which must be included in its scope of consolidation. The following are the main criteria for SPEs that shoukd be included in the scope
of consolidaton:

+  The SPEs' achvilies have essentially been conducted on behalf of fhe company that presents the consolidaled financial stalements and in responsz o ils
specific busness needs

*  The necessary decision making authority is held fo obfain most of the benefits from these enfities” acivities, as well &s the nghts b obdain mest of the
benafits of ather advantages from such enlities

+  The enlity essentially retains most of the risks inherent fo the ownership of residual nterests of the SPEs or s assets, for the purpese of oblaining the
benafits form its acthibes

Thits assessment i based on methods and procedures which consider the risks and rewards refained by the Bank, for which all the relevant feclors, including
ths guarantees furnished of the losses associated with collection of the related assets retained by the Bank, are taken into account. As a consequence of this
assesement, the Bank conduded Mat it exercisad confrol over the following entiies, which are incuded within the scope of consolidation

Santander Gestdn de Recasdacikin v Cobranza Limitada.
Multinegocios 5.A

Sendicios Administratives y Financircs Limitada

Fiscale, Limtada

Mutltisensicios de Negocics Limitada

Bansa Santander 5.4
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:

Associate entities

Azsociale enfities are thase entibes over which he Bank may exercise significant influence but nod control or joint confrol, wsually because it hokds 20% or more
of the entity's valing power. Invesiments in associate enltilies are accounted for pursuant 1o the “equty mithed ™

The follovdng companies are considenad “Assocaate entties” in which the Bank accounts Iod its participabion pursuant o the equily methad:

Percent ownership share

Associate enfities December 31,
2010 2008
) ]
Redbank 5.4 3343 1343
Transhank 5.4 a2n e} |
Cenfro de Compensacian Automatizado 113 113
Sccedad Interbancaria de Depbsilo da Valores 5 A i T ] 2928
Cémara Cormpensacion de Alto Valor 5.4 1152 1152
Adminisirador Financiero del Transanbago 5A 20,00 20.00
Sociedad Mexus S8 1280 1290

Investments in other companies
Enlifies in which the Bank has no control or significant infiuence are presented in this calegary. Thase heldings are shown at acquisibion cost (historical cosf)
¢} MNon controlling interest

Nen confralling interest represents the portion of earmings and losses and net assats which the Bank does nod own, ether drectly or indrectly. It is presented
separately in he Consclidated Statement of Income, and separately from shareholders equity in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Posilion

In e case of Special Purpose Enfties (SPEsS), 100% of thek Income and Equity ks presenied in non confrolling interes!, since the Bank cnly has conired but not
ectual gwnership thereaf

dj Operating segments
The Bank declosss separate information for each operabing segrment that

1. hasbeen idenfhiad,
il. exceeds he quantitative threshokds stipulated for 8 segment

Operating segments with srmiliar economic characlerisics often have a amilar long-term financial performance. Two of miofe segments can ba combined only if
sagregaton & consistent with the baske principles of e Internaticnal Financial Reparting Standards 8 "Operaling Segments” (IFRS 8) and the segmenis have
similar economic characleristics and are similar in each of the following respects

i, the nalure of the products and services;

ii. e nature of the produchion processes;

il the type or category of customers thal wse their products and serices

v. e methods used fo distnbute their products or services; and

v. if applicable, the nabure of the regulatory ramework, for example, banking, insurance, or ubiliies.




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:
The Bank reports separalely on each operaling segment that exceeds any of the following quantiative thresholds:

L s reported income, from both external customers and intersegment sales or ransiers, is 10% or more of the combined intemal and exiernal income of all
fhe operating sagments

i. The abeolute value of its reporied profit or loss is 10% or more of the greater of: (1) the combined reporied profit of &l the operaling segments that did not
repart & loss; (if) the combined rapartad loss of all the operaling segments thal reparled a lass.

i, s assels represant 10% or more of the combined assels of all the operaling segments

Operating segments that do not reach any of the quaniitative thresholds may be reated as sagments o be reported, in which case the informabon must be
disclozed separataly if managament believes it could be uselul for the users of fhe financial statements

Infermation on other business activities of the operating segments not separately reporied is combined and disclesed in he *Ofher segments” calegory
According o the information prasentad, the Bank's segments were determined under the folliowing definitions:

i that engages in business actvibes from which it may eamn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and axpenses from ransactions with other
companents of the same entity),

ii. whose operating resulis are regularly reviewed by the enfity's chiel executive officer to meke decisions about resources aliocated to the segment and
assess ifs performance; and

il for which separate financial inforrnabon i availabie.

#] Functional and presentafion currency

According fa Internafional Accounting Standard 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foredgn Exchange Rates™ (A5 21), the Chilean peso, which is the curency of the
primary economic envircnmen! n which the Bank oparates and the currency which influences its costs and revenues stucture, has bean defined as the
functional and presentation cumency

Accordingly, all balances and transachons denceminaled in currencies other tan the Chilean Pesa are frealed as “foreign currency.”
fl  Foreign currency transactions

According fo LAS 20 “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflaonary Economies,” a price-level restalement is apphicable only when the entity's funcional curency is 2
currency camesponding o a hypennfiationary economy (an ecanomy with 100% inflabon during a 3-year penod). Since the Chilean economy does not fulfil this
requirement, it is not necessary for the Bank to use price-level restalement.

Firthenmare, the Bank grants loans and accepls deposts in amounts denominaled i foresgn cumencies, mainly the US. dollar, Assabs and liabilibes
denominated in foreign cumencies and only held by the Bank are ransiated io Chilean pesos based on the market rale publshed by Reulers at 1:30 pm. on the
last business day of every mon. Tha rale wsed was Ch3457.95 per USE1 as of December 31, 2010 (Ch8507 .25 per USS1 as of December 31, 2004). The
Subsidianes record their foraign currancy posibions at the exchange rate reporied by the Central Bank of Chile at the close of operalions on the last business
day of the manth, amounling fo ChE488.01 per USE1 as of December 31, 2010 (ChES0T 10 per US$1 as of December 31, 2008).

Thie amounts of ned foreign exchange profits and losses includes recognition of the effects thal exchange rate Muctuations have on assats and kabilites
denominaied in foreagn currencies and the profits and lesses on foresgn exchange spot and forward Fansactions undertaken by the Bank
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:
g}  Definitions and classification of financial instruments
i. Definitions

A “financial instrument’ i any confract that gives rise to a financial asset of ene entity, and srmultaneously 1o a fnancial kabsdity or equity instrument of another
enfity

A “capital instrurent” or “ned equily instrurent” is a legal fransaction that represents a residual inferest in the assets of the entity which issues it after deduction
of all ifs Rabilies

A “financial derivative” is a financial instrument whose value changes in response 10 the changes in an observable market variable (such 8 an interest rate, &
foreign exchange rale, a financial instrument's price, or & market indax, induding credst raings), whose inifal imestment is vary small compared with other
firancial instuments having a simiar response o changes in market factors, and which ks generally saliied at a future date.

“Hytrid financial instuments” are conlracts thel simuRanegusly include a non-derivatve host contract togedher with a financial derivative, known as an
embedded derivative, which is not separalely transierable and has the effect that some of the cash flows of the hybrid confract vary in a way similar 1o a stand-
alone defivaine.

ii. Classification of financial assels for measurement purposes
The financial assats are inifally dassified info the various calegories used for management and measurement purposas.
Financial assels are included for meesurement purposes in one of the following categanes:

Portiolic of rading invesiments (at far valug with the changes recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Income): this calegory includes the financial
assets acqured for fhe purposs of generaling & prafit in the short term from Suctuations in their prices. This categary includes the portfobio of rading
investmants and financial derivative contracts not designated as hedging instruments,

Available for zale investment portiolio; debt instruments not classified as Theld-to-maturity investments.” "Credd investments (loans and acoounts receivable
from customers of inlerbank loans)” or “Financial assats at far value through profit or loss” Available for sale investments are inilially recondad at cost,
which includes ransacton cesis. Available-for-sale insruments are subsequently valued al their fair value, or based on appraisals made with the use of
infernal models when appropriate. Unrealized profits or losses slemming from changes of far value are recorded as a debit or aredit (o equily accounts
(MWalation accounts™). When these investments are dvesled of become impaired, the adustiments fo accurmulated fair value in equity are ransferred o the
Consoligated Statemant of income under “Net income from financial operations.”

Hed to maturity instruments perffalia: this category mcludes debi securilies raded on an active market, with a fved maturity, and with feed or delerninrable
payments, for which e Bank has both the intent and & proven abdlily to hold to maburity. Held fo msturity invesiments are recorded at fheir cost plus
inferest eamed, minus provisions for mpairment established when thair recorded value axcasds the estmated recoverable value.

Credit ivvestments (loans and accounts receivable from customers or inferbank loans): this category includes financing granied to third parties, basad an
thesr natura, regardiess of the type of bomower and the form of firancing. Inchudes loans and accounks receivable from cuslomers, inferbank loans, and
financial lease ransackons inwhich the Bank acts a3 lessor.
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:
iii. Classification of financial assets for presentation purposes
Financial assets are classified by their nature into the following ine ilems in the consolidaled financial statements:

Cash and deposits in banks: This ine includes cash balances, checking accounts and on-demand deposits with the Central Bank of Chile and other
demestic and foreign fnancial ingtitubong. Amounte placed in overnight ransacong will continug o be reported in this ine item and i the Enes or items 1o
which thay correspand. If there is no specaal itam far these ransachons, they will ba includad with the refatied account as indicated abave.

Unsetted tansachons: This item includes the values of swap instuments and balances of execuled ransactions which confractually defer the payment of
purchase-sale Fansactions or the dedwery of the foreign cumency acquired

Trading investments: This flem includes financial inskuments infended to be aded and investments in mutual funds which must be adustad 1o their fair
value in the same way as msruments acquired ke radng

Financial dervatve contracts: Financial dervative contracts with positve far values are presented in this item.  |§ ncludes both ndependant contracts as
wel as derivatives that should and can be separaled from a host conbact, whether they are for rading or hedging, as shown in Note B fo the Consolidated
Financial Statemenis

Trading derivatives: Includes the fakr value of dervatives which do nat qualify for hedge accounling, including embedded derivatives separated from
Frybrid financial instuments

Hedqing derivatives Includes the fair value of derhvatives designated as hedging nstruments in hedge accounting, including the embedded derhatives
separated Fom Be hybrid fnancial instruments designated as hedging instrurments in hedge acoounting

Interbank lcans: This fem mcludes the balances of fansactons with domesbc and foresgn banks, including e Central Bank of Chie, other than those
refected in the preceding ferms.

Liecans and accounts receivables from customens. These loans are non-denvative Snancial assets for which fixed or determined amounts are changed, that
are not listed on an active market and which the Bank does not intend 1o sell immediabely or in he short term. Vihen the Bank is the lessar in a lease, and it
substantally ransfers the risks and benefits incidental to the leased asset, the ransaction & presented in loans.
Irmvesiment instruments: These are classified into two calegories: held-lo-maturily investments and available-for-sale vestiments. The held-lo-maturity
investment calegory includes only those instuments for which the Bank has the abiity and intent to hold them until their matunily, Ofer avadable for sale
investments are reated as available for sale.
v. Classification of financial [kabilities for measurement purposes

The financial habdities ane intialy classhied into the varous calegones used fof management and measuremant purposes

Financial kabilities are included for measurement purposes in one of the following calegories:
Firsancial liabilities held for rading (af fair value through prof or less). Financial abilites issued to generale & short-term profit from fluctuations in their
pricas, financial dervalives not deemed ko qualify for hedge accounting and financial kabilibes ansing from definiive sales of financial assels purchasad
under repurchase agreements of bomowed ("short positions?)

Financial habilbes at amortized cost financial liabilibes, regardiess of their type and maturity, not includad in any of e afrementicned categanies which
arise from the berrowing activities of fnancaal instilubons, whatever her lormn and maturity
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:
v, Classification of financial iabilities for presentation purposes
Financial kabilites are dassiied by ther nalure into the illowing line items in the consolidated financial stalements:

= Deposits and other dermand kabiites: This item includes 8l on-demand obligatons excepd for berm savings accounts, which are not considensd on-demand
instruments in view of ther special characlerisiics, Obigations whose payment may be required dunng the penod are deemed fo be on-demand
obligatians. Operations which become callabla the day affer the closing date are nof reated as on-dernand obligations.

= Unsetiled ¥ansactions: This ilem includes the balances of asset purchases that are not saltied on the same day and for sales of foreign curencies not
delnerad

- Ivesiments under repurchase agreemants: This ilem includes te balances of salies of Snancaal instruments under securities nepurchase and ban
agresmeants.

Time deposits and other Eme liabiliies: This ilem shows the balances of deposit fransactions in which a berm at the end of which ey become callable has
bean stipulated,

- Financial derivative contracts: This #em includss financial dervalive conlracts with negative fair values, whether they are for trading or for account hedging
purpeses, as 2ot forth in Mote 8.

- Trading derivatives. Includes the fair value of derivatives which do not qualify for hedge accounling, including embedded derivalives separated from
Hybrid financial instuments

- Hedging demvalves: Includes fe fair value of the dervatves designated as hedge accoumbing instruments, induding embedded derivalives separaled
freen hybrid inancial instuments and desgnated as hedge acccunting insiruments.

- Interbank borrowings. This itam includes oblgations due to ofher domestic banks, foraign banks, or the Cenlral Bank of Chile, which were not dassified in
any of the previous calegones:

- Deit instrumants isuad: This encompasses thrae ilams. Oblgatons under letters of credd, subardinatad bands. and sanear bonds.

- Other fnancal iabilities. This item includes credit obligations ko persons dstnct from other domestc banks. foreign banks, or the Central Bank of Chile, for
financing purposes or operations in the regquiar course of business.

hy  Valuation of financial assets and liabilities and recognition of fair value changes

In general, financial assets and liabilites are nitialy recorded at fair value which, in the absence of evidence to the confrary, is deemed o be e ransachon
ica, Fmancal instuments nol measured at fair value based on profit or loss are adjusied by achual transaction costs. Thereafler, and at the end of each
accounling period, tey are valued pursuant ko te following crileria

i. Valuation of financial assels

Financial assets, excapt for kkans and accounts receivable and held - 1o - maturity invesiments, ane valued according o ther fair value, gross of any ransaction
costs that may be incumed for their sale.

The “fair value™ of a financial nstrument on a given date is e amount for which it could be bought or soid on that date by two knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm's length transachan, acting prudently. The most abjecive and common reference for the fair value of a financial instrument i the price thal would be

jpaid on an active, Fansparent, and deep market ("quated price” of “market price”)

It there is no market prce for & given financaal instrument, its fair value is estrated based on the price establshed in recent Fansactions invohing smmakar
instruments and, in the absence thereol, of valuation techniques cammeonly used by the intemational financial comminity, considering e specific features of
the instrument to be valued, and parbcularty, the various types of risk assocated with it

Ml derivabives are recordad in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position at the fair value fom ther brade dale. If their fair value is positive, they are
recorded &3 an assel, and f their far value i negative, they are recorded a5 a Eabdily, The fair value of the trade dale is deemed, in the absence of evidencs fo
Ihe contrary, to be the Fransaction price. The changes in the far value of dervaiives from the rade dade are recorded in “Ned income fom financial cperatons™
in the Consclidated Statement of Incame
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:

Specifically, he fair value of financzal dervabves included in the portfolios of financial assets or kabilibes held for rading is deemed o be ter daily quoted pnce.
It, for exceptional reasons, the quoted price cannat be determined on a given dale. These financial derivatives are measured using methods similar o hose
used fo measure over the counter (OTC) denvatves The far value of OTC dervatives is the sum of the future cash flows resuling from the insirument,
descounted to present value at the date of valuation [“present value™ or “thearetical close™) using valuation techniques commonly wsed by e financal markets
“net present value” (MPY) and oplion pricing models among ather methods.

“Loans and accounts recelvable fom customers” and “Held-lo-matunity imestments” are measured at amorted o2l using the “affactive interest method.”
“Amorfized cosf is the acquisiion cost of a financial assat or kabildy, plus or minus, as appropriate, repeyments of principal and the cumulative amorization
[recorded in the incame statemnent) of the difference betwean the instial cost and the maturity amount  Feor financial assets, amoriized cost also includes any
reductions for impaimment or uncollectiblity. For koans and accounts recesvable hedged by fair value hedges, the changes in their Eir valee related o the sk or

tisks being hedged are recorded

The "eflective interest rale” & he discount rate that exacty maiches the initial amount of a financial instrument to &l ils estimated cash flows over il remaining
Iife. For freedsate fnancial instruments, the effective interest rate coinades with the contractual interest rate established on the acquiston date plus, where
appheable, the fees and Fansacton costs thal, because of therr nalure, are a part of the financial return, For Nleaing-rale financial instuments, the effective
interest rate coincides with the rate of refurn prevailing unkll the next benchmark interest reset dale

Equety instruments whose far value cannot ba determined in & sufficienty objective manner and financial dernatives that have fose instruments as thar
undertying assets and are setied by delvery of those insruments are measured at acquisiton cost, adjested, where appropriate, by any related impairment
less.

The amounts at which te financial assets are recorded represent, in all material respects, the Bank's maximum exposure o credit risk i each reporting date.
The Bank has alse recetved collateral and other cradit enhancements: io mitigate its exposure to credit risk, which consist mainly of marigage guarantees, equity
instuments and parsonal securies, assats leased oul under leasing and rental agreements, assels acquired under repurchase agreemants, securiies loans

i Valuation of financial liabilities

In general, financial liabiities are measured al amortized cost, as defined abave, except for those included under financial liabilties designated as hedged Hems
(or hiedging instruments) in fair value hedges, which are measured at fair value.

i, Valuation techniques

Financial instuments at far value, defermined on the basis of price quotations in ackve markets, include government debt securiies, private sector debt
securities, equity shares, short positions, and froed-income securibies issued

In cases whare price quotations cannat be observed, Management makes its best estimate of the price tat the market would set using its own inbernal modsls
In st cases, hese models use data based on sbservable markel paramelers as significant inpuls and, in very specific cases, they use sgnificant inputs nat
obsarvable in marked dala. Vanous fechnigues are employed o make these esimates, including the exirapolation of observable market dats and exrapolation
tachniques.

The best evidence of the fair value of a fmancial instrument on initial recognition is the ransaction price, unless te value of he instrument can be chtgined from
ofther marke! ransachons perfarmed with the same or Srmdar instuments of can be measured by using a valuation tachnigue in which the vanables wsed include
only observable market date, mainly interestrafes.

The main fechniques used as of December 31, 2010 and 2008 by the Bank’s infernal models fo delermine the fair value of the fnancal instruments are as
fobows

L In the valuaten of financial instruments permiting stabic hedging (mainky “lorwards” and “swaps?), the “present value” methed i used. Estimaled fulure
cash flows are discounted using fhe interest rale curves of the related currencies. The inferest rate curves are generally observable market data




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:

il In the valuation of financial instruments requiring dynamic hedging (mainky structured options and other siruchured insiruments). the Black-Scholes model is
normally used. VWhene eppropriate, observable market inputs are usad bo cbtain fclors such as the bid-offer spread, exchange rates, volatiity, cormelation
indexess and market liguidity,

iil. In the valuaticn of certain financial mstruments exposed bo interest rate nisk, such as interest rate fulures, caps and floors, the present value method
(futures) and the Black-Scholes model (plain vanila options) are used. The main inputs used n these models are obsenable markel dala, including the
redated interest rate curves, volatliSes. correlations and exchange rates.

The far value of the inancial instruments arising kom e aleremenboned intemal modals considers confraciual terms and cheervable marked data, which
inciude interasd rates, credit risk, exchange rales, fhe quoted market prce of rew malerials and shares, volallity and prepayments, among ofer things. The
valuation models are not significantly subjechve, since these methodologies can be adusted and evaluated, as appropriale, through the infernal calculaton of
far value and the subsequent comparison with the related acively fraded price.

iv. Recording results
As a general nde, changes in the camying amount of fnancial assets and liabiliies are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Income, distinguishing

between those erising from the accrual of interest, which are recorded under inferest income or inlerest expense as approprisle, and hose snsing for ofher
reasons. Finally they are reconded at ther net amount undar “Net incorme from financal operabons”.

In e case of rading invesiments, the fair value adustments. inlerest income, indexation adjustments, such as realized profilsfosses from Fading, are includad
in the Gonsclidated Stalement of Income undar “Nel income fram financial operations.”

Adjustments due & changes in fair value from:

“Auailable-or-sale insruments” are recorded as part of the Bank's consclidaled net equity (Other comprehensive income) until they are remaved from the
Consclidated Slalemeants of Financial Position in which they originaled, al which ime they are recorded in the Consolidated Staternant of Income,

lerms debiled or credied o “Valuation adusiments” remain in the Bank's consolidaled nef equity unfl the related assets are removed, whereupon they
are charged to the Consclidated Staternent of Income

v. Hedging transactions
The Bank u=es financial derivatives for the following purposes

i) tosel fo customers who request these instruments in the managemeant of their marke? and credit risks,
¥ fouse these derivatives in the management of the risks of the Bank enlites’ own positions and assets and habiliies ("hedging dervatives’), and
i} fo obtain profils fom changes in the prica of thesa dervalives ("trading derivalives”),

Al Bnancial dervalives that do not qualidy for hedge accounting are accounted for a5 “rading derivatives”™
A devivative qualifies for hedge accounting i all the: following conditions are met

1. The dervabve hedges one of the fellowing tree types of exposte

@ Changes in the value of assels and liabilibes due fo Nuctuations, amang others, in the inferest rate ander exchange rate lo which the position o
balance k& be hedged is subject ("far value hadge™);

b. Changes in the esimated cash flows ansing fom financial assets and kabilites, commitments and highly probable forecasted Fransactions ("cash flow

hedge’),
¢. The netinvestmant in a foreign operation ("hedge of a nat investment in a foreign operation”).

2. Iis effectve in ofisetting exposure inherent in the hedged item o position throughout the expecied term of the hedge. which means that
a. Al the date of arrangement the hedge i expected, under nommal conditions, to be highly efflectve (prospectve effectiveness’)
b. There is suficent evidence that the hedge was actually affective during the Ife of the hedged item or pasition {“retrospective effectiveness)
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:

3. There must be adequale documentaton evidencing the specific designation of the financial derivative to hedge certain balances or transachons and how
this afective hedge was expecied to be achieved and measured, provided that this s consistent with the Bank's managemenl of own risks.

The changes in the value of financsal instruments qualifyang for hedge accounting are recorded as follows:

8. In far value hedges, the profits or logses arising on both the hedging instruments and the hedged items (atirbutable o the type of nsk being hedged) are
recorded dracly in the Consolidated Stalemant of Incorme.

b. I far value hedges of interest rate risk on & portfolio of finencial instruments, the profits or losses thal arise in measwing the hedging inslruments are
recordad directly in the Consolidated Statement of Income, whereas the profits or losses due fo changes in the farr value of the hedged amount (atibutable
to the hedged risk) are recorded in the Consolidated Staternent of Income with an offset fo “Net income from financial operations™.

¢ In cash Bow hedges, the effectve portion of the change i value of the hedging nstrument i recorded temporarnily in Other comprebensive ncome under
“Cash fiow hedge” unbil the forecasted fransacion occurs, thereafter being recorded in the Consolidated Staternent of Income, unless the forecasted
frensaction results in the recognibon of non-financial assets or Babilities, in which case it is included in the cost of the non-financial asset or lisbility. The
ineffective particn of the change in value of hedging derivatives is recordad diractly in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

d. The differences in valuation of the hedging msfument comesponding fo the ineffective portion of e cash flow hedging transacons are recorded drrectly in
the Consohdaled Statement of Income under “Nel income fom financal operations™.

It a darivatve designated as a hedge no lenger meets fe requirements desarbed above due 1o expiralicn, inefiaciveness of for any other reason, the derivalive
s classified a5 a “rading derivative.” When “fair valee hedge accounting” is discontinued, the adjustments previously recorded on the hedged item are attributed
Iz income wsing the efectve mierest rate method, recalculated at the date the hedge is discontinued. The adjustments are fully amortized at matunty.

When cash flow hedges are disconlinued, any curmulatve profil or loss of the hedging instrument recorded in Other comprebensive income under “Valuabion
edjusiments” (from the period when the hedge was eflective) remains recorded in equity unbl the hedged fransaction cocurs, at which Bme it & recorded in the
Consobdaled Statermant of Incorma, unless the transacton is no longer expacted ko ocour, in whach case any cumulate prafit or loss & recorded immediately in
the Consohdated Statement of Income:

vi. Derivatives embedded in hybrid financial instruments

Derivalives embedded in ofher financial instruments or in other host confracts are accounted for separalely as derivatives if their nisks and cheracterisbics are not
closely related io those of the host contracts, provided that the host confracts are not classified as “Other financial assets (kabdites) at fair value through profitor
loss™ or a3 “Portiolo of frading investments.”

vil.  Offsetting of financial nstruments

Financial assat and hability balances are offsel, i, reported in the Consolidaled Skatements of Fnancial Posibon at their net amount, only if the subsidaries
currendy have a legally enforceable nght to offsel the recorded amounts and inlend eifher o seftle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and seffle the
Iability simutaneously.

vill. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities from accounts

The accounting treatment of Fanshers of fnancial assets depends on the extent and the manner in which e risks and rewands associated wath e Franslamed
assels are iransierred to fhird parties:

i If the Bank fransfers substanially all the rsks end rewards o third paries, as in the case of unconditional sales of financial assets, sales under
repurchase agreements at fair value at fhe dale of repurchase, sales of fnancial assels with a purchased call option or writlen put opfion deeply cul of the
maney, utiization of assets in which the assignor does not retain subordinated debt nor grants any credit enhancement to the new holders, and other
similar cases, the ransderred financial &sset ks removed from the Consolidated Statements of Financial Posisan and any rights o obligations retained or
crealed in te ransfer are simultaneously recorded.
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:

ii, M the Bank retains substantially &l the risks and rewards associaled with the ransfermed financial asset, as in the case of sales of fnancal assels undar
repurchass agreements at a ficed price of af the sale prce plus inlerest, secunties lendng agreements under which the bomawer undertakes lo return e
same o similar assets; and ofher similer cases, he ransfared financial asset is not removed from the Consolidated Stetements: of Financia Position end
continues ta be measured by the same criteria s hose used before te ransfer. Howewer, the following items are recorded

1. An associaled financial liakility for an amount equal to Se consideration received, this lisbility i subsequenty measured at amorized cost
Z. Bath the incorne from the ransferad (but not removed) financial asset as well as any expenses incurred on fe new financial kability.

jii. I the Bank neither fransfers nor substenBally retains all the risks and rewards associated with the fransfemmed financial assel — a3 in the casa of sales of
financial assets with a purchased call opticn or waitlen pul option that is nol deeply in or out of the money, securitization of assets in which the transferor

retaing 8 subordinated debt or other type of credit enhancement for a portion of the ransfered asset, and other similar cases— the following distinction i
mada:

1. If the ransferor does nod retain confrol of the fransiemed financial asset the assat is removed from the Consolidated Statements of Financial Posifon
and any nights or abligations retained or created in fe fransier are recorded

2, If the transferar retains control of the ransferred financial asset it continues to be recordad in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Pasibon for an
amount equal I s exposure to changes in value and a financial liabilly associated with the ranslered fnanczal assel is recorded.  The net camyng
amaunt of the fransfemed asset and the associated Rebility is the amorfized cost of the rights and obligations reteined, i the transferred asset s
measured al amartized cosl, or the fair value of Se rights and obligations retained, i the ransferred asset s measured al far value,

Aocordingly, financial assets are only removed from the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position when the rights aver the cash Nows they generalz have
terrrinatied or when all e inhesent reks and rewards have been substantially ransfemed fo third parties Similarly, financsal liabilibes ane only removed from the

Consabdated Statements of Financial Posibion when the cbligations they generate have been lerminated or when they are acqured with the infent o eifher
cancal or resall them

i) Recognizing income and expenses
The mast significant critera used by the Bank o recognize its revenues and expenses are summarnized as follows:
L Interest revenue, interest axpense and similar fems

Interest revenue and expense are recorded on an accrual basis using the effective inlerest method. Dividends received from other companies are recorded as
revenue when the consoldated entities’ nght to recahse them arses.

However, when a given operation o ransacbon is pas! due by 90 days or more, when if onginated from a refinancing or renagofaion, or when the Bank
believes tat the deblor peses a high risk of default, the interest and adustments pertaining to these ransactions are nol recorded directly in the Consolidated
Saterment of Income unless they have been aclually received
These interest and adjusiments balances are generally relemed o as “suspended” and are recorded in suspense accounis which are not part of the
Consobdated Statemants of Financial Position. Instead, they are reporied as part of the complamentary information theretn (Note 28). This interest is recognized
&% income, when colleched, as & reversal of the refated impaimmant losses.
Dividends recaived from companies classified as “Invesiments in other companies™ are recorded as incame when the rght ko receive them arises

ii. Commissions, fees, and similar items

Fes and commission income and expanses ane recognized in the Consabdated Stal ol b uging eriferia thal vary according lo ther nature. The main
oriteria arg:

Fee and commission income and axpenses relating to financial assats and fnancial kabilibes measured at far value rough profit or loss are recognized
when paid.
Thoss anging from fransactions or senvices thal are performed over a paniod of time are recognzed over the ife of these ransacbons or senvices
Thasa redabing to services provided in a ingle act ane recognized when the single act s carmied oul.
fii. Mon-finance income and expanses

Thess ane recorded for accounting purpoeses on an accrual bass

20




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:
iv. Loan aangement fees

Lean amangement fees, mainly loan crigination and epplication fees, are acarued and recorded in the Consolidaied Statement of Income over the term of the
lcan, Regarding loan crigination fees, e Bank inmediately records direct costs related to loan origination within the Consolidated Staternents of Income

I} Impairment
L Financial assets:
A financial asset is evalualed on each fnancial statement filing dale to delermine whether objectve evidence of imparment exists
A financial asset or group of financial assets will be impaired if, and only if, objective evidence of impaiment exisks as a result of one or mare events thal
pocurred after inilial recognition of the assel [event causing the loss™), and this event o events causing the koss have an impact an the estimated fulure cash

fows of & financial esset or group of Bnancial assets that can be relisbly estimated. 1t might not be possible fo identify & sngle event that was Se individual
cause of the imparment

An impaimment loss relating to financal assels recorded at amortized cost i calculated as he diference bebween the recorded amount of the assel and the
present value of esSmated cash flows, discounted at the effecive interest rate

An imparment koss relating to a financial asset available for sale s caloulated based on its fair value.

Indicually significant financal assets are indnadually tested 10 determing therr imparmant  The ramaining financial assets are evaliatsd collscively in groups
that share similar credit risk characteristics

Al knpakrent lesses are recorded in income. Any cumulative less relating lo a firancial asset available for sale previously recorded in equity is ranshered io
income,

The revessal of an imparment 1oss occurs only if i can be objectively retated 1o an event oocuming after the iniiial imparment loss was recorded. |n he case of
financial assats recorded at emortized cost and for the financial assals avaiable for sale that are securities for sale, the reversal is recorded in income. In the
case of inancial assets Mal are variabla-rale securites, the reversal is directly recardad in equity.

ii. MNon-financial assets:

The Bank’s non-financial assets, excluding invesiment properties, are reviewed &t each closing dale 1o delermine whether they show sagns of imparment (ie. its
carmying amount excesads s recoverable amount]. If such evidence exisks, the amount o ba recovered from the assats i then estmated

In connechon with ofer assets, impaimment losses recorded in prior peniods are assessed at each filing date in search of any indicaion tat the loss has
decreased or disappeared and should be reversad, An mpaimment oss s reversed to §e exdent thal i s nol n excess of the curmulative impaimment loss that
has been recorded

K}  Property, plant, and equipment

This calegory includes tha amount of buildngs, land, harniture, vehicles, compuler hardware and other fxlures owned by the consolidated entiies or acquined
under fnance leases, Assets are classified according 1o their use as loows:

i Property, plant and equipment for own use

Property, plant and equipment for own use (including, amang ather fings, fangitle assets received by the consolidated enfities in full or partial satisfacian of
financial assals represeniing accounts recewable from third partes which are intended lo be held for conbinuing own use and tangible assels acquired under
finance leases) are presented at acquisiion cost less the related accumulated depreciation and. if applicable, estimated losses resulfing from comparing the net
carmying amount of each item with the related recoverable amount, which is calcutated a5 the value in use of each assat
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For thesa purposes, e acquisition cost of awerded assels is equivalent fo the net amount of the financial assels sumendered in exchange for is award

Depreciafion is calculated using the siraight line method over the acquisition cost of assets minus therr residual value. assuming that the land on which buikiings
and other stuctures sif has an indafinile 1#e and, therefore, is not subject to amortzaton

The Bank muzst appty the following useful Iives for the tangible Bssets that comprise its assals:

Useful Life

ITEM Honths)

Land

Paintings and works of ar

Azsets retired for desposal

Carpels and curtaing

Computers and hardware

Vehicles
Computational sysiems and software
ATME

Machines and equipment in general
Office furnibure

Telephane and cormumcabaon syslems
Security systems

Rights over ielephone lines

Air conditianing syslers

Installatons in general

Security systems (acquisilions up o Octaber 2002)
Buildngs

REER222IBBLYUY

The consolidated entites assess al the reporting date whether there is any indication that the camying amount of any of their tangble assels” exceads its
racgvarable amaunt If his i the case, tha camying amounl of the a=sssl & reduced ba its recoverable amount and future amortzaton changes are adjuested in
proportion io the revised carmying amauntand to e nesw remaining useful life, if the uselul ife needs to be re-estmated

Similarly, if there is an indication of a recovery in the value of a tangible assal, the consolidated entities record the reversal of the impairment loss recordad in
price periods and adwsd e fulure amorfization charges accordingly. In no drcumstance may ®e reversal of an impaiment loss on an assel intrease its
carmying vaiue above the one it would have had if no impaimment losses had been racarded in prior years

The estmated usefu| lives of the ilems of proparty. plant and equipment hekd for own use are reviewed af least at the end of the reporting period 1o datect
significant changes therain. if changes are detecled, the eseful Ives of the assets are adjusted by comecting the amorfizalion charge o be recarded in the
Consobdated Statement of Income in future years on the basis of the new useful ves.

Mamntenance expenses ralating io angible assets (praperty, plant and equipment) held for own use are recorded as an expense in te period in which Sey are
Incurmed

fi. Assets leased out under an operating leass

The crileria used to record the acquisition cost of assels leased out under operaling leases. io calculale ther depreciation and ther respeciive estimated wseful
I, nel to record th impairment losses thersod, ane conststent with thase described in retation to property, plant and equipment held fof own e
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:
) Leasing

i. Finance |eases
Firance leases are leases that substantally ransfer all the risks and rewards incidental 1o ownership of the leased aszet 1o the lesses.
When the consolidated entiies act as the lessor of an assat, the sum of te presant value of the leasa payments receivablie from the lessee plus the guaranisad
rescdual value, which is generally the exercise price of the lessee’s purchase option al the end of the lease ke, is recorded as loans ko hind parties and is
therefore incleded wnder “Loans and accounts receivable from customers™ in the Consclidated Statements of Financial Pesition
When the consclidated entibes act as lessees, ey show he cost of the leased assets in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position based on the nature
of e leased assel, and simultanecusly record a liabiity for the same amaount (which is the lower of the Eair value of the leased asset and the sum of the present
value of the lease payments payable to e lessor plus, il approprate, the exercise of the purchase cplion). The depreciation policy for thess assels &
consistent wath thet for property, plant and equipment for own use,

In both cases the fnance revenues and finance axpensas ansing from these contracts are credited and debiled, respactvely, to “Interest incoma’ and “Interest
expense” in the Consolidated Staternent of Income 3o as o achieve a constant rate of return over the lease term

fi. Operating leases
In operating leasas, ownership of e leased assel and substantially all the risks and rewards incidental thereto remain with the lessor
When the conscldated entiies act as the lessor, they present the acquesbon cost of the leased assels under "PPAE” (property, plant and equipment). The
depreciation pelicy for fese assels is consislent with that for simelar flems of tangible assets (property. plant and equipment) held for own use and revenues
frern cperaling leases is reconded on a staight ine bass under “Other operating incorme” in the Consoldated Statement of Income:

When the consclidated enfifies act as the lessees, the lease expenses, including any incentves granted by the lessor, are charged on a staight fine basss fo
“Administative expenses” in the Consobdated Statement of Income:

fii. Sale and leaseback transactions

For sale al fair value and operating leasebacks, the profif or loss generaled is recorded at the me of sale,  In the case of finance leasebacks, the profil or loss
penerabed s amortized over the leass larm

mj Factored receivables

Fectored receivables are valued at the amount disbursed by the Bank in exchange for invoices or other commercial msiumenis represeniing the credit which
the translerce assigns to the Bank., The pnce differance between the amounts disbursad and the achial face value of the credits &5 recorded as interest income
in the Consclidated Statement of Income throigh the effecive inlerest method over fe financing period

When the assignment of these insfruments invalves no labikty for the assignor, the Bank assumes the resks of insohvency of the parties responshle for paymant
nj Intangible asseis

Intangible assets are idenified as non-monetary assels (separalely identifiable from other assets) without physical substance which arise as a result of a legal
ransachon {contractual lerms) or are developed internally by e consobdated enfiies. They are assels whose cost can be estimated reliably and from which
the consolidated enibes have confrol and consider it probabie thal future ecenomic banefts wil be generated

Intangible assets are recorded initially al acquisibon or producton cost and are subsequantly measured at cost kess any accumulated amortization and any
accurmulated impairment losses
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Intemna softwere

Intemally developed compuler softwere is recorded as an intangble assel if, among other requirements (basically the Bank's ability to use or sell i}, it can be
identfied and its abii%y in genevale future economic benefits can be demonsirated. The estimate of useful ie for software is 3 years.

Expenditure an research actvities is recorded as an expense in the year in which it is incumed and cannot be subsaquently capitalized
o) Cashand cash equivalents

For the preparation of the cash flow statemant, the indirect method was used, beqinning with the Bank's consolidated pre-tax income and incorporating non-
cash fransactions, a3 well as income and expenses associated with cash fows, which are classified as invesiment or financing actvities

Fer the preparaton of the cash low statemant, the fllowing llerms ane conskdened:

i Cash fows: Infiows and outiows of cash and cash equivalents, such as deposits with the Central Bank of Chie, deposits in domestic banks, and deposits
in foreign banks

ii.  Operating activibes: Normal activities perfammed by banks and other aclivities that cannol be classfied as investing or financing activibes.

iii, Investing achviies: The acquisition, sale, or disposal by other means of long-lerm assets and other invesiments not incuded n cash and cash
equivalents.

. Fmancing activities: Activities that result in changes in the size and composition of net assets and Eablibes that are not parl of operational activities o
investments,

P} Allowances for loan losses

The Bark records allowances for probable loan losses in accordance with insructons issued by the SBIF and internal models for rating and evalualing credit
risk approved by the Bank's Board of Direclors

hecording to the methodology developed by the Bank, loans are dihided info three categones
L Consurmer loans,
i. Morigage koans, and

iii. Commercial leans,

The intemal rigk models usad to calcuiate the allowances are described as follow,

For large commercial loans, leasing and factonng, he Bank assigns a risk calegory level io each borrower and his respective loans. The Bank considers: the
folowing risk tactors within the analysis: industry or secior of the bormower, cwners or managers of ®ie borrower, therr financial situation, their payment capacity
and payment behanior.

The Bank assigns one of the Tollawing risk calegories ko each loan and bormower;
I, Classifications A1, AZ and A3, comespond fo borrowers welh no apparent credit risk.
i. Classification B comesponds lo bomowers with some credit risk but no apparant deleroraiion of payment capacty
. Classifications C1, C2, C3, G4, D1 and D2 corespond 1o borrowers whose lsans have delencoraled.

For boans classified as A1, A2, A3 and B, the Bank's Board of Directors is authorized fo debenming fhe loan loss allowance amounl. The Bank essigns a specific
level of risk for each borower, As a result, borrowers within the same dassification could have different leveds of risk
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For lnans classified in Categonies C1, C2, C3, C4, D1, and D2, the Bank must maintain the following levels of resernves:

Classification Estimated range of loss Allswance
5 Upto 3% %
c2 More than 3% and up to 19% 10%
c3 More than 19% and up o 2% 25%
4 More than 29% and up 1o 49% 40%
1] Mare than 49% and up o 79% 65%
D2 Meve than 79% 0%

Bomowers wath insufficlent payment capacity in loreseeable drcumsiances are classified under fesa calegones. The categories ksted above redate (o a
classification based on ihe level of expected loss of commercial loans and leasing Fransactions of the cusiomer's business as & whole, guanified according fo
the methodalogy used by the Bank

For purposes of determining allowance amounts, the percentage assocated with the estimated loss rate is applied to the iotal credit
Allywances for group evaluations
Group evalualions are used i evaluate a high number of ransactions with low indaidisal amounts belanging to natural persons or small sized companies

The required levels of allowances have been determined by the Bank according fo the estimated credit boss through the dassification of the allowances portiolio
using ane of the following modals:

I, The model basad on the debior’s charactenstics and hisher outstanding payments. Borrowers and allocations with similar characteristics can be grouped
tngether and be assigned a risk level.

ii. The model based on the behavior of & group of loans. Loans wifh analogous payment behavior and similar charecleristics can be grouped fogether and
bix assigned a rizk level

Group evaluations require the estabishment of credt groups with similar characleristics with regards 1o borowers and agreed conditicns so as o establsh
through technically based estimations and following reasonable critera, both the payment behavier of the greup and Be recovery of impaired leans, and
conztitute the necessary allowances fo cover the portiolio's risk

The Bank uses allowance methodologies for the porticlio defined as Group in which it inchudes commercial loans for non-portfolio borowers, morigage and
consumer loans (including installments, cards and lnes). The model used applies historic loss rales per segment and nsk profile over lnans and accounts
receivable from clients in each portiolio for its respective creation of allowances.

Pravisions are detarmined ugng these models to determine a historical loss rate by segment and risk profile of each group of clients. The allowence modsls for
consumer bans segments thesa loans in four groups, each wilh its own madel

Regular new chents
Regular old chents
Fenegotiated new clients
Renegotiated ol clients

Each model is segmented by risk profile bo distinguish the risk of each portfiolio in @ more orderly and adequale fashion. The profiing method is besed on 2
scorecand statstical moded thal estableshes a relation throwgh regressions betwesn varaus vaniables, such as paymenl bahavior in the Bank, payment bahanor
outside the Bank, various socio-demographic data, among others, and & response variable that determines a client’s risk level, which in this case is 90 days
non-performance. Once the scorecards have been delermined, ngk profiles are estabished thal are statistically significant with smilar expecied loss levels or
charge-olf vintage.
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The expecied loss rates are defined by the "Vintage of Met Charge-Offs” (charge-ofs net of recovenies) method, This methodology establishes the period in
which the expacied ks is maximized. Once this peniod Is cbiained #s ks applied 1o each risk profile by model lo oblamn the nel charge-off kevel associated with
this peried

I ther 3 of group and marigage commercial models, the Bank uses business seqments, risk profies and past due Segments, crealing a mair: in which loss

rates for each combination of business segment, profile and past due segments are placed, whether for the commercial or marigage portfolio. Loss rates are
creafted through historic measurements and statistcal estmations of the segment and portiolio or product.

Consumer and morigage loans allowances
Consumer and morigage loan allowances are drectly related o the meaturity of the respective loans:

Al rortgage and consumer [oans are given a raling on indvidual basts using an asiomabe and sophistcated statstieal madel that consders also the bomower's
behavior, Once the client's rating is defermined, the morigage or consumer loan allowance is cakoulated using a risk category and refated ratio, which will
depend cn makurity

idditiona) ollowonces

Under SBIF regulations, banks are allowed lo eslablish provisions above the Bmits described above, only lo cover specific risks authorized by the Beard of
Directors:

Pursuant 1o articies 9 and 10 of Law No. 18,045 the Board dacided 1o antcipals he enforcament of the new alowance ragulation for the loan portiohs included
in chapler B-1 of the 3BIF Compendum of Accounting Standards fo be enforced from January 1, 2011, fug crealng an addiional aliowance for ChE39.800
million charged in 2010. See Note 35

Charge-offs

Generally, charge-offs must be recorded when the contractusl nghts over a et of cash lows expire. In the case of loans, even when this does not take place,
the respechive balances of assets will be charged off according to Tifhe Il of Chapler B-2 of the SBIF Compendium of Accounting Standards.

Thesa charge offs refer to derecognition in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position of assels comesponding to & loan. This includes a portion of 8
loan that might nat be past dwe in the case of a loan paad in instaliments or in a leasing operation (no partial charges offs)

Charge-offs are always recorded with a charge to credit risk allowances, according fo Chapler B-1 of the Compendium of Accounting Standards, regandless of
the cause of the charged off. Any payments received on the charged off accounts will be recorded on the Consolidated Statements of Income as recovery of
lzans charged off

Loan and accounts recenable charge-olfs ara recorded an overdua, past due, and curent installments based on the past dus deadines presanled balow

Type of lcan Term
Consumer loans with or without real guarantees & months
Omer ransactons without real guaranhees 24 months
Consumer loans with real guarantees 35 months
Mortgage loans 48 months
Consimer lmasng & months
Oer non morigage keesing ransactons 12 months
Mortgage leasing (househedd and businass) 35 manths
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Any renegotiasbon of an akeady charged off loan will not produce income as long as e Fansacton continues fo be impared, having fo daal with its cash
payrnents as recovery of charged olf loans

The renagatated loan could only be rensiated into assets if it stops being impaired, acknowledging the incorparation by actvation as recovery of charged off
loares,

Recovery of loans previously charged off and accounts receivable from clients

Recovery of previously charged off loans and accoun! receivabile from clients are recorded in e Consolidated Staterments of Income as a reduction of credit
sk alowances
q)  Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are liabilities in which uncertainty extsts as io thesr amoun? or maturity. Provisions are recorded in the Consolidated Statermants of Financial Position
when ihe follving requirerments are simultaneously met

L ltis apresent liabilty as a result of past events; and
i. Asof the date of the financial stalements it is likely that the Bank will have o expend resources ko settle these obligations and the amount of hese
nesources can be refiably measured

Cenbingent assats or contingent iabilites are any pessible nghls or possible obligations arising fom past events whose exsstence will be confrmed only ifona or
more uncertain fulure events hat are not undar the Bank's conlrol occur

The following are classified a5 contingent in the supplementary information:
i Guarantees and bonds: Encompasses, guaraniees. bonds, standby hetiers of oredit, and guarantees of payment Fom buyers in factored receivables
i Confrmad fareign leflers of credit Encompasses latters of credit confirmed by the Bank
i Documentary letters of credit Includes documentary letters of credit issued by fe Bank, which have not yel been negotiated
w. Documented guarantees: Guarantees with promissory notes
v. Interbank guaranbees: Guaraniees ssued.

v Uniestricled credd lines: The unusad amount of aradil lines Sat allow customers o draw withouf pricr approval by the Bank {Sor example, using credit
cards or gverdralts in checking accounts)

Wi Other credd commitments: Amounts not yet lenl undes cormmitied loans, which must be disburssd a1 an agreed fulre dale when events contractually
agreed upon with the customer ccour, such as in the case of Ines of credi linked to the progress of a construction or similar projects

vii.  Other contingent cradts: Includes any other kind af commitment by the Bank which rmay est and give rise i lending when certain future events eccur. In
general, this includes unusual fransactions such as pledges made io secure the payment of loans among third parbies or derivalive confracts made by
third parties that may result in a paymand cbligaion and are not covenad by depasits

The consolidated annual accounts refiect all significant provisions for which it is estmated that the probability of having to meet the cbligation is more ikely than

nok

Provisions (which are quantified using the best available information on the consequences of the event and are re-estimated at each accounting close) are used
Io eddress the specific liabilbes for which ey were origmally recorded, Parial of tofal reversals are recorded whan such kabiiies coase to exist or decrease
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:
Provisions are classified acconding to the kabities they cover as follows:

Provisions for personnel salanes and expenses:
Provision for mandatory dividends.

Provisions for contingent credd risks.
Provigions for contingencies

7 Delerred income taxes and other defermed taxes

The Bank records, when appropriate, deferred tax assets and liabilibes for the estrmated fulure tax effects atiributable io difierences batween the camying
armount of assets and liabilities and ther tax bases.  The measurement of deferred tax assets and labilities is based on the tax rate, according o the epplicable
te; faws, using the tax rabe fhat applies o the pariod when the dafered asset and kabiily is settled.  The future effects of changes in tex legisiation or tax rales
ara recorded in deferned taxes beginning on the date on which the law approving such changes is publizhed

The effects of delamed taxes because of temporary differences between the tax basis and the camying amount balances are recorded on an accrual basis,
according ko 1AS 12

8]  Use of estimates

The preparation of fe financal statements requres Management ko make esbmalkes and assumplions that affect the applcabon of the accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assats, iabilites, revenues and expanses. Actual results may dffer from thess esimates.

In certain cases, generally accepled accounting principles require thal assels or liabilties be recorded or disclesed at their fair values. The fair value is the
arvount at which an asset could be bought or sold, of in the case of a liability, could be incumed or selfled, in an amm's length ransaction between willing parties
instead of a forced satfement or sale. Yhen evailable, quoted market prices in achve markels have been used as the basis for measurement. Where quoted
markal pricas in active markets are nol available, the Bank has estimaled such values basad on the best information avadabla, including the usa of modesing
and other valuaton techniques

The Bank has established alowances o cover possbie losses in accordance with regulations issued by the SBIF. These regulabons require that, o estimate
the allowances, they musi be regularly evaluated taking into conssderation factors such as changes in the nature and volumne of the loan portfalio, trends in
forecasied portfolio quality, credil qualty and economic conditions that may adversely affect the bormowers' ability to pay. Increases in the allowances for loan
lozses are refacied as “Provisions for loan losses” in the Consclidated Statement of Income. Loans are charged-olf when management determines that a loan
or a portion fereof is uncollecible, Charge-ofis sre recorded as a reduction of the provisions for loan losses

The relevant estimales and assurpbons are regutarly reviewed by the Bank's Management to quantify certain assets, labidibes, revenues, expenses, and
commiiments. Revised accounting estimales are recorded in the peniod in which the estimate is revisad and in any afflected fulure peried

Thesa estimates, made on the basss of he best available information, mainly refer io:

Leesas for mpairmnant of certain assels (Noles B, 8 and 10)

The useful lives of tangble and intanglle assels (Notes 14, 15, and 35)
The far value of assels and iabdites (Notes 6, 8, 12, and 38)
Cormmitments and contingenches (Noke 24)

Cusrent and dederred taxes (Nobe 16)

[ I R
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:
t}  Non-current assets held for sale

Nen-cusent assets (or a group which includes assels end kabiities for dispessl) expected fo be recovered mainly throwgh sales rether than fhrough continued
use, are classified as heid for sale. immediately pnor fo this classification. assats (or elements of a desposable group) are re-measured in accordance with the
Bank's policies. The assets (or deposal group) are measured al te lower of book value or fair value minus cost of sale

Any impaimment loss on disposal s frst allocated to goodwill and then o the remaining assets and kabiiities on a pro rata basis. excapt when no losses have
been recorded in financial assels. delered assels, employee beneft plan assets, and imesiment property, which are still evaluated according to the Bank's
ccounting polcies. Impaimment losses on the mitial classification of held-for-sale assets and profits and losses from the revaluation are recorded in income.
Profits are noft recorded if they outweigh any cumulative loss:

Az of December 31, 2010 and 2004, the Bank has not classified any non-current aszeks as held for sale

hssets received or awarded in lleu of payment of loans and accounts recetvabie from cusiomers ane recorded, al e price agreed by the parties, or otherwise,
when the parties do not reach an agreement. al the amount &t which the Bank is awarded those sssets af a pudicial auction

Thesa assels are subsequently valued at the lawer of initially recorded value or net realizable valwe, which comesponds 1o their fair value [iguidty value
debermined through an independent appraisall minus the cost of sales associated therewith,

A least oncs & year, the Bank performs e necessary analyss 1o updale these assets’ cost of sake

Aocording b studses conducted by the Bank, as of December 31, 2010 the average cost of sale [the cost of mainlaining and divesting the assef) was estmalad
at5.5% of the appraised value (5.9% as of December, 2008)

In general, the Bank estimales that these assats will be divested within one year since ther awarding dala, To comply with article 84 of the General Banking
Law as=ets not sold during that period, wall be charged off in a single payment

uj  Eamings per share

Basic eamings per share are determined by dividing the net income atiributable o ®e Bank shareholders for the pencod by the weighled average number of
shares outstanding during the period.

Dilufed earmings per share are delermined in the same way as basic eamings per hare, but e waighted average number of outstanding shares is adpusted o
ke into account the polential diuting efect of stock optons, warants, and conversble debt.

As of Decernber 31, 2010 and 2009 the Bank did not have instruments that ganerated diluting efiacts on shareholders’ equity.

v}  Temporary acquisition [assignment) of assels
Purchases (sales) of financial assets under non-opdonal resale (repurchese) agreements at a fixed price (repos’) are recordad in the Consclidated Siatements

of Financial Position as financial assignments (recaipts) based on the nature of the deblor (creddor) under “Deposits in the Cenlral Bank of Chile,” "Depasits in
financial inshtutons” or “Loans and accounts receivable from customers” (Centrad Bank of Chile deposits” "Deposits from fnancial instilutions™ or "Customer

deposits’)

Differences between the purchase and sale pross are recorded &s fnancial interest over the bemn of e confract

w]  Assets under management and investment funds managed by the Bank

The assels managed by e diferent companies that are within the Bank's scope of consclidation (Santander Assat Management 3.A, Administredora General

de Fondos and Santander S5 A Sociedad Securitizadara), which are the property of third parfies are nol incledad in the Consolidaled Statements of Financial
Positon. The relevant management fees are inchuded in “Fee and commis=on income” in the Conschidated Staterment of Incorms.
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:
¥} Provision for mandatory dividends

Az of December 31, 2010 and 2009 the Bank recorded & provision for mandalory dividends. This provision is made pursuant o Adicle 79 of the Corporabions
Act, which is in accordance with the Bank's internal palicy. Under &rticle 79 of the Corporations Act, at keast 30% of nef income for the pericd should be
destribuled, except in the case of a confrary resolution adopted al the respective shareholders’ meeting by unanimous vole of the outstanding shares. This
provision is recorded, Bs 8 deducBon under the "Retemned earnings - Provissions for mandalory dividends™ line of the Consolidated Statement of Financal
Posiion.

yl  Personnel benefils
i. Post-employment benefits

According fo curment cobecive bargaining and other labor agreements, the Bank has commitied itself fo complement the benefits granted by the public sysiems
comespendng fo cerfain employees and ther rights perisining fo refrement, permanent dissbidity or death, oulstanding salanes and compensations,
confibutions to pension funds for actve employees and post-employment socal benafits

Post-employment agreements kept by the Bank i its employees are considered "Defined confribufion agreements” when predetermined confribuSons are made
{reconded under “Personnel salaries and expenses” from the Consoldated Staternent of Income) Io a separate insttton with no legal or efective obligation 1o
do such additional contibutions il the independent instiution cannot fake care of refibutions fo employess related lo services given in the cument or past
jperiods. Post-employment benefits which do not fulfill he aforemeniioned requirements are considered as “defined benefit agreements™

Eeatres of e Plan
The: miain features of the Post-Employment Benefits Plan, sponsored by Grupo Santander Chile are:

Aimed at the Group's managament

Thie general requesiie o apply is hat the employes must be camying cut his duties when turning 60 years okl

The bank will take on insurance (pension fund) on e emplayee’s behalf, for which it wall pay reguiarty the respective premium (conlriution)
The bank will be directy resporsible for granting bansfits

oan oo

Defined Conkibutions Plans
ConfribuSons camied out from this item in each period are recordad under “Personnel salaries and expenses” in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Amouwnts unpaid by the end of each periad are recorded, by their current value, under “Provisions- Provisions for personned salaries and benefils” in liabililes
within the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

- Defined benefit plans:

The Bank records under the “Provisions” Iine in the Consobdated Statemants of Financial Position (of in assebs under "Other azsals” depanding on the fundad
status of the plan) the present value of its pestempleyment defined benefit cbligations, net of the fir value of the “plan assets” and of the unrecorded
accumulated ned achmnal gains andlor losses, revealed in the valuation of fese commifments which are defered by virlue of the Featment of the so-called
“cormidor approach”, and of the “Cost lor pas! services”, the recognition of which & delerad in ime as explained below.

“Plan assels” are deamed 1o ba those with which the abligations wil be sattied and whach meet the fllowng requrements:

They are not fe preperty of fe consclidated entibes, but that of legally separate third parties not related 1o the Bank

They are available only fo pay or fund post-employment benefits and cannat return lo the consolidated enlities except when the assals remaining in the
plan are suffcient 1o fulfill all ®e cbigations of the plan or the enbity in relaton lo the benefits due to curment or pasl employees of o reimburse employes
benefits previously paid by the Bank

If thee Bank can demand that the insurance companies pay a part or 3l of the disbursemant required 1o setile a defined banefit cbligation, it being practcally
certain hat said insurer will reimburse any or all of the disbursements reguired to pay off that cbligation, but the insurance policy does not fulfill the requirements
Io b= & plan azsel, the Bank records its nght to reimbursement in assets of the Consclidated Statements of Financial Posibion under "Other assels” which is
reated as a plan assel in i other respects. These benefits plans. which are recorded according to 145 19 "Employee benefits”, are nol significant for the
financial statements.
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:

Achmrial gains and losses are deemad o be hose ansing fom the differences between previous acluarial assumplions and whal achually occumed, and
changes in the actuanal assumptions used For the plans, the Bank appbes the "comidor approach” critenon, whereby It records the amount determined by
deading by five the higher of the el value of he accumulated ectuarial gains andior losses not recorded at the beginning of each period and exceeding 10% of
the current value of the obigatons or 10% of ta fair value of the assats at the beginning of the period in the Consolidated Statement of Income:

“Cost of past service” — which arses from changes made lo exsting postretirement benefils or the infroduchion of new benefite — i recorded in the
Consobdated Statement of Incorme on a straight line basis over the panad baginning on the dals on which the new commitmeants arose ko the date on which the
employee has an mevocable right to recene the new benefits.

Post-amployment benefits are racorded in the Consolidated Statement of Income as follows:

Tha cost of service for the cument peried (understood as the increasa in the cument value of the obligations arising as & consequence of the sanvices
prowided by the ernployess during the peniod) under the “Personnel salaries and expenses” ilem.

The interest expense (undersiood as e increase in cument value of the cbligalions 85 a consequence of he passage of time which occurs during the
penod). When the cbligations are shown in liabilites in the Consolidated Siatements of Financial Position net of the plan assels, fhe cost of the liabiliies
which ara recorded n the Consolidated Staternant of Incomsa reflects exclusively the obligations recandad in labiites.

The expected return on assels allocated to hedge e commitments and the gains and losses in her value, minus any cost arising from their
management and the taxes to which they are subject

Amorization of the aclsarial gains and losses in the application of the “comidor approach” treaiment and in he unrecorded past cosl of sarvices. The
actuanial gains and losses calculaled wsing the comider approach and the unrecognized past service cost, are recorded under Personnel salaries and
expenses” in fhe Consolidated Statement of Income

i Severance Provigion:

Severance provisions for years of employment ate recorded ondy when they actually cecur o upon the availablity of a formal and detailed plan in which the
fundamental modifications to be made are identified, provided that such plan has already staried to be implementad or its principal features have been publichy
announced, or obyactve facts aboul s execution are known.

iii.  Share-based compensation:

The allocalion of equity instruments to executives of the Bank and s Subsidianes a3 a form of compensaion for their senvices, when those insiruments are
provided al the end of a specific period of employmend, s recorded a3 an expense in the Consolidaled Stelement of Income under the "Personnel salaries and
expanses” fien, as he relevant execulives provide ther services over the course of the period

These benefits do not generate diluting effects, since they are based on shares of Banco Santander 54, (e parent company of Banco Santandar Chile,
headquartered in Spain).

7} Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

The Consalidated Statement of Changes in Equity presents all the changes occurring in net equity, including those produced by changes in acoounting criteria
and the cormechion of emors. Accordngly, this slatermant prawides a reconcliabon of book value al the begmning and end of the period for all fems in
consolidabed met equity, grouping the changes ink the following items based on their nafure:

L Adustments for changes i accounting criteria and the correction of ermors: ncludes the changes in consolidated net equity arising as a conseguenca of
e refroactive restatement of the financial statement balances s a consequence of changes in the accounting criteria or in the carecion of emors.

i, Fevenues and experses recorded in the penod: reflects, in aggregate form, all the Rems recordad in the Consclideted Statement of Income indicatad
above.

3l




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:
aa) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

This represents the income and expenses generated by the Bank as & result of its business acivity in the penod, separalely disclosing the income and
expanses recordad in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the period and the other income and expensas recorded directly in consclidated aquity

Accordingly, this statement presents:

L Consclidated income for the period
0. The natamount of the income and axpenses lemporanly recordad in consolidated equsty under valuation adjustmeants
iii. The net amount of income and expenses permanently recorded i consolidated equily.

w. The income tax incurred fromn the ilems indicaled in i) and i}, above, except for valuabon adjustments arising from invesiments in associated or mult-
group companies acoounted by using the equity method, which are presented net

v. Tolal conschdated income and expenses recardied, calculated as the sum of the above ilems, presenling separately the armount altributable to the Bank's
shareholders and the amounts refating 1o non-coniroling inlerests

ab) MNew accounting pronouncements
i Incorporation of new accounting standards and instructions issued by the SBIF as well as by the IASB

As of the date of issuance of these consoldaled financial stalements, the fellowing accounting pronouncements have been issued by the both the SBIF and the
IASE, which have bean fully adopted by the Bank and are detaded s follows:

1) Accounting standards issued by the SBIF

Circular No. 3488 On December 20, 2009 the SBIF kssued this Creular together with Circular Mo, 69 issued by the Chilean tax autharity (5117, fis jeint
circudar established the effective dale for the “Recording of provisioned or cherged off credits for ta purposes requirement”, delaying for the 2010 period the
efiective dale of the requested detail of provisioned or charged off credis as a note 1o the financial statemants. Bath requirerents are established in the joint
letter 47/50 and 34TB/SBIF =sued on August 18, 2009 about the tax treatment of loan allowances, charge-offs, renegotabons and remissions granted by
banks. The managemen! adopled thesa changes in its financial shatements as of Decermber 31, 2010. For Se detail of the disclesure of actvily and effects
generabed by the enforcemant of aricke 31, Ne. 4 of the Income Tax Law, in agreement with Ciroulas No. 3,478, see Nobe 16 “Current and Deferred Taxes®

Circular Mo, 3,469 - On December 20, 2009 the SBIF issued this circular establishing that starting on January 2010, an enéty must complement the basis on
which insolvency provisions related o confngent operations are delermined, including unresincled Ines of aredit, other contingent loans, and other loan
commiiments. Addiionally, an enlity should also apply changes in risk exposure applicable io coningent loans included in Chapler B-3 of the SBIF Compendium
of Accounting Standards. The accumulated effect of these changes will have o be recorded in equity (retained eamings) of the Consolidaled Statements of
Financial Pestion. The afects on the financial stalemans dua lo the adopbon of this Cincutar ane describad in MNode 2 “Accounting Changes.”

Circular No. 3,497 — On March 30, 2010 the SBIF issued this Circular, which establishes that to maintain consistency bebween terms cumently used in IFRS 1o
distinguish part of equity and consolidated income that correspond to indidualz with no contral of the consolidaled entities, the expresson “minority nberest’
should be replaced with "non confrolling interest, in additon the expressions “income afinbutable to main equity holders”, “atinbutable to bank equity holders”,
“bank equity holders”™ and “atinbutable 1o equsty holders” should be replaced with: “income atiributable 1o owners”, “to the bank owners™, “bank shareholders™,
and “of the camess™, respectively.

Circular No. 3,502 - On June 10, 2010 the SBIF issued this Crcular which instructs that ransitory provisions regulations enfarced should be kept untl the close

of the current period and alsa established, until the end of fe present year, a 0.5% minimum provision for the narmal part af the loan partfalia on an individual
base. The effects on the financial stalements due o the adopton of this Circular are described in Note 2 “Accouning Changes.”
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:

Cireular No. 3,503 - In August 2010, fe SBIF ssued this Circulasr which supplernents and modifies the instrucions related io the Compendium of Accounbing
Standards, chaplers B-1, B-2, B-3, and C1 related fo allowances and mpaied portiolics. These medifications will be enforced &s of danuary 1, 2011. In addifion,
this circular ncorporaies regulations relating to additional provisions included in KNo.9 of Chapter B-1 which are valid duning 2010. The effects on the financial
statemens due 1o the adoption of this Circular are described in Nobe 2 “Accounting Changes ™

2] Accounting Standards Issued by the [ASB

Amendment fo IFR31 (Revised 2008) First Time AdopBon of international Financial Reporfing Standards - The WASE issued IFRS 1 on June 2003, IFRS 1
replaced 3IC-8 First Time Adaption of International Financial Reporting Standards as a primary base of accouning. The |1AS8 developed FRS 1 to deal with the
concems relating to the rerospective application of IFRS required by SIC-8. IFRS 1 was amended in seversl occasions to accomodale te first ime adepbion
requiremants for new or amended internatonal financial reporting standands. Consaguenty, IFRS 1 became more complex and less claar. Thensfore, in 2007,
the IASE proposed, as part of a yearly impravement project, 1o change IFRS 1 1o make it sasier io understand for readers and to befler design it bo adapt o
futwe changes. The FRS 1 version issued in 2008 keeps the same substance as e previous one bul with a different structure. B replaces the former version
&nd it is effective for enties applying IFRS for the first ime in yearly periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009 is early adoplion is allowed, The Bank early
adapled the new IFRS 1 version for e yeark: pariod hegan on January 1, 2008,

Amendment to IFRS 2, Share—based Payments — On June 32008, the 1ASE issued amendments fo IFRS 2 Share-based Payments, These amendments clarify
the scope of IFRS 2 as well s he accownting for share base payments in group transactions seftied in cash in the indnidual financial statements of an enlity
receiving the essels o services when another group’s enfity or shareholder has the obligation of seffing the benefit The Managemenl assessed ihese
amendmenis; however, these have no impac! an ils fnancial stalements since the Bank does nof have this fype of bansaclions.

Amendments to IFRS 3 (Revised 2008), Business Corrbinations and 145 27 (Revised 2008). Individual and Consolidated Financial Statements - On January
10, 2008 the IASE issued IFRS 3 (Revised 2008), Business Combinations and 185 27 (Revised 2008), Indrvidual and Consolidated Financial Stalements, These
revised regulations ane mandalory for business combinabions for annual peneds starting on or after July 1, 2000, Its application in advance is allowed, though
Imited. Amendmenis fo [FRS 3 have nol had an impact on the consolidaled fnancial sialements since the Bank has nol camied ouf business combinations i
the pariod that had fo be freated according to this new IFRS requirement.

Amendment to I1AS 39, Financial inskuments; Recognition and Measurement — On Juby 31, 2008 the 1ASE published amendments to IAS 39 Eligitée Hedge
Ibarmts: Recognition and Measurement which shed light on two subjects relating lo hedge accounting: (1) designation of infiabion as a hedged flem, establishing
thal inflation could only be hedged when changes in it are a contrachmlly specified in the hedge agreement cash flow, and (i} opson hedging, establishing that
only the infinsic value and nol the time value of a purchased opbon may be used as a hedging instrument. Amendments are effective for yeary periods
beginning on July 1, 2006, The Bank Administralion adopled these measwes, howevey, ifs enforcement has not had a significand impact on fnancial slatements.

Improvements to IFRS - On April 16, 2009 the [ASE issued mprovemants to IFRS 2009, incorporating amendments o 12 IFRS, This = the second el of
amendrments eswed under the yearly improvement process which were designed i make necessary Bough not wgent amendments o IFRS. The amendments
are effective for yearly periods beginning on or after July 2002 and for yearly periods beginning on or afler January 1. 2010, The adoption of these
impravements has nol had a significant impact on fnancial statements.

IFRIC 17, DistribuSon of Mon-cash Assels to Owners — On Nowember 27, 2008 fhe International Financial Reporting Interpretation Commttes (FRIC) ssued
IFRIC 17, Destribution of Non-cash Assets to Ownere. The inlerpretabion provides guidalines cn the adequate accounting reatmant when an entity places non-
cash assels as dvidends fo ifs sharehedders. The most significant conclusion reached by the IFRIC is that dividends should be measured at the fir vale of the
disinbuled assel and that any difference between this amount and the book value of the disiribuled assats should be recorded in incorme when the enfly seffles
the dadend. The Management assessed these amendments and consideved that they have o impact on s Brancial stadements since the Bank does nof have
these lype of fransactions
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:
i, Mew accounting standards and instructions issued by the SBIF as well as by the IASB but not adopled as of December 31, 2010,

As of the issuance of these financial stalements new IFR3 have been published s well as inlerpretalions of these regulations. that are nol mandatory as of
Decernber 31, 2010. Despite in some cases, the A58 has aliowed for their earty adopbon, the Bank decided not to early adopt them,

1) Accounting Regulations lssued by the SBIF

Clreular No. 3,510 - On Oclober 8, 2010 the SBIF issued this crcular to adapt formats fo the new provision insfuctions and cover certain information needs
with a enhanced disclosure. Chapler C-3 replaced the "Monthly Finencial Statements” requirement of the Compendium of Accounting Standards. Changes
incorporated in this Chapler are cnly due to the elimination or creabion of certain lines or ilems staled in this circulars appandi:, which wil be enfarced starting
with the information referred to on Janusry 31, 2011.

%) Accounting Standards Issued by the Infernational Accounting Standards Board

IFRS 8, Financial instruments - On Movember 12, 2009 the [ASE isswed IFRS, Financial instraments. This stendard incorporates: new requiremnents: for the
classification and measurement of financial instruments and s eMfective for yearly periods baginning on or afler January 2013, allowing it 1o be adoptad in
advance. [FRS 9 specifies how an entity should ciagsaty and measure its financial insruments. It requires that all financial instruments be classified in her
enfirely on the basis of the entity's business model for the management of financial instruments and the features of the financial instruments cash flows
Financial assals are measurad by either amortized cost or fak value. Only Fnancial assels classified as measured v amortized cost will be lested for
Impairment. The Bank management, accarding fo SBIF, wil not apply this regilalion in advance, Ruthermore, Bis regulation will nol be appbed &5 jong as SBIF
does nol sel if as mandafory use standard for all balances.

Amendment to [FRS 1, First Time Adoption of IFRS - On December 20, 2010 the 1438 published certein amendments o [FRS 1, specifically.

() Elirmination of Fixed Dates for First Time Adaplers - These amendrments belp first tme adopters of IFRS by replacng the retrespective appicabion provisions
of 1435 39 for financial assets and liabilbes of *January 1, 2004" with the “ransition dale to IFRS". In this way, first ime IFRS adoplers do not have o apply the
derecognition requirements of 145 30 retraspectvely to a previous date and are allowed to recalculate “day 17 pains and losses over ransactions that ook place
before the fransition date to IFRS.

(s] Severa hypennfiation — These amendernents provide quidalines for entibes caming from a severa hyperinfiation, allowang tham at the ransition datls o IFRS
to measure all assets and lisbilities held before the nommalization of functional cumency date fo Tai value on the ransition o IFRS and use that fair value as the
deemed cost for those essels and liabilibes in the staterents of opening financial posibon under IFRS. Enbbes using this exemption will have o describe the
circunstances of how and why ther functional cumency was subjected to severe hypennfiation and the crcumstances that led to end hose conditions.

Thess amendments will be mandatonly applied for yearly pencds beginning on or after July 1, 2011. Early adopbon s allowed. The Bank canciders these
amendmaents wil have no efect on s fnancial statement since Il i nal & st fme adapler of IFRS.

Amendment to IAS 12, Income Taxes - On December 20, 2010 the ASE putlished Deferred taves. Recovery of Undenling Assels - Amendements [o IAS
12. The amendments provide an exceplion fo e general principle in A5 12 thal the measurement of delemed taxes should reflect the tax consequences that
would follow from the mannar in which the entity expects: tn recover the camying amount of an asset. The exempiion appies specifically fo deferred tax assats
&nd labilities cnginating from imvesiment proparBies measured using the far value model from 145 40 “Investment Property” and investment properfies acquirad
in & business combination, If ®is & measured using e 1AS 40 fair value model. The amendment incorporates the assumption that the current value of the
invesiment property will be recovered when sold, excepl when the property is depreciable and kept within a business moded that aims at corsuming substantialy
all economic benefits through time rather hhan through sale. These amendments shoul be refrospecively applied demanding a refssuance of all deferral tax
assels and kabiktes within the reach of this amendment, including those iniSally recorded in a business combination. These amendments wal be mandatorily
epphad for yearly periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2012, Early adoption i allowed. The Bank considers that these amendments will be adopled in is
financial stafements for the period beqinning on January 1, 2012, Management /s assessing the potential impac! of the adoption of these measures.
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NOTE 01 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, continued:

Amendment to [AS M, Related Party Disciosures — On Hovember 4, 2009 the ASE amendad |1AS 24, The revised sbindard simplifies the desclesure
requirernents for entibies controlled, joinBly-conirolled or significantly influenced by a government enbily (designated as governmentrelaled enlity) and clarlies
the related enfity definition. It is effective for yearly penods beginning on or after January 1, 2011, |t requires refrospective appiication. Therefore, on the first
Bdophion year, disclosures for comparative years should be reissued. Early adoption is aliowed, whether full or parfial for related government entibes. If an enlity
apples the standard, of part of i, for a period before January 1, 2011; i & demanded that this fact i disciossd. The company's management anScipates that
these amendmenis will be adopted in its finencial statements for the penod beginning on Janwary 1, 2011, Since the Bank i ot refated to 8 govemment entity,
the disclosure exernplions will not apply. However, some disclosures migh! be affecled by changes in the delalled defintian of & relaled party. This could reswl
in ehanges lo the disclsure of relaled parbies in the fnanclsl slalemeanis,

Amendment to IAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation = On October B, 2008 the 1438 amended 1AS 32, Financial Instrumenls: Presenlation, entiied
Claseificabon of Rights lssues. Under the amandments, nghte, oplions and warrants that in sorme way flfill the definibon in paragraph 11 of 165 32, istued 1o
sogqure a set number of non danivative equily msiruments belonging fo en entity for a sat amount in any cumency are classified as equity instuments s lang as
the offer is mada pro-rata ko all current owners of the same lype of equity mstrument. The amendment is effective for yearly paricds bagmning on or after
February 1, 2010; allowing for early adoption. The Bank considers thal ihese amendement wil be adopied in ifs Erancial stalements for the period beginning on
Jarwary 1, 2011, The management consigers this amendment will ave no signifcant impact on e consclidated financial stalements in the inilial appiication
period.

Improvements to IFRS — On May 08, 2010 the IASE issued mprovements fo IFRS 2010, incorporating amendments fo 7 IFRS, This is fhe third et of
armendmants ssued undar e yearly improvement process which wene designed to make necessary though not urgent modifiabons to IFRS, Amendments are
effective for yearly periods beginning on or afier July 1, 2010 and for yearly penods beginning on or after January 1, 2001, The Bank considers thal these
amendmenis will be adopted in #s fnancial siafements for ffre period beginning on January 1, 2011 The managemen! & curenlly assessing the polential
impact of the adapbon of thase amendmants.

Amendment to IFRS 7, Financial [nstruments. Disclosures — On Dciober 7, 2010 the 1458 issued Desclosures - Transfer of Financial Assets (Amendments
Io IFRS T Financial Insruments - Disclosures) which increases the disclosure requirements for ransactions imvokang the transler of financial assels. These
smendments aim at providing a bigger ransparency over nsk exposure of fransactions where a financial asset is transfemed but the: ransferring party retains
sorme level of continous expasure (referred o as ‘continous involvement) in the asset. The amandments alsa require disciosure when the Fansfers of financial
assets have not been evenly disributed during e period (Le. when ransfers take place close 1o the report peniod). These amendments will be apphed for
yeaﬁ'pendsbegmlrgmusﬂu'muaﬁﬂ 2011, Earty adopSon is aliowed. Disclosures are not requined for any of the perieds presented starbing before the
inibal apphcatan date of the amendments. The Bank s management is assessing the poleniial impact of the adoplion of these amendmanls.

Amendments fo IFRS § - Financial instruments - On Oclober 28, 2010 the IFRS published a revised version of IFRS 9, Financial Insfruments, The revised
standard keeps the requirements for classification and measuremnant of financial assats published on Moveber 2008 but it adds guidelines on classification and
measuremen of financial lablites. Az part of he restructuring of IFRS 9, the LASB has also reproduced the guidelines on derecognition of financial instruments
and related implamentation guidelnes from [AS 39 fo IFRS 9. These new guidelines constitule the first stage of the LASE project o raplace |AS 30, The other
stages, impaiment and hedge accounling, have nol yet been Bnished

The guidelnes included in IFRS 8 about the classiication and measurement of fnancial assets has not change from those established in [AS 39, In other wonds,
financial liabilibes will continue Io be measured by either by amortzed cost or fair value wath change in proft and lees. The concept of bifrcation of embadded
derivatives in & contract by financial asset has not change either. Financial Eabiibes held for rading wall continue 1o be measured at far value with changes 1o
profit and bess, and all ather financial assets will be measured fo amortized cost unless tha fair valua option is applied using the present criteria on 1AS 30,
Neswithstanding the tatbler, there are two differences with regards to 143 39

« The presantation of effects from changes in farr value afiributabie i 3 labiity's credit risk; and

= The elimination of the cost exemplion derivabive Eabilibes to be seted by gving unquoled equily instuments
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The Bank's Management, in agreament wilfy the SBIF will nol eary adopl this sfandard bl rather adopl if in the Groups fnancial statements for the period
beginaing an January 2013, The Bank has not had the chance lo consider the potenbial impact of he adopbion of this new shandard,

IFRIC 18, Extinguishing Financial Liabilittes with Equity Instruments - lssued on Novernber 26, 2009, This nterpretation prowides guidalines on how 1o
record the extinghisment of a financsal kability through the issuance of equity msruments. The interpretation concluded that issuing equity insruments 1o
extinguish an obigation consitisled the peid consideralion. The consideration should be measured at fair value of the issued equily insTument, unless the far
value 15 not easily determinad, in whach case, the equily instruments will be measwred al fair valee of the extingueshed obligaBion. The Bank’s Managemand
estimales ihat this inderpretation will be adopled i the Consolidlaled Financlal Statemends for the perfed beglnning on January 1, 2011, The Bank has nat had
the chance o consider the the pofantial impact of ihe adoption of these amendmenis,

Amendment to FRIC 14, 1AS 19 = Limit on a defined benefit assel, minimum funding requirements and their interaction - On December 2009, the IASE
issued Prepayments of @ minimum fanding requirements, amendments fo IFRIC 14, 1AS 19 — Limif on defined benef assels, minimum funding requirements
and their infaraction. The amandmeants have been camied out to remeady a non mtantional cansequence of IFRIC 14 in which if is forbidden for enliies in some
ciicumstances io recognize certain voluntary prepayments as assels. The Bank considers hat these amendments will be adopled in is fnancial statements for
the peviod beginning on Janwary 1, 2011, The Management considers this amendment wil have no significant impact on the Consofidaled Financial Stafements
in the inffial appiication peviod.
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NOTE 02 - ACCOUNTING CHANGES:

On Decamber 20, 2004 the SBIF Eseed Circular No. 3,480 which incorporales changes in several chaplers of the SBIF Compendium of Accounting Standards.
Amang other changes it states that starting on January 2010, an entity should complament the basts on which insohency provesans related o contingent
operalions are delermined, including unreskicied ines of credit, ofher confingent loans. and oiher loan comemitments provision, In addition, i should also apply
the changes in risk expasure applicable io contingent koans, fo be found in Chapter B-3 of the SBIF Compendium of Accounting Standards. The accumulated
effect of this iz approximatsly Ch$53 448 mllion (Ch$52,662 millon net of deferred txes), which was recorded in equity within the Consobdated Statements of
Financial Posifion. According fo specific msiructions from the S8IF in Letter fo Management Mo, 10 dated December 21, 2010; the SBIF establizhed that it will
ok be necessary 1o calculale refrospectvely the adjustment for 2008

On June 2010, the SBIF issued Circular Mo, 3,502 which instructs that ransitory provisions regulations enforced should be kept until the close of fe curent
pariod and also established, unti the end of the present year, a 0 5% minimum provision for fhe normal part of the loan portflio individually. In addition_ on the
Decernber 21, 2009 Letier to Management No. 9 the SBIF specified that the accounting treatment for the effects onginating from the application of fis minimum
provision i o record it in the income for the period. As of Decamber 31, 2010 tha adoplion of the changes mentioned created a charge to income of Ch§16 B45
millian (Ch$ 13,767 milion net of dalemed taxes),

On August 12, 2010 Circular Wo. 3,503 was ssued which includes cerfain modificalions fo provisions and impaired portiolio included in Chaplers B-1, B-2, B-3 y
C1. Such modfications will be enforced fom January 1, 2011 except from those relating to addibonal provisions included in Mo. 9 of Chapler B-1 which ara
enforced since 2010, In addibon, and 85 a supplement 1o the Circular, Letier lo Management Mo, 9 was ssted on December 21, 2010 which specfies that
adjusiments as & consequence of the adoption of fe modficaions starting on January 1, 2011 could be recorded during the first quarter of 2011; however,
thera &= nothing ko prevent enibes rom anticipating recagnition of thess adjustments, in total or in parts, as addibonal provisions, charged o the incoms for the
peried. As of December 31, 2010 the Bank has chosen o book the entire provision adjustments aforementioned, which created a Ch$38, 800 million (Ch832 587
million net of defemed taxas) mpact in the Consolidaled Skatements of Income, under the ofher operaling expenses ine
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NOTE 03 - SIGNIFICANT EVENTS:

As of Decermber 31, 2010, the following significant events have occurred and had an impact on the Bank's operations or the financial skatements

8) The Board

A Shareholders’ Meating of Banco Santander Chile was held en April 27, 2010, chaired by Mr. Maunias Lamain Gareds (Chairman), and atended by Jesis
Maria Zabalza Lotina (First Vice Presidend), Oscar von Chrsmar Caevajal (Secand Vice Pressdent), Vickr Arbull Crousillat, Claudia Bobadila Ferrer, Marco
Coladra Hadjes, Vittorio Corbo Lisl, Carlos Olives Marchant, Roberto Méandez Tomres, Lucia Santa Cruz Sulil, Roberts Zahler Mayanz, Raimunde Monge Jegers
{Alternate Drector), and Juan Manuel Heyos Marinez de Irujo (Alternate Direclor). Also, the CEO Clavdo Melandn Hinojosa and CAD Felipe Conkreras
Fajardo aliended the meeling

In Crclinary Board Meeting on December 28, 2010 the ressgnation of the Director Claudia Bobadilla Ferrer was accepted. No replacernent has been announced
et

Us# of income and Distribution of Dividends

According o the infiarmation presanted in the aloremantioned Board meeting, 2008 net income [designated in the fnancal statemants as “income attributable o
equity hoiders of the Bank?) amounted te CLPS431,253.139 805, The Board approved 1o deinbute 60% of such net income, which divided by the amount of
shares issued cormesponds toa CLPS 1,37308147 dividand per share, which wes payable starting on April 18, 2010, In eddition, the Board approved that 40% of
the remaining profit be destined 1o intraase the Bank's reserves.

bjIssuance of during 2010

In 2010, the Bank senior bonds in the amount of LF 19,000,000, USD 1,200,000,000, CHF 350,000,000 and CLP 247 255,000,000, The ssuance detail in 2010
is included m Nate 20

b.1) 2010 Senior Bonds
Date of

Series Amount Term Interest Rate Issuance Maturity Date
Fa UF 3,000,000 45 yearg 350 % per annum simphe 01172010 07004
Fg UF 3,000,000 5years 370 % par annum simpie 01012010 01012015
FA UF 3,000,000 4 years Tamaturity (bullef) 4/2m0 04n12014
B UF 3,000,000 5 years 3.0 %o yearly rate 0412010 40172015
FG wF 4,000,000 5 years 4.5 %o yearby rate 08012010 080172015
FD 3 3,000,000 5 years Tomaturity (buliet) O%01/2010 040172015
Total UF 19,000,000
Floating rate
nole uso 500,000,000 2 years Libor {3 manths} + 125bp 452010 04122012
Froed rate
bond usD 500,000,000 Syears 3,75 % anual smple DaAS2010 0ans2015
Floating rale
note uso 200,000,000 LE: ] Liber (3 moanths) + 100 bp 09152010 0ans20nm
Total usD  1,200,000,000
Fioating rale
note GHF 250,000,000 Syears Coupon 2.25% 11HGR2M0 NS5
Floating rale
note CHF 100,000,000 3years Liberr (3 raniths) + 100 bp 11162010 1116/2013
Total CHF 350,000,000
CLP band CLP 247 255,000,000 10 years Caupan §,5% DBS2010 09222020
Total CLP  247.255,000,000
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NOTE 03 - SIGMIFICANT EVENTS, continued:

b. 2) 2010 Subordinated bonds
In 2010, the Bank has issued the following subordinated bonds:

Date of
Series Amaount Term Interest Rate [ssuance Maturity Date
o4 UF 3,000000() 30 years 3.90 % yearly rate 0742010 0760172040

Total UF 3,000,000

0 As of December 31, 2010 UF 3.000,000 have been placed covenng the iolal issuance of senes G2

¢} Building sale

In 2010, the Bank sold 423 branches and 2 buildings. These ransactions are detailed in Note 36

di Change of Regizlered Name

On March 31, 2010 it was decided unanimously by a Special Shareholders Meeting fo ransform Santander Agente de Valores Sociedad Andnara inbo a imited
liabilty corporation, renamed Santander Agente de \alores Limitada

&) Asignment of Loans Previgusly Charged Off

In 2010, Banco Santander Chile sgned assignment agreements of loans previously charged off with "Fonda de Inversiones Canlabrice”, “Fondo de Invessiones
Nerte Sw,” end “Fondo de Inversiones San Elies”, As of December 31 the following sales of our portiolio loans have been camied out

Mominal poertfolio

Date of Sale Selling Price Provision (%) Gross

agreement MCh$ MChS MChS MCh$
45212010 29378 1,809 225 1,684
05242010 932 B0 250 30
DErE22010 8245 53 26 210
Orranoin 8237 535 23 812
OBZS2010 Bar4 552 56 496
OS2010 7532 456 125 i
102TR010 7.385 480 18 481
1172472010 10,218 664 a7 T
12202010 205,080 5,100 1.080 4020
1212010 7 .GE8 50 a7 473
12072010 2151 640 T 570
Total 333,859 12021 2197 8,824

{*} Prowision consfituled according to the recovery estimations expecied for payments recesved by the Bank unbl the date in which e lban poriolio is
effectively rermoved rom the Bank's records
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NOTE 04 - BUSINESS SEGMENTS:

The Bank manages and measures the performance of iks operabions by business segment. The informalion included in this note & not necessanly comparable
I that of ofher financial mstiubons, since i Is based on managements sagment inlernal mfarmation syslem which has been adopled by the Bank

Inter-sagment fransactions are conducted under normal arm's kength commercial terms and conditicns

Each segment's assels, kabilites, and income include Rems drectly atinbutable o the segment to which they can be allocated on a ressonable bass
The Bank is comprised of the following busingss segments:

Individuuals

a. Santander Banefe
Serves individuats with monthly incomes of Ch$150,000 to Ch$400,000, who receive senaces throwegh Santander Banefe. Thes segrment provides cusiomers a
variely of services, including consumer kans, credit cards, aulo loens, morigage loans, debit cards, savings products, mutusal funds, and insurance

b. Commercial banking
Senves indnaduals wath monfhly incomes in excess of Chs 400,000, This segment provides customers a variely of services, including consurer loang, credi
cards, auto loans, morigage loans, debit cards, savings products, mutual funds, commerdial loans, foreign trade, checking accounts, and insurance and solck
Brokerage

Il 2nd mid-szed ¢ n i

Serves small companies with annual sales of less than ChE1,200 milkon, This segment gives customers & varnely of products. including commercial loans,
government-guaranieed loans, leasing, factoring, foveign Fade, credt cards, morfgage leans, checking accounts, savings products, mubual funds, and
insurance.

nstitutiona

Sarves inshiubons such as universities, government agencies, and municipal and regional governments. This segment provides a vanety of products, including
cormmercial loans, leasing, factoring, foreign Frade, credit cards, morigage loans, checking acoounts, ransactional services, treasury senvices, savngs products,
mutual fureds, and insurance:

Companies

The Companies sagment is composed of Commercial Banking and company Banking, where sub-segments of medium-sized compenies (Companies), real
estals companses (Real Estale) and large conporations are found

8. Companies
Serves companies with annual sales exceeding ChE1,200 milion and up fo Ch$10,000 million. This sagment provides a wide vanaty of products, including
commercial loans, leasing, Bcloring, forexgn rade, credit cards, morigage loans, checking accounts, ransacional services, freasury senvices, financial
consulling, savings products, mutual funds, and inswance

b. Real estate
Thiis segment includes all the companies engaged in the real estate industry that camy out projects to sall properties to third parfies and all builders with
annual sales exceading Che BO0 million with no ceiling. These chants are offerad not only the raditional banking services but also specialized senices 1o
finance projects, mainly residential, with the aim of expanding sales of morigage loans

©. Large Corporations
Serves companies with annual sales exceading Ch510,000 milkon. This sagrment provides a wide vaniaty of products, including commercial loans, leasing,

factoring, foreign trade, credd cards, morigage loans, checking accounts, ransactional services, reasury senvices, financial consulling, investment banking,
savings products, muhal Rinds, and inswance
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NOTE 04 - BUSINESS SEGMENTS, continued:
Giobal Banking and Markets
The Global Banking and Mafkets segment i comprised of

a. Corporate
Fereign muitnational corporations or Chilean coporations whose sales exceed Ch10,000 million. Thes segment provides & wide vanety of products,
including commercial loans, leasing. facoring, foreign trade, aredit cands, morigage loans, checking accounts, ransactonal senices, freasury services,
financial consulling, investment banking, savings products, mutual funds, and insurance

b Treasury
The Treasury Division provides sophisticated nancsal products, mainly io companies in the Wholesale Banking area and the Companies segment. These
include products such &s short-term financing and fund raising, brokerage senices, derivatives, sacunization, and ofher customized products. The Treasury
area also handles infermediabon of positions and manages the Bank's invesiment porticlo

Corparate Activities ("Cther”)

This segment includes Financial Management, which develops giobal foreign exchange sructural position management funclions, involving the parent
company’s stuchural interest sk and hquidity nsk, The latler, through issuances and ubizabions. This segment also manages the Bank's parsonal funds, capital
allocation by unit, and the financing of investments made. The foregaing usually results in a negative confribution o inconme.

im addilion. this segment ancompasses all the intra-segment income and all he actvities not assigned 1o a given seqment o product with customers

The segments’ accounting policies are the same as those described in e summary of accouning policies, and are cusiomized fo meet he needs of the Bank's
management. The Bank earns mest of its income in the form of inferest income, fee and commission income and income rom firancial operations. To evaluate
& sagment’s financial performance, the highest decision making authonty bases his assessment on the segments interest income, fee and commission income,
and expenses. This assessment helps the Bank make decisions over the ressurces thal will be allocated bo sach segment.

To achieve the skalegic objectives adopled by the top management and adapt lo changing market condibons, the Bank makes changes in its organizabon from
time ta time, which in burn have a grealer or lesser impact on how it is managed or administered. Hence, this desclosure fumnishes information on how the Bank
iz managed a3 of December 31, 2010. The information for the previous year (2009) has been prepared on the bass of e criteria i force al the closing dale for
these inancial staterments, o achieve a proper comparability of figures,

To be prectse, as of January 1, 2010 the individual PYMEs, Institubonal, and Company segments now constitube Commencial Banking with direct report to the
CEQ. The Giobal Banking and Markets segment was kel reporting to the Organization Executive Vicepresident

The charts below show the Bank's incoma by business segmenl, for the periods ending &5 of Decermber 31, 2010 and 2009; in addibon o the balances
comespanding fo loans and accounts receivable from cusiomers as of December 31, 3010 and 2000
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NOTE 04 - BUSINESS SEGMENTS, continued:

As of December 31, 2010

Loans and accounts

receivables from Mt fea and Support Sagmant’s
cusiomers, net Met Interest commission ROF EHPENSRS net
{1} income income 2} Provisions (e} contribution
MChE MChS MChS MChS MCh§ MChS MChE

Segments
Individuals 8,407 416 524520 181,841 5027 (172110 (281,208) 258,470
Santander Banele T 660 115252 3213 15 (44 849y (656.272) 9
Commercial Banking 7683717 409 658 158,708 5012 (127 261) (224 535) 222191
Smiall and mid-sized
companies (PYMES) 2375192 175,538 34,450 7,168 (70,850) (67,059) 79,257
Institutional 331,153 28,609 2452 1974 (482) (10,108) 22445
Companies 3,288,107 114,450 0215 15047 {24,532) (32,623) 932 567
Companies 1,353,664 50440 11,298 7.150 [18,522) (15,736) M
Large Corporations 1.411,236 38,755 6121 7129 (B,498) [12,784) 30723
Real estate 523185 25,256 2796 768 888 14.043) 27 665
Commercial Banking 14,401 868 43,527 248968  ON6  [(267.974) (400,938) 452739
Global Banking and
Markets 1,293,305 81,503 23173 56,354 (2,570) (30,788) 127,382
Comporale 1,263,305 90,825 24452 1,445 {2.570) (11,582) 102,560
Treesury - (9.522) {1,279 54918 - (19,196) 4B
Other 32108 14,589 (8.558) 10,408 {1,019 (20,150) {4,431)
Total 15,727 282 939,719 263582 95988  (271,663) (451,936) 575,690
Other operating income E3.400
Other aperating expenses (102 06E)
Income from investmants m alher companies 1,171
Income tax paid (78.955)
Consolidated income for the period 479.234

(1) Gomresponds ta Loans and accounts receivable from customers, net (Ch8 15,215,383 mallion) plus interbank loans, net (ChS68 672 million), belore deduction
of their allswances for lean lpsses (ChE442 238 millkon and ChES4 milion, respactively), which were restituted for presentaion purposes in this teble

{2) Resulls from financial cperabons. Comespond fo the sum of Nel income from financial aperations (Ch§38,755 million) and foresgn exchange profit loss), net
(CHEST 233 million)

{3) Comesponds o the sum of Personnel salanes and expenses (Ch3250,265 milion), administaiive expenses (Ch$147,343 million), depreciation and
amerization (Ch349.403 milion) and mpairment (ChE4 525 millicn)
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NOTE 04 - BUSINESS SEGMENTS, continued:

As of December 31, 2009

Loans and accounts Met fea and Support Segment's net
recelvables from Net Interest commission ROF eXpenses contribution
cusiomers (1) income income (2 Provisions (2
MChS MCh$ MChS MChS MChS MChS MCh$§

Segments.
Individuals 7,287 925 532,060 17,433 19027 (230,503) (264,934) 223,083
Santander Banele 609,508 115840 29452 5078 (B2588) (54,913 12,869
Commercial Banking G.ET8117 416,220 141,881 13,049 (147 915) (214,021) 210,214
Small and mid-sized
companies (PYMEs) 2,485,505 228928 41917 11,037 (76,075 (58,741) 147,066
Institutional 262,933 16,789 1962 664 (32m) (8,758 14,289
Companies 24T1162 14,432 0,567 16,181 (24,333 (30,628 95,219
Companies 1,051,875 53407 9813 7,248 (8518 (15,988) 45 861
Large Corporations 436,349 43333 8416 8,785 {17,758) (10,359) 32,318
Real estaie 962,938 17,792 233 148 2041 (4.260) 18,038
Commercial Banking 12,527,525 B34 209 235,879 45909 (331,238 (365,102 480,657
Global Banking and Markets 1,194,706 337s 18,147 64,557 [2.511) (29,465) 85,045
Corparale 1,184,705 54728 19,387 5 @511 {14,803 56,806
Treasury - (20.980) (840 84,552 - (14,662 28,240
Others 19,045 T1,431) (496) 55,662 (98) (13,307) (29.670)
Total 13,751,276 856,516 254 130 167,128 (333,847) (407,894) 536,033
Cther operaling income 33243
Other operaling expansas {44, 405)
Incoma from investments in ofher companies A7
Income tax paid (88,962)
Consolidated income for the pariod 436,308

(1) Correspands bo Loans and eccounts receivable from customers, net (Che 13,378,379 million) plus inerbank loans, net (ChE23,370 million), before deduction
of their allswancas for lean leses (Chi 349 485 million and ChS 42 million, respectvely}, which were restifuled for presentation purpaeses in this table

(2) Resulls from financial operations. Comesponds o the sum of Met income from financial operabions (ChE 3,847 million) and forelgn exchange profit (loss). net
{CHS 153,241 millian}

{3) Corresponds lo the sum of Personnel salaries and expenses (Che 224 484 milion), adrminisirative expenses (Ché 135,712 millien), depreciation and
ameriization (ChS 46,623 milbon) and impairment (Ch 75 million)
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 05 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

a)  The detail of the balances included under cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

As of December 3,
2010 2009
MCh§ MCh$
Cash and deposits in banks

Cash 354,340 418.087
Deposits in the Cenfral Bark of Chile 1,312,111 9BBOTR
Deposits in domesfic banks 418 255
Deposits in fareign banks: 55,320 635238
Subtotals - Cazh and bank deposits 1,762,198 2043 456
Ursettied ransactions, net 714243 182 660
Cash and cash equivalents 1,836,441 2.236,118

The level of funds in cash and &t e Central Bank of Chile, which are incuded in the Deposits n the Central Bank of Chile™ ine, reflects reguiations goveming he
reserves that the Bank must msmntan on sverage in monthly penods

b}  Unsetifed transactions:

Unsettied fransachions are ransaciions in which only settlement remaing pending, which wall increase o decrease funds in the Central Bank of Chile or in foreign
banks, normally within the next 24 i 48 business hours from e end of each period. These fransactions are preseniad acconding o the following datail

As of December 31,
2010 2009
MCh§ MChE
Assols
Decuments held by other banks (documents bo be
exchanged) 207 3G 206 454
Funds recervable 167 022 261 680
Subtotals 74,368 468134
Liabilities
Funds payable 300,125 2715474
Subtotals 300,125 215474
Unsetiled transactions, net 74,243 192 660
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 06 - TRADING INVESTMENTS:

The detail of the msruments deemed as financial rading invesiments is as foliows:

As of Decembser 31,
2010 2009
MChS MChS
Chilean Central Bank and Government securities:
Ghilean Central Bank Bonds 24709 667,703
Chilean Central Bank Holes GB935 G3Bs5E
Other Chifean Central Bank and Govemment sacuribes 123 28,806
Subtotals 383927 761,377
Other Chilean securities:
Tire depogits in Chilean Snancsl instiutions :
Mortgage fnance bands of Chilean financial insbiubons - "
Ghdean fnancial inshiubons bonds 19628 -
Chilean conporate bonds 11,404
Other Chilean securibies - -
Subtotals 31,032 11

Foreign financial securities:
Foreign Central Banks and Governmen! secunbes
Other foreign financial insruments

Subtotals
Investments in mutual funds:
Funds managed by ralated entties 2651 mas
Funds managed by others : -
Subtotals 25511 kT B
Tatal 3IT96TD 798,539

Az of December 31, 2010 in the "Chilean Central Bank and Government securities” item there are no secinties sold with repurchase agreemant 1o chents and
financial insStuSons (Che 506,127 milion as of December 31, 2009)

Az of December 31, 2010 under Chilean and foreign securtties there are no securibes sold with repurchase agreement Io clients and financial institubons:
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ROTE O7 - INVESTMENTS UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS:
a)  Righis arising from resale agreements

The Bank purchases financial instruments agreeing 1o resell them at a fulre date. Ag of Decamber 31, 2010 and 2009 the instruments acquired under resale
agreements are as follows:

As of December M,
2010 2009
Fram 1 day Wore than 3 From 1 day More than 3
amd lnss Months and and less months and
than 3 ks thar 1 Mo than than 3 leas than 1 Mo than
months year 1 year Tatal manths year 1 year Total
MCHS MCHS MChs MChS WChs MChS MChs MChS

Chilean Central Bank and Gowvernment

securithes
[ 70 e FYii] 1402
and Gy
Subtotals 110525 - - 170,585 14020 - - 14,020
Othar Chilean securities:
Time deporils o O
Subiolals
Sublotals - -
Irvestments in mutuad funds:
Fumds managed
Sublotals
Total 110585 - = 170885 14.020 E - 14,020

Pursuant b the current SBIF standards, the Bank does ol record instumants acquined under repurchase agreaments as parl of ks oan porticho
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KOTE O7 - INVESTMENTS UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS, continued:

b} Obligations arising from repurchase agreements

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

& Santander

The Bank rames lunds by =alling financal insruments and committing itself o buy them back al Ruture dates, plus inlerast al 3 predatemmined rale. As of
December 31, 2010 and 2000 the instruments sold under repurchase agreements are as follows:

Az of December 39,
2010 Fitl]
Fram 1 day More than 3 From 1 day Ware than 3
and less it and More amd less minthe and Mare
than 3 less thanm 1 than than 3 less than than
months year 1 year Total muenths 1 yoar 1 year Tatal
MCHS MChS MChS MEhS MChS MChS MChS MGHS
Chilean Cendral Bank and Government
securnitios: 2 oo .
EY: 2 2 '.-"
21 21 21 21
143 541 143,54 413,681 405,089 gi0Em
136 835 51172 94 485 FL Y G4 T
12 2 139
150,248 838 151,184 94,824 108,311 203835
Tatal 23,780 935 204735 508,305 606,300 1,114,505
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santan CI'E‘F

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE O7 - INVESTMENTS UNCER RESALE AGREEMENTS, continued:

A5 of December 31, 2010 and 2009 e detail of instuments sold under repurchase agreements, by type of porticlio, is as folows:

As of December 31,
Pl 2008
Total Total
Bvailable for Trading Instruments Available for Tradirg Instriments
Sale porticlio Partfalis with agreement Sale porticlic Portfolic with agreement
MChHS MChS MChS MChE MChE MChs
Chikean Central Bank and Govemment
SBEUnties:
— ] A0 294 506 12
a 518
e b 2 y
Subiotals 144,034 - 144034 454,403 seeT
Other Chilean securities
Time: deparsits n Ghilean O 521 2 X 12
W =
2 12 163,114 1
Sublotals 152 138 . 152138 265 088 266,088
Foreig
Investments in mutual funds:
Fu ated entbes
Sublotals
Tetal 206,172 . 208,172 695 401 506,127 1,201,618
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 08 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING:

a) &) AsolDecernber 31, 2010 and 2009 the Bank holds the folowing portfolo of defivative instuments:

As of December 31, 2010
Notional amount Fair value
More than 3
Upto3 months to More than
meanths ol year one year Assols Liabilities
MCh§ MChS MChS MCh§ MChS
Fair value hedge derivatives
Currency forwards - - .
Interest rata swaps - - 702 206 5827 6,464
Gross cumency swaps 28,090 229,295 387 024 5.296 2873
Call cumency options v - - - -
Call interast rate options
Put currency oplions
Putinterest rate opbons
Inderest rabe fulures
Qther derivalives . - . .
Subtotals 28,080 229,266 1,089,330 11125 35,184
Cash flow hedge derivatives
Cumency forwards
Interest rale swaps - - - - -
Gross cUmency Swaps 147 672 %09, T2 39858 494 120,563
Call curency options . - - - -
Call interest rate options:
Put currency aplions
Pul inlerest rate opbons
Interest rate fulures
Oher darmvatives - - - - -
Subtolals 147,872 993,792 379,859 454 120,563
Trading derivatives
Gurrency forwards 10,374,003 6,830,128 TE2. 254 283,722 348,152
Interest rate swaps 2671634 T.607,152 13475904 204,788 250,812
Cross cumency swaps 1,081 608 2783653 10,061,745 1,123 547 BAT 222
Call currency opbons 20,724 29,247 836 0 213
Call interest rate options 3,076 16,650 50676 B2 1.269
Put cumency opbions 6,364 4906 - ] 385
Pul inkerest rate oobions - - - -
Inferest rate futures
Other danvalives 155,208 - - 122 149
Sublolals 14,353 618 17,271,816 24390515 1,612,761 1,488 222
Total 14,528,580 18,500,904 25856, 704 1,624,378 1643979
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Saﬂtandﬁ'r
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 08 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING, continued:

As of December 31, 2009
Notional amount Fair value
More than 3
Uptold maenths to More than
manths one year one year Assels Liabilities
MCh§ MCh§ MCh$ MCh$ MChS

Fair value hedge derivatives
Gumency forwards . . - - -
Inlerest rate swaps - B 963 580,132 2446 3o
Cross cumency swaps - 26,079 583035 16,572 B0S
Call curency options . ; z :
Call interest rate oplions
Put cuirrency opbons
Putinterest rate options
Inferest rate futures
Otiher danmatives - - - - -

Sublolals . 113,042 1,163,167 19418 4509
Cash flow hedge derivalives
Currency forwards
Inigrest rabe Swaps . . = L =
Cross cumency swaps 51,893 582 830 T35 4,141 52,31
Call curency oplions - - - - -
Call interest rate oplions
Put currency oplions
Put interest rate oplions
Interest rate futures
Qther damatves - - - - -

Sublotals 51,993 582,830 73,551 474 52,301
Trading derivatives
Currency forwards 6,533,147 4195874 587541 199,665 184,112
Interest rate swaps 2418,181 4,240 574 GE18573 243 865 330,875
Cross cumency swaps BET 842 1,504 872 5,880,693 922 498 172,85
Call cumency opbions 3 2,107 - 203 43
Call inferest rate options. 122 5188 30,800 281 505
Pul curency options 33,198 15487 - 3083 3232
Putinterest rale oplions . . .
Interest rate fulures - - -
Otier dervatives 28,520 . - 24 40

Sublotals 8,906,231 10,074,203 20,126,707 1,368,719 1,202,008
Total 9,588,224 10,770,075 21363425 1,393,678 1,348,906
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 08 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING, continued:

b}  Hedge Accounting

Fair value hedges:

The Bank uses aoss-cumency swaps, interest rate swaps, and call money swaps lo hedge its esposure to changes in the fair value of the hedged elements
afnbutable 1o inerest rates. The aforementoned hedge instruments change the effectihve cost of long-lerm Esuances from a fived inbenest rate 1o a variable

interest rate, decreasing the duration and modifying the sensitivity to the shortest ssgments of the curve

Bedow k= a detail of he hedged slements and hedge instrurments under far value hedges as of Decernber 31, 2010 and 2009, classshied by berm o raburty

As of December 31, 2010
Between 1 and 3 Between 3 and &

Within 1 year years years Ower § years
MCh§ MChS MCh§ MCh$
Hedged element
Chilean Ceniral Bank Bonds in Pesos (BCP)
Chilean Cenfral Bank Bonds in UF (BCL) - -
Coiparate bonds . 10,061 - -
Senior bonds . a4 380 354,852 49,591
Subordinated bonds . 475 140,365 -
Short-tim boans . 26000 -
interbank loans 210,581 .
Time depests 48,7895 4840 -
Merigage bonds: . - 74,95
Total 257,386 455,536 459 247 124,547
Hedge instrument
Cross cumency swap 257 388 45 796 265,272 74,958
inberest rale swap . 385,100 233975 -
Call money swap . 20,640 . 48,591
Total 257,386 465,536 459,247 124,547
As of December 31, 2009
Between 1 and 3 Between 3 and &
Within 1 year years years Ower & years
MCh§ MChS MCh$ MChE
Hedged element
Chilean Cenfral Bank Bonds in Pesos (BCP) - - 10,330 I
Chilean Central Bank Bonds in LF (BCU) . B3L113 ST 31,568
Corporate bonds - : 10,006 .
Senior bonds - 405,800 -
Subordinated bonds . 111,585 152,175 :
Short-term loans - - 25,000 2,19
Inerbank loans - 131,885 . :
Time depasites 113,042 4640 ’
Marlgage bonds - - - 78,870
Total 113,042 TIN033 256,312 169,822
Hedge instrument
Cross cumancy swap 26,079 214908 220 406 147,631
Inkerest rale swap 71,963 517395 10,506 .
Call money swap 15,000 4540 25,000 2,19
Total 113,042 737,033 256,312 168,822
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 08 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING, continued;

Cash flow hedges

The Bank wses cross cumency Swaps o hedge the rsk fom variability of cash fows alirbutable ko changes in the mterest rates of bonds and miabank leans at
@ vanable rate. The cash flows of the cross cumency swaps equal the cash flows of the hedged items, which moddy uncertain cash flows to known cash flows

demved from & fixed interest rate

Bedow is the nominal ameunt of the hedged ilems as of Decemnber 31, 2010 and 2009, and the pericd when the cash fows will be generated

As of December 31, 2010

Within 1 year Between 1 and 3 years  Belween 3 and 6 years Cwver § years
MCh§ MCh§ MCh$ MChS

Hedged element

Inverbank loans 437,087 450930

Bonds 210,577 283,920

Total 1,147 654 379859

Hedge instrument

Cross curmency swap 1,147 654 379 856

Total 1,147 654 379,859

As of December 31, 2009
Within 1 year Between 1 and 3 years  Between 3 and 6 years Qver § years
MCh$ MCh§ MCh§ MCh3

Hedged element

Interbank loans 634 823 13551

Bonds . .

Total 634 823 73,551

Hedge ingirument

Cross currency SWwap 634,823 73551

Total 634,823 73,551

52




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santa ﬂdfr
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 08 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING, continued:

Bedow i an estmate of the periods in which he cash lows ane expected 1o be produced

As of Decemnber 31, 2010
Between 1and 3 Betwean 3 and 6

Within 1 year years years Over 6 years
MCh$ MChs MChS MChS
Hedged element
Inflows - -
Outfiows (17,627) (5,656)
Net flows (17,627) (5,606)
Hedge instrument
Inflows: 17 627 5696
Outfiows (30,044 {8,772)
Net flows (12.417) (4.078)
As of Decernber 31, 2009
Between 1and3 Between 3 and 6
Within 1 year YEars years Ower 6 yoars
MCh§ MChs MCh$ MChS
Hedged element
Inflows - -
Outficws (7.570) (1.487)
Net flows {7,570) (1.487)
Hedge instrument
Inflpws 1.570 1 487
Outhicrars {2,570} {938)
Net flows 5,000 549
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 08 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING, continued:

The income generated by cash Nlow hedges whose effect was recorded in the Consoldated Statement of Changes in Equity &= of December 31, 2010 and

<
2009, iz shown below
As of December 31,
2010 2009
MCh§ MCh§
Senior bands - -
Loan 11,658 (3.162)
Net flows 11,958 (3,163
Since the variable flows for both the hedged element and the hedging element mimor each othes, the hedges are nearly 100% efficient, which means that
the Auctuations of value atiributable to rate components are netied out aimost completely. As of December 2010, the hedge neffectweness recorded in
the consoldated stalement of income was ChS 2 million loss
In 2010, the Bank recorded a future cash flow hedge with regards fo a syndicated loan granted fo Banco Santander Chile and struchured by Standard
Charferad Bank for LISD 175 millian
d} Below 5 a presentafion of income generaded by cash flow hedges whose effect was Franslerred from ofher comprehensive income [o income for the

period

Snca the vanable flows for both ®e hedged element and the hedging element mimar each alher, the hedges are 100% afficient, which means that the
fuchiations of value atirbutable io rale components are netied cul almost completely

As of Decernber 31,

20 20049

MChS MChS
Bonds -
Lean [66)
[66)

et income from cash flow hedges -
€] Nefinvesiment hedges for foreign businesses

Az of Decernber 31, 2010 and 2009, the Bank does nol present net foreign invesiment hedges in its hedge accounting por oo,
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 0% - INTERBANK LOANS

3

b}

a) M Decernber 31, 2010 and 2009, the balances in the "|nterbank loans™ ilem are as bllows

& Santander

As of December 31,
2010 2009
MCh§ MChs

Domestic banks

Loans and advances fo banks

Dapazits in 1he Central Bank of Chile

Montansferable Chileen Central Bank Bonds

Oither Canftral Bank of Chile lnans -
intertark loans 17
Owerdrafig in checking accounts -
Montransferable domestic bank loans

Other dornestic bank loans

Allowances and impaimment for domes$c bank loans

Foreign banks

Leans fo foreign banks 6o.704
Crverdrafls in current accounts -
Nontansferable foreign bank deposits

Other foreign bank loans -
Allowances and impairrent for foreign bank loans 154)

Total 68,672

The amount in each period for allowances and imparment of inferbank loans, which are included in the ©

Consoldated Stalement of Income, is shown balow

23,404

{42)

233710

Frovisions for loan losses”™ item of the

As of December 31,
210 2009
Domestic Fereign Domestic Fereign

banks banks Total banks banks Total

MChHS MChS MCh§ MCh§ MChS§ MChS
Az of January 1 . a2 42 35 15
Charge-offs - - -
Aligwances establshed . 13 13 7 7
Alwinces rolinsed : (119 (118}
Totals . 54 54 - 42 42
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 10 - LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS:
a)  Loans and accounts receivable from customers

Az of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the composition of the koan portiolo is as Tolows

Assels before allowances Allgwances established
B of Decombor 31, 2010 Nemmal Substandard Individual Group
portfolie loans 4 Tatal allowances allvwances Taital Mot assets
MChS MChS MChS MEhS MChS MCh§ MEhS
B80T 17

TB3 557

Ccusinmers 28653 14,565 1788
Subiotals TAvE B8 o BINS A2
Maortgage loans
4454 13g 0
53,323 14354
74 BES 433 ETA
Subtotals 4508 491 142,648 4,651,037
Consumer lsans
412138 1,504 503
21 754 216
7 ATH
14,324 250255
Subiotals 420018 2,700,720
Tatals 14177,080 1480478 15,657 556

5576 3658 4 564 B284
113,405 B2 e T 8106202
445 46
11,319 11,318
5,567 5567
. 1133 17332

75,173
2475231

113,405

320,833

442,238 15015318

Accofding o Tille |, arbcle N, 2 of Chapler E within the Compendium of Accourntng Sandards issued by the SBIF, unbl Movember 30, 2009, banks ware nat
obligated to aulomatically include lnans when a deblor subject o group evaluations had cbligations that wese current or had a past due balance less than 90

days in the impaired portiolo calculabion

("} Since December 1, 2008, under this concept e Bank inclides 100% of ihe lcans or acoounts receivables fom cusiomers of a debior subject o group
evaluation when any of fer loans are overdue for 90 days or more, regardiess as to whather the loans are cumrent, past due less than 90 days, of past due,
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NOTE 10 - LOANS AND ACCOLUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS, continued:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

& Santander

Assots before allowances

Allowances established

A of December 31, 2009 Noimal Individual Group
¢ portfelio  Substandard loans Tatal allpwances  allowances Tatal Mt pasets
MChS MChs MCHS MChS MChS MChS MChS
124 275
2027
1570
2388
7838
recenabies fom 1028 542 5616
Subtotals 6,450,424 166,430 7158323
Martgage loans
Ldrres with leflers af cradt 169 427
139 B0
717,188 B
Subtotals 4,008,905 132,148 4,158,053 - 16,534 16,534 4142518
432 120 130 532
22352 443
388 ] ] 3826
24 481 11,538 11538 M3 695
Subtotals AT0,251 - 166,512 164,512 2,077,837
Totals 12,042,127 1485737 13727 884 Te.zET 271,188 349,485 13378378
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santaﬂdf_'r
HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
ROTE 10 - LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS, continued:

b}  Portfolic characteristics:

A5 of Decermber 31, 2010 and 2004 the portfolo befora allowances has the fallowng defail by customer ecanomic actity

Distributicn

Domestic loans [*) Fareign loans ') Teotal loans parcentage

As of December 31, As of December 31, #As of December 31, As of December 31,

2o 2009 X010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

MChS MChS MChS MChS MCh§ MCh$ % %
Commercial loans.
Manufacturing B38,3M4 540,385 . . 838,324 640,385 GR 4,56
Mming 106,119 67,057 - - 106,118 &7,0a7 067 0.4%
Electricity, gas and waler 149 807 144 386 - - 140 907 144 385 085 1.05
Agriculture and Inesiock 679,159 610,509 . . 675,158 610,804 4.1 444
Forest B4.375 71,085 - - B4 375 71,085 U 0.52
Fishing 133,00 127,025 - - 133,930 127,025 085 0.83
Transport 440,508 362 508 - - 449 508 352 508 FE ] 264
Communications 714,581 164,077 = = 214,881 164,077 137 1.20
Consfruction £30,316 817,203 - - 830,316 BI7,203 534 5.85
Commerce 1,732 800 1,650,903 65, 709 23408 1,802 509 1,674 312 1146 1203
Services 58,314 268,255 . . 358,314 288,255 228 2,10
Others 2718013 2,3808M - - 2718,013 2,380,871 1729 1734

Sublotals B,305546 7,324,765 69,709 23,409 8375355 7,348,174 53.26 5335

Mortgage loans 4 651,137 4,158,053 - - 4 651137 4,159,053 2957 30,30
Consumer loans 2700780 2,244,049 - - 2,700,780 2,244,049 1747 16.35
Totals 15,657,573 13,727 867 58,709 23409 15727 282 13,731,276 J00.00 100.00

('} Includes domestc loans to financial institufians for Ché17 million as of December 2010 {ChE3 million as of December 2005)

{**) Includes foresgn loans b financal institutions for ChE6S. 708 millon as of Decernber 31, 2010 (Ch$23,409 milkon as of Decamber 31, 2009).
Sae MNote &

38




& Santander

BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ROTE 10 - LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS, continued:

¢} Substandard keans

i} Asof Decernber 31, 2010 and 2008, the compasition of the substandard loans porifobo s as follows:

As of Decembar 31,
2010 2008
Commarcial Mortgage Consumar Tatal Commarclal Mongage Consumar Taital
MEhS MChS MChS MEhS MChS MCHhS MChS MEhS
IA0UA akowa
Totaks 88881 142 548 45,015 1,480,478 e 122148 479,251 1485007
i) The impaired secured and unsacured loan partfalio a5 of Decernber 31, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:
As of Decomber 31,
2010 2009
Commercial Morigage Consumer Tatal Commercial Morgage Consumer
MChS MChS MCh$ MCHS MChS MChS
Totasls £EBEN 142 645 449,019 1,480,476 122148 479,251
iif} Tha portfolio of koans with amears equal b o grealer than 50 days as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, is a5 follows
As of December 31,
2010 2009
Commarcial Martgage Congumar Taital Commerclal Mangage Consumar Taital
MChs MChS MChE MChS MChS MChS MChS
Totaks 213872 121,811 B, 58 418,738 185,163 130,118 BITES 40 DET




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ROTE 10 - LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS, continued:

d} Allowances

Theer allowance acthibes in the 2010 and 2009 periods are as lollows:

& Santander

As of December 31,
2010 2009
Individual Group Individual Group
allowances allowances Tatal allowances allowances Tetal
MCh$ MChS MChS MChS MCh$ MCh$
As of January 1 TE.HT 271,188 349 485 54,01 220,114 274,205
Partiolio charge-offs:
Commearcial loans {12 541) (58,335) {70, 878) (4,858 43.220) [4B,118)
Merigage loans . {14.548) {14.545) . {8,708) {B,708)
Consumer loans - {121,621) (121.621) [235.005) (#30,005)
Tofal charge offs (12 541) (194,505 (207 046) (4,838) (290,933) (#35,831)
Allowances establshad BB ATT 768,920 327,307 373 383,670 308,409
Mlowances released (10,B28) {16.770) {27 508) (5.635) {21.66%) (27, 28)
Totals as of December 31 113,405 128,833 442,238 T8 27 71,188 349,485

In addtion to thesa loan less alowances, there are allowances o mitigate counfry rigk for foreign operations, which are recorded as iabilibes under the ilam

“Provsians”

Allwances for available fnes of credit as of December 21, 2010 come b ChE34 545 million and are recorded as "Available ne of credd provision” under the

“Provisions” line (bem in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Posibon (See hote 22a)

The additional prowvision of Chapler B-1 of the Compendium of Acccunting Standards at the and of December 2010 comes ke ChE39 800 millon and & recardad

#s “Chapler B1 additional provision” under the Consobdated Statements of Financial Position (See Nabe 22a)




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santan der
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ROTE 11 - LOAN PURCHASES, SALES AND SUBSTITUTIONS:

In 2010 the foliowing loan rading operations were conducted

As of December 31, 2040
Book value Sales value AMllowances  Effect on Income
MCh$ MChS MChS MChE
Lean item
(1) . 12,021 2,197 9824
(2) 7.547 10,120 E 2573

(1}  The Bank sold part of is loan portfolio fat had been charged off. The total ransker value was Che12,021 milion, which was reconded ag income from
sale of charged-off portfolia in its enbrety, minus its comesponding alowance for ChE2,197 mallion, leaving a net effect of Ch§ 8,824 milkon cn income

{2)  Sale of current portfoko totaling ChT 54T million equal to UF 352128 19, generating income fom portiolio sale of approcimately Chs2,573 million

In 2009 the felowing loan Fradeng oparalbons wena conducted

1

Book valua Sales value Allowances Effect on income
MChs MCh$ MCh$ MCh§
Loan item
{1 - 8589 - 8,689
2} 14,847 15,389 - 542

{1}  The Bank scid part of &s boan portfobo ®at had been charged off. The ransfer of rights was done in November 2009 for Ch$8 689 mullion, which was
recorded as income from sale of charged-off portiolio in its entirety.

(2) Sale of current partfabo totaling ChS 13,359 million, generaling meome from portiolis sale of approximately ChE542 milion
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ROTE 12 - AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS:

A of December 31, 2010 and 209, the detail of Snancial insiruments designated as available for sale invesiments is as follows:

& Santander

Ag of December 31,
2010 2009
MChS MCh§

Chilean Central Bank and Government securities
Chilean Central Bank Bonds: 555981 1063879
Chilean Central Bank Noles w620 24011
Oer Chilean Central Bank and Gavernmen! sacurites 175,208 212352

Subtotals 1,097 487 1,540,252
Other Chilean securities
Time depasits in Chilean financial institutions - 41407
Martgage finance bonds of Chilean financial instituions 18112 E36 847
Chilean Enancial irstilution bands - -
Chilean coparale bonds - 11,584
Qmher Chilean securiies 147 833 -

Subtotals 365,945 280,838
Foreign financial securities:
Fereign Central Banks or Government securilies .
Ofher foreign financial securibes 10548

Subtotals 10,548
Tetals 1,473,980 1,830,090

Chilean Ceniral Bank and Government securiies include instuments soid under repurchase agreements with customers and financial instituions fotaling Chs

144,034 milkan and Ch$ 428,403 milkan a5 of Decermber 31, 2010 and 2009, respactively

The oiter Chiean secuntes include instuments sold under repurchase agrrements with clients and financial institubions lotaling Ch&152,138 milion and Chi

266,088 milkon a5 of Decernber 31, 2010 and 2009, respectely

Az ol Decamber 31, 2010 available for sale investments included unraalized net losses of ChE18.596 million, recorded as a “Valuation adustment in Equity,
distributed between Ch318,341 milkon atiributable fo Bank shareholders and ChE255 milion atiributable to non confrolling infenest

A5 ol December 31, 2009 awvallable for sale mvestments included unrealized net losses of Ch529.304 million, recorded as a “Valuabon adusiment in Equity.
distribuled between ChE28, 132 milkon atiributabile fo Bank shareholders and Ch5172 million atiributable fo non confrolling inlerest
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santan der
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
ROTE 12 - AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS, continued:

Realzed profits and losses are calculated as the proceeds Fom sales less te cost (specific identificalion methed) of the investments kentfied as for sale. In
addiban, any unrealized profit or loss previously recorded in equity for these investments is reversed and recorded in the Consolidated Statemants of Income

Gross profils and losses realized on the sale of availeble for sale ivesiments as of Decamber 31, 2010 and 2008, are as follows:

As of December 31,
2010 2008
MCh§ MChS
Proceeds from sale of available for sale imvesiments generating realized profits 6653426 5577210
Resalized profits 20832 5817
Proceeds from sale of available for sale investments generating realized losses 3E31670 1,830,765
Realized losses 29151 9542

The Bank reviewed its financal insruments with unrealized losses as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and concluded thal fene was no ofher fhan lemporary
imparmend. This review consisied of evaluating the econemic reasons for any declines, the credit ratings of the securiies” issuers and the Bank's intenfion and
abilty bo hold the securties untl the unrealized loss s recoversd Based on this analyses, the Bank believes that theve were no other than flamporary
imparments in itz investment partfolio, since most of the decine in fair value of hese securibes was caused by market conditions which the Bank considers fo
be femporary. All of the instruments that have unrealzed bossas as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, were in & confinuous unreslized loss position for less than

one year

The realized value and far value of the available for sale investments as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
ROTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2010 AND 2000

WOTE 12 - AVAILASLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS, continued:

Thie Toliowirg charis show T menilable for sale irvesiments in unneaioed prof [loss) as of December 31, 2080 and 2003

& Santander
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES '& Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2040 AND 2009

WOTE 12 - AVAILASLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS, continued:
Az of Dacember 31, 2000:
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 13 - INVESTMENTS IN OTHER COMPANIES

a)  The Consohidaled Statements of Financial Position reflact mvestments in ather companies amounting to ChET 275 milion as of December 31, 2010 and
CHET 417 mallion as of December 31, 2009, as shown in the follawing table
Irmvestment
Participation in
Ownership interest Carrying value income
As of December 31 As of December 31, As of December 31
2010 2008 2010 Faili}] 2010 2009
% % MChE MChS MChE MChE
Company
Centro da Compensacidn Automatzada 3333 3333 351 4 47 18
Redoank 5.4 3[4 3343 1,633 1,758 135 ik
Transbank 5.A 2N RN 2,087 2262 kL Hn7
Sociedad Inferbancana de Depasito de Valores 5.4 2928 2928 451 415 125 53
Sociedad MNews 5.0 12,50 1250 841 2Fdl 114 54
Adminisirador Financiero ded Transanbago S A (2) 000 20,00 776 583 3 (614}
Camara Compensacitn de Al Valor S.A. (7) (5) 1265 1265 451 422 55 5
Subtotals 6,670 6,693 1147 165
Shares or rights in other companies
Bladex 138 136 10 .
Botsas de Comercio (B) - 287 358 . a1}
Others (1) {4 (8) (T) - . 182 30 14 63
Totals - . 115 TMT 1. 27
{1}  On March 24, 2010 Socedad Santander 5.A. Coredores de Bolsa bought a share Fom CCLV Conbraparie Central 3.4, an affikate of Bolsa de
Comercio de Santiago which manages compensation Sysiems and liquidation of financial instruments for variable income and derivative markes. The
purchase price came b Chs4 milion
{2} On Moverber 30, 2009 fhrough a letier sent to the Supermbendency of Securibies and Insurance. the company Adminstkador Financiero del
TransanBago SA. informed fal, in accordance with e adopbion of IFRS reguisbons & proceeded o modify its equty as of Decambar 31, 2009,
recognizing accurnulaled eamings for UF 210,750 held previously as deferred liabikties. Banco Santander Chile recognized that higher invesiment
value against accumulated income for ChS B53 millicn
(3]  OnApnl 21, 2009 Banco Penta 2okd and ransfemed to Banco Santander Chile 55 shares from the Cimara Compensacion Alte Valor 5.4 amounting 1o
ChE 16 milion
{4) On March 10, 2009 Visa Inc. Fansferred fo Banco Santander Chile 34,093 shares in class LAC. On March 20, 2008 51% of these shares were sold,
coespanding o 17,387 shares at ChS27, 442 million genarating gain of ChE 477 million recorded in the line ofer operaiing income in the Consolidated
Stataments af income
{5) On March 9, 2004 Banco Ripley sold and ranslerred fo Banco Santander Chile 54 shares from the Cémara Compensacion Alie Valor 5.A. amounting fo
Ch§ 16 million
{6} On August 18, 2009 36 SWFT shares were soid. Al the fime of sale their book value was Ch345 million and their sales price was ChE 51 million,

genarating a ChE & million gam on sale




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
KOTE 13 - INVESTMENTS IN OTHER COMPANIES, continued:
{7

On March 12, 2009, \Visa Inc. Fansferred to Banco Santander Chile 312 373 shares in class C senes 1. On March 28, 2008 55 19% of these shares
were 2ok, comespanding 1o 175,512 shares al $19,190 each generating a Ch$ 3,368 million gasn on sake.

{8}  OnJanuary 14, 20049 the atfilate Santander 5.4, Comedores de Bolsa sold ane share from Bolsa de Comercio da Sanaga. At the tme of sale, fts book
value was Ch 341 million and sales price was ChS 1,345 milion generating a gamn on sale of ChE 974 million

During 2010, the Bank recaned Ch$1,081 milion (ChH833 millan in 2009) a8 dividends from its refated companies

b}  Activity with respect bo invesiments in other companies during 2010 and 2009 Is as follows
As of December 31,
2010 2009
MCh§ MChE
Initial book value 7417 T.2TT
Aoguisibion of invesiments 4 32
Sale of investments . (20%)
Parficipation in income of investments 1171 287
Dividends received (1,081) (8a3)
Oiher equity adjustments (F3E) 853
Totaks 7,275 TAT

€] Imvestments in other companies have not undergone any impairment in 2010 and 2009
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 14 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

aj A5 of Decamber 31, 2010 and 2008, the compasition of the item is as follows

2010
Opening
balance
Remaining January 1, Gross Accumulated
Useful life amortization 2010 balance amortization Net balance
MCh$ MChS MCh§ MCh$
Licerses 3 2 1544 6229 (4.121) 2,108
Software davelopment k| 16 75,716 150,000 (74.208) 75,882
Tatals 77,260 156,318 {78,329 17,990
2009
Opening
balance
Rermaining January 1, Gross Accurmulated
Ussful life amortization 2004 balance amortization Met balance
MCh§ MChS MCh$ MCh$
Licanses 3 1.8 1732 4422 (2.878) 1,544
Saltware devalopment 3 2 66,500 123539 (48.223) 15,718
Totals 68,232 128,361 (51,101) 17,260
b}  The achvity in infangible assats duning 2010 and 2008 is as bllows
b.1) Gross balance
Software
davalopment
Licenses [acquired) Todal
MCh$ MCh$ MCh$
Gross balances 2010
Opening balances as of Janwsary 1, 2010 4422 12393 128361
Acquisitions 1,807 26524 28,331
O - (373) (373)
Balances as of December 31, 2010 6,229 150,090 156,319
Gross balances 2009
Opening balances as of Januwary 1, 2009 %) 3154 B1.207 54 401
Acquisiions 1,228 TR 33960
Qfher . : .
Balances as of December 31, 2009 4422 123,939 128,361

{*) On January 1, 2009, intangible assabs wera recorded at their amorieed cost value, netof sccurmulated amoriization
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 14 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS, continued:

b.2) Accurmulated amortization

Software
development

Accumulated amortization Licenses {acquired) Tatal

MChS MCh$ MChS
Opening balances as of January 1, 210 (2.878) (48,223) (51,101}
Amortization for e period [1.243) (5,985) (27 226)
Omer changes in book value in the peniod . :
Balances as of December 31, 2010 (4.121) (T4,208) (78,329)
Opening balances as of January 1, 2008 (*) [1,462) (24,707) (26,168
Amortization for the period [1.418) (23.516) {24933
Ofer changes in book value in the peniod - - .
Balances as of December 31, 2009 (2,678) (48,223) 51,101)

{*) On January §, 2009, intangibla assats were recorded at their smortzed cost value, net of accumulaled amortization




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ROTE 15 - PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

a) Aol December 31, 2010 and 2008, the composibion af the dem is &5 follows

2010
Opening
balance Gross Accumulated
January 1, 2010 balance depreciation MNet balance
MChS MCh§ MCh3 MChS
Land and buikdings 161,922 155,621 (29,271} 126,550
Equipment 13,31 42,757 (22,411) 20,344
Ceded undar operating leases 689 1,840 (38) 1,802
Ofher BA20 18,043 (12, 656) 6,287
Totals 184,122 219,361 (64,376) 154,385
2009
Opening
balance Gross Accumulated
January 1, 2009 balance depreciation MNet balance
MChs MChE MChE MChs
Land and buildings 170,197 180,858 (18,548) 161,822
Equipment 15,597 27993 (14,602) 13,39
Ceded under operating leasas 4082 27 {28y Gaa
Oher 10,503 17,513 (9.353) 8120

Totals 200,349 M [42.979) 184022




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ROTE 15 - PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT, continued:

b}  The actvity in property, plant, and equipment during 2010 and 2008 is as fallows

& Santander

b.1) Gross balance
Land and Ceded under
200 buildings Equipment operaling leasas Others Todal
MGChS MCh$ MChS MChS MCh§

Opening balances as of January 1, 2010 180,868 Fof ] T 17,513 Frifiul
Additons TEM 7781 £ 333 19,001
Dizpasals (i) (26,96:8) [235) . [114) (27 31T
Impaimment due to damage (4.73%) (186} . . (4 525)
Transfars . . 745 . T45
Other {1,224 T 404 368 [1.792) 4,756
Balances as of December 31, 2010 155,821 42757 1,840 18,943 218,381

{if Due fo the earfhquaks on February 27, 2010 Banco Santander Chile had o record impairments in s Decamber 31, 2010 financial statemeants for some
of s offices located on the damaged zone in the amount of Chid, 738 milion. In addiion, a Chi185 million impairment has been reconded as
comesponding to damages o ATMs. Reimbursements received from insurance totaled Ch$3, 175 million, which are presented in the “ofher cpesating

income" line (Mate 36)

#s indicated on Note 3 "Significant Events™, letier ¢, in 2010 fhe Bank sokd 43 branches and 2 buildings which, at the fme of sale, had a net book value of

approvimately ChE25, 110 million

Land and Ceded under
2009 bulldings Equiprment operating leases Others Tatal
MChS MChS MCh§ MCh$ MCh

Opening balances as of January 1, 2008
[i) 178,502 22890 4161 16,150 221,803
Addi®ons 5730 5085 . 941 11,756
Dispasals (i) (2,630 m {4,161) {15) (B.E24)
Impaimment due to damage ) . 75) . . 75)
Transfers 7E . 727 Loy 441
Otthes - - - -
Balances as of December 31, 2008 180,858 27,893 21 17,513 2710

{iy During 2008 the Bank recorded impaimment due fo damage b property, plant and equipmeant (ATM) otaling ChETS million. The rembursements payment
recened from e insurance compary for this damage i shown in "Other revenues” in the Consolidated Statement of Income

(i} On Decamber 31, 2004 the Bank sold a bulding it had recesed in payment, locatad al calle Bandera Mo 201, to IM Trust Administradara General de
Fondos for Fondo de Inversidn Privado Inmoblliano Bandera, a private real estate imvestment fund.
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ROTE 15 - PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT, continued:

b.2) Accurmulated depraciation
Land and Ceded under
A0 buildings Equipment operating leases Others Total
MChS MChS MCh§ MCh§ MCh$
Opening balances as of January 1,
20 (18,945) (14,602) (38) (0393 (42,579
Depraciation charges in tha pafiad (11.103) {7.B0a)y - (3.263) (22.175)
Sales and disposals in the period e 778
Other - - - . -
Balances as of December 31, 2010 (29,271) (22,411) (38) (12,556) (64,378)
Land and Ceded under
2004 buildings Equipment operating leases Cthers Total
MChs MChE MCh$ MChS MCh§
Opening balances as of January 1,
2009 {8.305) {7.393) (68) (5,647) (21.414)
Depraciation charges in the pariod (10,705) (7.208) (31) (3.748) (21,691)
Sales and disposals in the period 64 2 13
Other . - - . .
Balances as of December 31, 2009 (18,945 (14,60 [38) (8,383 (42,575)

¢}  Asof December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Bank has operabing leases which cannot be unilaterally rescinded. The information on fulure payments is broken
diowm a5 lallows:

Upto 1 year From1ito 5 Maore than 5 Total
As of December 31, 2010 . . 2276 2276
As of December 31, 2000 . . 2463 2453

d}  Agof December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Bank has no financial leases which cannot be unitateraily rescinded
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 16 - CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES:
aj Current taxes

At the end of each year fe bank recognizes a Provision for Income Tax, which is delermined based on the cumently applicable tax legislation This provision i
racorded nel of laxes recoverable, &s shown as follows

As of D ber 31,

2010 2009

MChS MCh$
Summary of cument tax llabilities (assets)
Curent tax (assels) (12.409) (4.541)
Cument kax (liabililies) 1.293 G381
Total tax payable (recoverable) {11,208) 59,290
{Assets) liabilities current taxes detail (nef)
Income tax, tax rate 17% 82593 106,682
Mirus:
Provisional monthly payments (FPM) (96,245) (41,061)
Credit for training expenses {1,328 (1.148)
Oithers 6,226) (5.383)
Total tax payable (recoverable) (11,208) 59,280

b}  Effect on income

The effact of tax expensa on incomea during the pesiods from January 1 to December 31, 2010 and 2009 is comprised of the following ifems:

As of December 31,

200 2009

MChE MChE
Income tax expenses
Current tax 52583 106,882
Credits (debits) for deferred taxes
Origination and reversal of temporary differences [14,318) (18,216)

Sublotals 78,275 BB.B56

Tan for regacted exparses Arbce No 21 a4 196
Met charges to income for income tax TB.858 58,852




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 16 - CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES, continued:
] ¢} Effectivetax rate reconciliation

The recenciliation between the income tax rate and the effectve rate applied in detenmining lax expenses s of December 31, 2010 and 2009 | is as follows:

As of December 31,
2010 2008
Tax Tax
rate Amaunt rate Amaunt
b} MChS % MChS
Income tax using stabulory rate (17%) 17.00 04,803 17.00 82 278
Permmanent differances {1.60) (B.525) {0.0g) (304)
Additions or deductions . . 0.05) (250
Unique tax (rejected expensas) 012 668 004 188
Effect of change in tax rale {1.38) (7,596} - -
Others {0.01) (81) {0001y 51)
Effective rates and expenses for income tax 14.15 78958 16.92 88 862

Law Mo, 20,455 from 2010 increased the first class statulory e rate 1o be appbad on a company’s taxable incorme during 2011 and 2012, 10 20% and 185%
respectively. Due Io this, 8 Chi7.596 million tax benefit was recorded, comesponding fo the adjusiment of temporary differences o be reversed during hose
WEArs,

d}  Effect of deferred taxes on comprehensive income

Bedow is a summary of the separabe effect of deferred tax on Equity, showing the asset and Gabdity balances, during te peniods bebwean January 1, 2010 and
December 31, 2010 and 2008, which consisis of the following items

As of D ber 31,
2010 2009
MCh§ MCh$
Deferred tax assets
Available for sale mvesiments 3960 4582
Cash flow hadge . 537
Total deferned tax assets affecting other comprehensive income 3,580 5519
Deferred tax liabilities
Ayailabhe for sale invesiments {149)
Carsh flow hedge (2,324)
Total deferred tax liabilities affecting other comprahensive income (3.073)
Net deferred tax balances in equity 207 5519
Dedered taes m equity atiribulable fo Bank shareholders 1.203 5490

Deferred tx in equity atinbutable to non-confrofing inferest {286) 29
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 16 - CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES, continued:
@)  Effect of deferred taxes on income
In 3010 and 2004, the Bank has recorded defemed fax effects in its financial statements

Bedow are the effects of defemed tax assets and lisbilities affecting ncome as & result of temporary diflerences

2010 2009
MChs MCh§
Deeferred tax assets
Interest and adjustments 162 2012
Extracrdinary charge-off 5,197 5804
Aszals recaived in lleu of paymant 2473 505
Exchange rafe adjusiments 855 35
Valualion of Proparty, plant and equipmeant 5491 7472
Allowanice for loan losses 62525 431420
Prowsion fof axpanses 6,806 6566
Denviatives 4300 17
Leased assets 2007 19241
Affilates’ tax losses 4168 1
Others 156 1507
Toftal deferred tax assets 113,984 83,710
Deferred tax labilities
Valuabion of invesimants {1,058) (2.512)
Depraciation 443) (78)
Prepaid expenses (B45) {518)
Qthers (#23) 271)
Total deferred tax liabilities (2,268) (3,380)
fi  Summary of deferred tax assets and liabilities
Beldow is a summary of the deferred tax assets and liabilifies, indicating #heir effect on bo equily and income
2010 2008
MCh$ MCh§
Deferred tax assets
Affecting equity 3.980 5519
Affecting income 113,884 B0
Total defemed tax assets 117,964 85,229
Defarred tax liabilities
Affecting equity (3,073
Affecting income {2.268) {3,380)
Total deferred tax liabilities 5,441) (3,380)




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 16 - CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES, continued:

g}  Supplementary information redated to the Circular issued by the tax authority and SBIF:

& Santander

As of December 31, 2010

As of Decomber 31, 2008

q. 1) Loans and accounts recehvables from

Tax value assets

Tax value assels

cuslomers Substandard kvan Substandard loan
Financial With Without With Without
value assels Tatal quarantees  guamntedrs Tatal guanntess  guarnntess
MChs MChS MLhs MCHS MChS MChS MChS
5 54 188 B 7 T8 56
Y i - 4 Tes
4,651 L E53006E 58 628 A B £155
14394481 14420 788 118,851 BAETE £5,488
.2} Allowances for substandard lans without Balance as of Allowance charge- Allowances Released bond Balapce as of
quarantoes 1203400 offs established allvwances 12313010
MChs MChE MCHS MChS MCh%
T — T

1.2y Allowances for substandard loans

4156 {1,098}

85488

[164,165)

Balance as of Allowance charge- Allowances
MThO A 1213172008 offs established
MCHS MChS MCHS
[243 084}
.08 (276, T85)
0.3y Direct charge offs and recoveries = As of December 31,
MChE
53928
Ag of Decembaer 31
FILE] 2008
MChS MChS

5 BT 229815

B

(292,184

Rekeased Balance as of
bond allowances 1232008
MChS

78,566




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 17 - OTHER ASSETS:

Thia Orther assabs dem's composition i a5 follows

As of December 31,
2010 2009
MCh§ MCh§
Assets for leasing (') 43,832 52,070
Assels received or awarded In lieu of payment (™)
Assets recesred in Beu of payment 10,708 10,405
Assets werded in judicial sale 7.708 2178
Provisions for assels received in ieu of payment or awarded {1,850y (431)
Subtotals 16,736 12153
Other assets
Guaranies depasits 204,512 22,083
VAT credit 4634 1180
Inccme tax recoverable 9045 15,261
Prepaid expansas B1,348 8,960
Higher value paid on purchasa of morigage finance bands issuad by Bank 436 561
Assels recovered from leasing for sale 2.7 985
Pension plan assets (Mate 38) 4217 4 803
Accounts and notes receivable 100, 958 53,106
Notes recaivable through brokerage and simultansous ransactions 111,504 60,622
Ofher assels 52 364 7.585
Sublotals 580,369 388,336
Totals 640,937 452,559

Assats available 1o be granted under financial leasing agreements

The assals received in lieu of paymend are sssets received &s payment of customers’ pasi-due dabls. The assels soquired must at no time exceed, in
the aggregate, 20% of the Bank's effective equily. These assels represent 0,47% (0.52% as of December 31, 2004) of the Bank's effective equity

The assets awarded al judicial sale are assets that have been acqured &s payment of debis previcusly owed towards the Bank. The assets awarded at
Judicial sales are not subject to the aforementioned margin, These properfies are assels available for sale. For most assats, the sale i expecied fo be
completed within ane year from e data on which the assat was recened of acquired. If the assel m question ks nol sold within the year, it must be
waritien off,

In addibion, a provison & racorded for the diference bebwesn the intial avard value plus its addibons and its estimated realzabon value (appragsal)
when the first i higher
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Sﬂntﬂﬂder
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ROTE 18 - TIME DEPOSITS AND OTHER TIME LIABILITIES:

Az of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the composstion of the item = as follows:

As of December 31,
2010 2009
MCh§ MChS
Deposits and other demand Rabilities
Checking accounts 3330382 2,776 607
Crther deposits and demand accounts 388,034 303,405
Mher demand habdities 537,148 453,432
Totals 4,236,434 1,531,534
Time depesits and cther time labilities
Time deposits 7154306 4,218,382
Time savings accound 103,181 48 985
Other time liabilities 1170 2,556 BE0

Totals 7,258,757 T.175,257




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
ROTE 18 - INTERBANK BORROWINGS:

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, nterbank borrowings are mada up of the fllowng

As of December 31,
2010 2009
MCh3 MCh$
Loans from financial institutions and the Central Bank of Chile
Other abligations with Central Bank of Chile 1.307 1,850
Subtotals 1307 1,850
Loans from domestic financial institutions
The Raoyal Bank of Scotiand . 1500
The Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi . 4 800
Banca da Crdilo @ Inversiones - 20,01
Subtotats - %301
Loans from foreign financial institutions.
Citbank N.A. New York 211,145 91554
Vachowia Bank MNLA. Miarmi 172,548 211,480
Standard Charterad Bank, New York 263,147 193176
Bank of America 162,350 131,784
Bayerische Landesbank 122 587 183 320
Bank of Monteal - Toronto 103,215 68,681
Commuerzbank A.G -Frankfurt B7.023 55,831
The Torento Dominion Bank — Toronto 77847 55835
J P, Morgan Chase Bank NA. New York 67,763 63,501
Landesbank Baden-Wuertiemberg 65,73 50802
Banco Latincamericano de Export. 5.A Panama 46915 -
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation 42,278 315,635
Inlesa San Paclo SPA USA 42,191 45 /33
Commeszbank N.A. - Miami 32835 15,285
Raoyal Bank of Scolfand - London 25842 -
Bance do Brasil 5.A. = London 19,278
Unicrédito liakana New York 13429 =
Deutscha Bank A G, Maw York 12,652 13871
BHF-Bank Akbengessliscatt 9,385 -
Banco Santander - Madrid 8,447 190,539
Banco Santander — Hong Kong 5853 457 B10
Banca Santandar = Montevidea - 75,155
Banesto New York . 35,535
Banca Latinoamericang de Comercio - 30533
Others 237 12,027
Subtotals 1,562,750 2018639
Totals 1,584,057 2,045,780
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ROTE 19 - INTERBANK BORROWINGS, confinued:

a)  Ohbligations with Central Bank of Chile

Debts o the Central Bank of Chile include credt lines for e renagoliation of loans and other Central Bank barowings. These credit lines were provided by the
GCentral Bank of Chile for Bhe renegotia®on of loans due o the need o refinanca debl as a resull of the economic recession and arsts of the banking system in

the early 1960s

The outstanding amounts cwed 1o e Central Bank of Chde under thesa cradd lines ane 35 follows:

As of December 31,
210 2009
MChE MChE
Totals Line of credit for renegetiation of obligations to the Central Bank of Chile 1,307 1,850
b}  Loans from domestic financial institutions
Thess cbiigabans’ matunbes ane as follows
As of December 31,
210 2009
MChE MChS
Due vathan 1 year - 26,301
Due after 1 year butwithin 2 years -
Due after 2 year bul within 3 years
Due after 3 year but within 4 years
Due after 5 years - -
Total loans from domestic financial institutions - 26,301
¢}  Foreign obligations
Thesa cbligaions’ maturiles are a3 follows:
As of December 31,
210 2009
MCh§ MChS
Due within 1 year 1,458,479 1812206
Due afier 1 year bul within 2 years 110,218 206,343
Due afer 2 yoar bul within 3 years 14,053 -

Due afler 3 year bud withn 4 years

Due affer 5 yaars - -
Total leans from foreign financial institutions 1,582,750 2018639




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 20 - DEBT INSTRUMENTS ISSUED AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS:

Az of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the composstion of the item = as follows:

As of December 31,
2010 209
MEChS MChS
Cither financial liabilities
Obligations to public secior 102 541 a0, 144
Oithart chormieatic obligations 38,000 55015
Fareign obbgations 25 T4R 1052
Subtotals 166,269 146,911
Issued debt instruments
Morigape finance bands 154,134 263 854
Senior bonds 331067 21068 786
Subecrdinaled bands 685,075 582 026
Subtolals 4,180,858 2924676
Totals 4357 ATT 307,587

Debt classiied as short term are aither damand obigations or will mature in one year of less. All othar debl are classified a5 long term. The Bank's debls, both
short and long-tenm, are summanzed below

As of Decemnber 31, 2010

Long term Short term Total

MCh$ MCh% MChS
Merigage finance bonds 183,343 10.751 184134
Senior bonds 263572 47 107 3310678
Subordinated bands G&4,383 21,692 GBE.0TS
Issued debt instruments. 3,611,338 579,550 4,190,888
Other financial liabilities 122,247 44,042 166,269

Totals 3,733,585 623 592 A 35T ATT




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 20 - DEBT INSTRUMENTS ISSUED AND OTHER QBLIGATIONS, continued:

As of December 31, 2009

Long term Short term Total

MChS MChS MChS
Mertgage bonds 213853 50011 263 864
Sanior bands 1901872 166,814 2,068,786
Subordinated bonds 502 026 - 500 026
Issuwed debl instruments 2,707,851 216,825 2924 676
Other financial Habilities 109,013 37898 146,911
Totals 2516854 234,723 3,071,587

a) Mortgage finance bonds

Thesa bonds afe wsed o inance morlgage loans. The cutstanding principal of the bonds ane amortized on @ quarkerly bass. The range of maturities of these
bonds is batween five and twenty years. The bonds are linked 1o the UF index and bear a weighled-average annual inlerest rate of 5 6% as of Decernber 2010
{4.7% az of Decernber 2008)

As of December 31,

20 2009

MChS MCh$
Due within 1 yaar 10,751 50,011
Due after 1 year bud wathin 2 years rin 31804
Due afier 2 year but within 3 years 8,745 28,574
Due after 3 year but within 4 years 12,265 23277
Due afler 4 year but within 5 years 26,253 27,350
Due after 5 years 128928 102 B48
Total mertgage bonds 154,134 203,854

k) Senior bonds

Thie following table shews senior bands by currency

As of December 31,
Fgli] 2009
MChs MChS
Santander bonds in UF 1,952 051 1,660,877
Santander bonds in LSS 936,134 407,509
Santander bonds in CHFS 174,287 -
Santander bonds in § 248197

Total senior bonds 3310679 2068, 786




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES

MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 20 - DEBT INSTRUMENTS ISSUED AND OTHER QBLIGATIONS, continued:

& Santander

In 2010 the Bank issued bonds for UF 21 496 D00, LISD 1.200,000,000; CHF 350,000,000, and CLP 247 255 000,000, dataied as follows:

Izsue Date of

Series Armount Term rate Issue Maturity Date
F& LUF 1,090,000 i 5 years 350 % per annurn simple 05172009 Ta01z014
F? UF 3000000 (8) 4.5 years 3.30 % per annum simple 11012008 Dai12014
FB LF 3,000,000 () 45 years 360 % per annum simple Qo0 oTi0z04
Fa UF 3,000,000 () 5 years 170 % paf annurm Simpha 01012010 012015
FA UF 2,840,000 [v) 4 years T matunty (bullet) 04012010 042014
FB LF 3,000,000 [vi) 5 years 3.0% annual due Q40112010 AR5
FC LIF 4 000,000 i) 5 years 4 5% annual due OBm12010 [BN2E
FD UF 1,564,000 (vii) 5 years Tor reanbuirity (bullet) O&12010 (12015
Total UF 21,495,000

Floating rata

nate usD 500,000 0040 (ix) 2 years Libor (3 months) + 125 bp Q41572010 0an 2 2012
Fivedrate bond  LISD 500,000 000 {x) 5 years 3.75 % per annumn simple 0952010 LanMS2015
Floaling raba

nobe UsD 200,000,000 (xi) 1 year Libor (3 menths) + 100 bp 08rS2010 05011
Total USD  1,200,000,000

Fixed rate bond ~ CHF 250,000,000 (xx) 5 years 2. F5% coupon rate 117162010 12N672015
Floating rate

nate CHF 100,000,000 {xid) 3 years Libar (3 months) + 100 bp 1111672010 11162013
Total CHF 350,000,000 (i)

CLF bond CLP 247 255000000 {xiv) 10 years 6.5% coupon rate 08MS2010 CarR2r2020
Total CLP 247,255,000,000
In 2009 the Bank issued bonds for LIF 16,289,000 and USD 800 000.000
lssue Date of Date of
Serles Amount Term issue issue maturity

Fi UF 3,000,000 B8 years 350 % per annum simple 05022008 0smaR0tE
F2 UF 2379000 8 yaars 4 30 % par annum simple 05012008 i Tl
F3 UF 3,000,000 5 years 4.50 % per annum ample 020172009 022014
F4 UF 3,000,000 4 yoars 450 % per annum simple 02012009 02012013
F5 UF 3,000,000 4.5 years .50 % per annum simple 050112008 11012013
F8 UF 1810000 5 yaars 3 50 % per annum simple OB12009 om0
Total UF 16,289,000

1444 USD 500,000,000 dyears 288 % per annum simple 11132009 111132002
144 4 USD 300,000,000 Iyears 2 B8 % per annum simple 11132008 111132012
Total LFSD 500,000,000
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 20 - DEBT INSTRUMENTS ISSUED AND OTHER QBLIGATIONS, continued:

{1 Asof December 2010 bonds in the amaunt of UF 1,080 000 have been issued coverng the iotal issuance of series FG bonds.

{i) On November 1, 2009 a ranche of senior bonds totaling UIF 3,000,000 comespanding 1o FT serles was registened in the SBIF is registry of secunbes
Such amount has been issued, covering the folal issuance of the ine:

(i) Az of December 2010 bonds in the amount of UF 3,000,000 have been sued covering the iotal isuance of sanes F8
{n) Asof December 2010 bonds n the amount of UF 3,000,000 have been rssuad covering the lotal issuance of sanas F2

(v} Om April 1, 2010 a tranche of senior bonds iotaling UF 3,000,000 comesponding 1o FA series with a 4 yeer ferm was registered in the 3BIF's registry of
secun®as. As of Decernber 2010 UF 2,840,000 have been izsued, leaving an unissuad nominal value of LIF 160,000 for thes.,

{vi) On April 1, 2010 a ranche of senior bonds fotaling UF 3,000,000 comesponding 1o FB senes with a 5 year term was registered in the SBIF's regisiny of
securiies. As of Decernber 2010 UF 3,000,000 have been issued accounting for the antre issuance.

(v

On August 1, 2010 a ranche of senior bonds fotaling UF 4,000,000 corresponding to FC series with a 5 year term was registered in the SBIF's registry
of securibes As of Decermber 2010 UF 4,000 000 have bean eswed accounting for the entire ssuance

{va) On April 1, 2010 a tranche of samior bonds botaling UF 3,000,000 corresponding to FD sanies with @ 5 year ferm was registerad in fhe SBIF's regisiny of
sacurities. As of Decernber 2010 UF 1,566,000 have been issued, leaving an unessued nominal valee of UF 1,434 000 for thes bond

{o) Senior Bond with Aoating rate maturing on Apnl 12, 2012. The bond was issued al a privale placement 1o instivbonal buyers classsiad according fo
Rule 144 & of the 1533 Securibes Act of the United States (the “Securibes Act)

{x] Fixedrate bond for LSO 500,000,000, with a 3.75% coupon rale issued in a privale placement among inshfubonal buyers classified in accordance with
Rue 1444 of the Securities Act

{x) Floating Mobe for USS 200,000,000 with a loatng rate of 3 months LIBOR + 100 bps. At the end of December 2010, noles totaling according o USD
200,000,000 have been issued accounting for the entire isseance:

{5 Fixed rale bond for CHF (Swiss francs) 250,000,000 with a 2.256% coupon rate. Al the end of Decermber 2010, bands fotaling CHF 250,000,000 have
been ssued accounting for the entire issuance.

{xa) Fioating nate for GHE 100,000,000 with a a floating rate of 3 months LIBOR + 100 bps. At the end of Decernber 2010, notes iotaling GHF 100,000,000
have been issued accounting ko the entire issuance.

{xiv) CLP Band for $247 255,000,000 at 6.5% coupon rate. A1 the and of Decamber 2010, bonds tolaling $247 255,000,000 have been =xued accauntng
for the enfre issuance




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 20 - DEBT INSTRUMENTS ISSUED AND OTHER QBLIGATIONS, continued:

Thess bonds mature as follows:

& Santander

Az of December 31,
2010 2009
MChS MChS
Dise weithin 1 year 7107 166,814
Druee after 1 year but within 2 years 34727 218339
Duse afler 2 years but within 3 yeers 380813 436446
Disa affer 3 years but within 4 yeers 300,953 ITE 064
Due afer 4 years bul within 5 years 340,331 171547
D after 5§ years 1,267,748 GR5ATE
Total bonds 33100679 2,068,786
¢} Subordinated bonds
Th -'¢||l.‘.l'p\r'-'l5'| tabbe showes, at the ndicated dates, the balances of our subordmaled bomis
As of December 31,
2010 2009
MChS MChS
Subardineied bonds denominatedin US & 244 957 278,087
Subordingied bonds denominated in UF 441,118 313 939
Total subordinated bonds 88,075 592,028
In 2010 the Bank issued subordinabed bonds on the kocal market for UF 4,950,000, which ks broken down as follows
Interest Date of Diate of
Series Amount Term rafe issuance maburity
G2 UF 1,950,000 30 years 4.8 %per annum simphe 0B T2010 03012038
G4 UF 3,000,000 3 years 38% annual due TR0 0712040
Total UF 4,950,000
In 2004 the Bank issued subordinated bonds on the local market for UF 300,000, which is broken down as follows
Interest Date of Date of
Seres Amount Term rale issyance maturity
G2 UF 300,000 3 years 4.8 % per annum simpha /262009 031012038

Tatal

UF 300,000




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 20 - DEBT INSTRUMENTS ISSUED AND OTHER QBLIGATIONS, continued:

Tha matunbas of these bonds, consderad long tem, is as folows:

2010 2009

MChS MChE
Due within 1 year 21,5692 -
Due after 1 yesr but within 2 years 105,505 12,880
D after 2 years but within 3 years - 119.211
Due after 3 years but within 4 years 139,452 .
Drusr aftisr 4 years but within 5 years 12,305 158,876
Due after 5 years 407121 301,040
Total subordinated bonds 586,075 582026

d]  Oiher financial obligations
The compostan of other financial abiigations, by maturity, & deladed below
As of December 31,

2010 2009

MCh§ MCh$
Long term cbligations
Due after 1 years but within 2 years 4 806 4563
D ater 2 years but within 3 years 3,090 3515
Due aftar 3 years but within 4 years 28,786 3556
Due after 4 years but within 5 years 3194 27 868
Due after 5 years a2an 69491

Long-term financial obligations subtotals 122,247 109.013
Shart term obligations
Amounis due fo credit card operaiors 38557 31.045
Accaptanca of katters of cradit fira | -
Other long-term financial cbligations, shorl-derm portion 4754 6,853
Short-term financial obligations subtotals 44,042 37.898

Other financial obligations tofals 166,288 146,911




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santﬂndfr
ROTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2010 AND 2000
NOTE 3 - MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:

Az of December 31, 2070 and 2009, the detsd of maluries of mmets and keblies = as biovs:

Betwesn 1 Between ] Sublotal  Bebwedn 1 Sublotal
& of December 31, 2010 Upta and and [L-31.] and Bore thaf afver
Derand imonth  Imonhe  1Zmoatm  iyear Sy Symrs 1year Total
MLHE MChE Mg MChE MCRE MChE M NChE MChE
hezets
Cash and deposits i banks 1.782.188 1,742,108 1.2
Lirssiled Farsadhon 374 368 ' . J74 268 v . HL3ES
Thachiy wrvesiTenk * a8 163,25 Pl ] 120427 48 151685 ITRAM
PRI LT PERBH B Bomants. 170,585 170 885
Fnancial Swrnabve LMl 108729 W02 80538 T4 GB3 w2 1,130,740 120378
Infarteank loas [7) " . - LNy - - - £0.r
PADBTSE 2274513 EENIATA 4772063 BAGRSI0  GSONBEY 154575

Lioars and acopents receswvables: iom oestomers [~} G055
Hradinble: for sale ivesients =
Held in maturty invesiments

120 076 65867 5533 512 e 365 M5 il 1473 560

Total asssts 2747 534 2.7 897 1150519 IMTHET  B3ART  ENESTD SSIT4 12nasad 1,512.8861
Liakdlities

Dieperits bl ol dovand kebdlies LA - - A2WAM - - 473843
Urgatiod rarsacbors 00,135 300925 WO
IS LG PRpUITTESS JOTRETSNE . 2400 2780 '] 23725 v . M TS
Tim PSS oihes T katblas Toa 352 FALTE -0 Rk 304 B3MINE Ea8 240 #4140 w7 380 (e RET)
Financial derivalive coniocts 1T 50 155431 Hm GETOS e 31,087 00T 276 1643479
Infertaank boowings En JETT 179,25 1243718 1450707 124270 123 1,584 057
Issisesd dab paturshs a7 130857 440 575N 0T BN 1 BONTST SE11 18 4,150 BB
it briancisl labelSes T 10 m 11K ] 4 08y JET? BE5TD 1B47 166289
Tolad lissilties Ll ] LG5 L005TE 4333 BATTR 3R LI STIAT 1RETESIN

'} Intecbank ibans are presenied as gross valke. The smoun] of slocabons lolsls CHESE milien
(% Loans and sccounts recasvables hom cusiorers ahe presenied a8 gross valus. The smown of alocalion lolsks CR3A4Z 278 millon

&7




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Sﬂntﬂ-ndfr
ROTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2010 AND 2000

NOTE 3 - MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continusd:

Bebween 1 Bettwean 1 Sublotalup  Betwesn 1 Gasrotasl
A of Decerrbar 31, 2009 Up i and and -] and Bore than aflar
Dermard 1 manth 3 monihs 12 manths 1 yoar §years Syears 1 year Tetal
MCHS MCRS MCRS MCcHE WCHE MCHE MChS MCES MCRS
Azl
Cash and deposits in banks 2043 458 2043458 oA 458
UnsaSlad rancacions A AR 134 Fr Rk
Trading invesimanis mam 521 250 B31358 a5 a2 B B DET 798,533
Invesimerts under resaie sgresments HTH) . vl . 140
Firancil dervibe contact 54140 TaTH 166 207 Fi o RF TR 36T e 1 EeTR 1383878
Inlerbank koo (7] 23412 - * #3412 + = 23413
Lt gl RECoaris recenabies Bom customan ™) e EM 1250 05 ®ran $033.400 4R 2 40T 0% 4 573407 BER0A% 13,737 Bed
Ao o @l Pvosirers LRk B3 BE 12005 a4 B5ATE X055 B4T 25 28514 1,830,060
M o madurtly mwesimants .
Total assels 1,850 409 128010 1080804 L. BE5EI0 3, ey SR2E:  IMMATES 2090095
Linhilities
Deposis and oher demand lnbdibes 3533534 . E . 1533534 . . . 15335
UrrseTed TantacSons T5ATA . T5ATE
SVRE TN NGEr MERECTRES BOreaTEYE 181113 3T AT £06 300 - - . REIT -]
Torra daponsts and oher e ntibe 10022 233808 1,750 407 156 1030 448 11535 E 20 BEY 7175357
Firancal dermimiey contacts H LAl 17 A% 298000 saaGET ELAE ] EIEL 1. 380905
Inlertank bomowings airs 5 020 Hose 14T e 0 13 H0E34 3046 T
Imsuad debt insiraments. 148 1830 168013 e 1,608 45 1050 M 3 10T AR TEM AT
Crher fra~onl fabdbes A 1143 B L WER A4 48 10013 186811
Total liabdities isosdy  28ERaT 26455281 Liha ey 3552474 146,523 R00799T BS80S

1 interbenk bens e presenled o5 gross valke. The sroenl of slowances iofals ChBAT milon
0 Loans and soooents necervabies hom casiores s ine presenied af gross vahes. The emoen| ol slowssce ko koan les otaks ChE44 738 mdian




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 22 - PROVISIONS:

a)  Asof December 31, 2010 and 2009, the composrton of the provisions ibem is as shown balow

As of Decemnber 31,
2M0 2009
MCh§ MCh%

Provissons for personned salanes and expenses 36,016 31,208
Pravisions for mandatory dividends 143,147 120,376
Proviszons for coningent loans 5635 4077
Prowisaons for contingencies

HAwailable line of credil provision 34545

Chapter B1 additional provision 39,600

Other confingent provisicns 16,151 21480
Couniry rsk provisions 1 -
Totals 275,206 186,121

b}  Below s the activity in provisions during the 2010 and 2009 periods
Provisions for
Personnel
salaries Contingent Mandatory
and expenses loans  Centingencies  dividends  Countryrisk  Total
MChS MChS MCh$ MCh$ MChE MCh§

Opening balances as of January 1, .
2010 31208 4,017 21,450 129,376 185,121
Prowvisaons established 36538 amna 80 586 143,147 1 272 8BS
Provisons used (31,730} (2.155) (8,833 {128,378) - [1T2.094)
Povisions releasad . {75,165 - : {75,165)
Reckssifications - - - - - -
Othes (%) - - 63,448 . . 63448
Balances as of Decamber 31, 2010 36,016 5,636 890,496 143,147 1 275,206
Opening balances as of January 1, -
e 38,235 2,168 M 98,444 166,718
Provisions estabiished 26882 1,380 1,088 129,378 . 158,728
Provisions usad (31,934) H (58) (88, 444) - [130,964)
Provesons released [1.975) {72 (14,753) - - (16,840
Reciassifications . 7.583 - - 7.263
Other - - 1197 - - 1,197
Balances as of December 31, 2009 31,208 407 21,480 129,376 . 185,121

("} Correspands to the effect of the first application of Chapter B-3 of the Compendium of Accounting Standars For further information, see Nate 2
sbout Accounting Changes
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Sﬂﬁtﬂnder
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 22 - PROVISIONS, continued:

¢]  Provisions for parsonngd salanes and expanses

As of December 31,
2010 20
MChE MCh§
Prowision for seniorily compensation 1882 M2
Provision for stock-based personned benefits 1016 1,076
Provision for perfommance bonds 17.107 14,035
Provesaon for vacabions 14534 14,053
Provision for other personnel benefits 1477 1,742
Tolals 36,016 31,208
d}  Movernant in provision for senicority compensation
Asg of December 31,
2010 2009
MCh$ MCh§
Presenl value of obligations at beginning of the perad 2 4,030
Increase in provisions 4017 o6
Payments made {2 A4T) (4.240)
Prepayments - 5
Provisions released . [A'ﬂ-ﬂ|
Others - -
Totals 1,862 2
o) Movernants in provesion for periommance bonds
#s of December 31
2010 2009
MCh§ MChS
Cpening balances &5 of January 1 14.025 18005
Provisions estabiished 17.107 14 887
Provesions used (14,025} (18,058)
Provisions relesssd - (818)
Other - -
Totals 17407 14,025
fl Movermats in pErovsan iof parsonne vacabon
As of December 31,
2010 2009
MCh§ MCh§
Opaning balances 2 of January 1 14,053 14723
Provesions established 7.065 6,730
Pravisions used {B,584) (7.320)
Provisions relessed - (B0
Other - -
Totals 14,534 14,053




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Sﬂﬂtﬂnder
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 23 - OTHER LIABILITIES

The Other liabilities item's composifion is a5 follows

As of December 31

210 2009

MCh§ MChe
Accounls and nobes payable 63,026 T8 4M
Uneamed income 1.547 2081
Guarantees received (threshold) GB.21T 148,308
Motes payabie throwgh brokerage and simultaneous ransactions 53,856 14,802
Other liabilities 74,682 16,714
Totals 261,328 263,396
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 24 -CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS:

a)  Lawsuits and lagal procedures

#s of the issuance date of thess financial statements, the Bank and its affiiates were subject to certain bagal actions in the normal course of therr business. As of
December 31, 2010 the Bank and iis afliates maintained provisions for these legal actions, fotaling ChE33% milion (ChS 830 milon as of December 31, 2009),
which ana parl of the "Provisions for contingencies” item

b}  Confingent leans

The: following table shows the Bank's confractual obigations o issue loans

As of December 31,
2010 2009
MCh§ MChE
Letters of credit maued 2089532 155,956
Foreign katiars of oredit confirmed B5, 735 35,818
Guarantess 884751 555,780
Pledges and afher commencial commitments 166,550 168,931
Subtotals 1.360,572 1.017 485
Avadeible ondemand credit lines 4,832 350 4 615,787
Orther imevocable credt commitments 12428 -
Totals 6,322,359 5.633,272
€]  Held securities
The Bank holds securibies in the normal course of its business as follows
2010 2009
MCh§ MCh§
Third party cperations
Collections 173,219 170 547
Aszsats from third parties managed by the Bank and its aflilates i) 15}
Subtotals 173,285 179613
Custody of securities
Secunfes held in custody 200,544 3B 490
Securites hald in custody deposited in ofher enlity 611,145 3arxr
Issued securities hveid in custody 0,544 274 7.371 4856
Subtotals 10845918 7,987,183
Totals 11,019,203 BATETOE

d) Guarantees

Banco Santander Chile has a comprahansive oflicer fidality msurance policy, No 2435101, with the Chilena Consoldada de Saguros insurance compary, for an
amount of LISD $5,000,000, which jointly covers bolh the Bank and its affilates for e period from July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 24 -CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS, continued:
Santander Asset Management S.A Administradora General de Fondos

I conformity with General Standard Mo, 135, the company designated Banco Santander Chile as the representafive of fhe beneficiaries of the guerantees
established by each af the managed funds, in compliance with Aricles 228 onward of Law Mo, 18,045

In addition 1o these guaraniees for crealting mutual funds, there are other guerantees for a guaranteed refurn on certain mutual funds, iotaling ChSET 703 millon
and time deposits iataling Chi 40,005 million as a guaranty of Private Investment Funds (P | F ) as of Decermber 31, 2010

Santander Agente de Valores Limitada

To ensure comect and full performance of all its obligabions &s an Agent, in confomity with the provisions of Arficies No 30 and onward of Law Mo, 18,045 on the
Securites Markal, the Company provided a guaraniee in the amount of UF 4,000 through Insurance Policy No 210107 110, undenwrittan by the Compaiiia de
Sequres de Crédto Continental 3.4, which matures on December 19, 2011

Bartander 5.A Corredores de Bolsa

The Company has given guaraniezes o the Bolsa de Comercio de Sanbago for a curent value of ChE46,070 milkon o cover simultaneous ransactions:

In addiion, the Company has issued a guarantee o CCLV Contraparte Central 3.A. (formerly known as Camera de Compensacion) in cash, for a total
Ch$3,800 milkan &s of Decermber 31, 2010

Santander Comredora de Segures Limitada
a)  Insurance policies

In accordance walh Crcular No.1,160 of the Superinfendency of Securibes and Insurance, the Company has an insurance palicy in in connection wath its
obligaticns as an intermediary in insuwrance conlracts

The company purchased a guarantee policy (Mo. 4323257) and a professonal kabfly policy (Mo, 4323253) for its nsuwrance brokers from Compafila de
Seguros Generales Consorcio Nacional de Segures 5.4, The policies have a UF 500 and UF 60,000 coverage, respeciively, and are walid from Apal 15, 2010
through Apal 14, 2011

b}  Contingent keans and Habilities

To satisly its clents” needs the Bank ook on several contingent koans and habalites, yel hese could not be recognized in the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position. Mevertheless these contingent loans and liabiliies hawve credst risk and they are, heredore, part of the Bank's global risk.
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 25 EQUITY:
a)  Capital stock and preferred shares

As of Decernber 31, 2010 and 2004 the Bank had 188 446,126 794 authorized sheres, all of which are subscribed for and paid in full, Al shares are comman
shares, with no par value or other preferences

The activity with respect o shares during 2010 and 2009 was as folows:

Mumber of shares

As of December 31,
010 2009
lesued a3 of January 1 188,446 126,754 188, 446,126,794
Paid-up shares issued = :
(Qwed shares issued
SH0cK oplans excercsad = .
Issued as of 188,446,125,794 188,445,126, 794

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009 fe Bank does not have treasury shanes, nor do any of the companies included in the Bank's scope of consobidation

#s of December 31, 2010 e shareholder composition was as follows:

% of Equity

Corporate Name or Sharcholder's Marme Shares ADRs [ Totals Helding
Teatngs Sigho XX Inversaones Limitada 78,108 291 807 - 78,108,391 807 4145
Santander Chile Holding 5.4 66,822 510,595 : 66,822,519.695 3546
JIP. Margan Chase Bank . 208929711,344 29 842 971 334 1586
Inyersiones Antares 5 A 250,353 545 - 250,362 545 013
Ankonio Hitschfesd Beliman 100,000,000 . 100,000,000 0.os
Banks and stock brokers on behall of thid parties 8277713845 - B.277, 713845 4,39
Oriher minarity hokders 3987 968278 596,198 490 4 004 166 T6B 266
Totals 185,446,126,794 100,00
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 25 - EQUITY, continued:

Az of December 31, 2008 the shareholder compostion was as follows:

& Santander

% of Equity

Corporate Name or Shareholder's Name Shares ADRs ") Totals Heolding
Teafines Sigle XA Inversiones Limitads 78,108.391.607 76,108,391 607 4145
Santander Chile Holding 5.4 66,822 519 695 - 66 B22 519 665 1546
4 P. Morgan Chase Bank - 31,775,852 329 M, 775,882 320 16 B&
Inversiones Antares 5.A 250,363,545 250,363,545 0.13
Antania Hitschisld Baliman 200,000 000 200,000,000 011
Banks and stock beokers on behalf of third parties 6,0B5,588,652 6,585 568 652 =N
Ohier minarity holders 4,303,410 966 4,303 410 966 i
Totals 188, 445,126,794 100.00

(" American Depository Recepts (ADR) ane certificabes msued by a LS, commencial bank 1o be kaded on the U5, secunties markets.

b} Dividends

Sea the disfribution of dindands in the Consoldaled Statements of Changes in Equity

¢} Asof December 31, diluted and basic eamings per share were as follows:

Hate: llems in millions of pesos (MChE) excepd share Az of Decemnber 3,
and earnings per share informaton 210 2009
MCh MChS

a) Basic eamings per share
Totel income atiributabie io Bank sharchaldars 477155 431253
Wesghied average number of outstanding shares 188,446,126,784 1E8,.445,126.794
Basic Eamings per share (in pesos) 2532 2288

b} Diluted earinings per share
Totel income atfributable io Bank shareholders 477 155 431253
Wesghled average number of outstanding shares 188 446,126,704 168, 446,126,754
Assumed conversion of comvertible debl ] :
Adjusted number of shares 188,446,126, 704 188,446, 128,794
Dilied sarnings per share (i pesos) 2532 2288

As of December 31, 2010 and 2004 the Bank did not have instiruments that generated diluting efiects on sharehalders’ equity
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 25 - EQUITY, continued:

d) Other comprehensive income of available for sale investments and cash flow hedge:

As of December 31,
2010 2004
MChE MChi
Available for sale investments
Balance &3 of January 1 (349,.304) {20,019)
Gann {losses) on remeasuing avadabls for sale invesimants, belane tan 12316 w3
Redassification adjustments on available for sale invesiments, bedore tax
Realized {gains) logses [1,508) (4B B38)
Subtotals 10,708 (9,285)
Totals {18,596) (29,304)
Cash Flow Hedges
Balance &s of January 1 (3.162) 10,873
Gain {losses) on remeasuring cash fow hedges, before tax 15,120 {14,035)
Reclassification adjustments on cash flow hedges, bafors tax - -
Amounts removed from equity and included in camying ameount of non financial asset (iability) whose
scquisition or incumence was hedge as a haghly probable transifion
Subtotals 15,120 (14,035}
Totals 11,958 (3,162}
Other comprehensive income before aves (6538 (32 458)
Income tax over other comprehensive income components
Income tax relating ko available for sale investments 32N 4957
Incorme tx ralating i cash fow hadges 12,324) 537
Totals Qo7 5519
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (5,731) (26,247}
Afinbulable to
Bank owners (5.548) (26 822)
MNaon controlling inferest {83 (125)

iy




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 26 - CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (BASEL):

Pursuant 1o the Ganeral Lanw of Banks, the Bank must mantain a minimum ratio of effectve aquity to risk-weighted conselidated assets of 8% nat of required
allowances, and a manimumn ratio of basic equity bo consclidated total assets of 3%, net of required allowances. However, ag a result of the Bank's merger in
2002, the SBIF has determined fat the Bank's combined effeciive equity cannot be lower than 1% of il risk-weighled assals. Effeclive net equity is defined for
thaza purposes as basic equity (capital and resenves) plus subsrdnated bonds, up to a maximim of 50% ol basic equity.

Assals are weighled according fo risk calegones, which are assigned a risk perceniage according o e capital needed fo back each one of those assels, For
example’ Cash, deposits in banks, and financsal insruments exued by the Central Bank of Chila have 0% sk, meaning hat in accordance with existng
requlation, the Bank does not need, capital to back those assets.  Property, plant and equipment. on the ofher hand, have 100% nsk, which fransiates o
minimun capital requirement of 11% of the amount of thase assats. Al dervative insfuments traded outside exchanges are also considered in the
deterrmination of rsky assets using a comversion factor over Mer notional values fo calculate ther respective credt risk exposure.  Additionally, current
regulation considers confingent ioens held off the Conscidated Staternent of Financial Posstion &s “lnan equivalents” fo be weighted

Arcording to Chapler 12-1 of the 3BIF's RAN, (Recopilacion Actualizada de Normas, updated compiation of rules) effectve January 2010, the SBIF charged
existing reguiation with the enforcement of Chapter B-3 of the Compendium of Accounting Standards, which charged the risk expasure of contingent loans from
100% expasure o e follawing

Type of contingent loan Exposilion

a) Pladges and other commercial commifments 100%%
by Fereign hatiers of aradit confirmed 0%
¢ Letiers of credit issued 20%
d) Guaraniees B0%
) Iriberbank guaranbes ketiers 100%
f) Awvailable Enes of credit 50%
h) Other lcan commitments

- Higher Educabon Loans Law Mo 20,027 15%

- Ohers 100%
h} Other cantingent loans 100%
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 26 - CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (BASEL), continued:

The |ewveds of Basic capital and Effactva nat aquity at the close of each pesiod are &s follows:

Consolidated assets Risk-weighted assels
As of Decemnber 31, As of December 31,
2010 2003 200 2003
MChS MCh§ MCh$ MChE
Balance-sheel assets (net of allowances)
Cesh and deposits in banks 1,762,193 2043458 . .
Unsettied fansachons 374,368 458,134 126,083 191 287
Trading imvestments IT8.670 798,539 57 588 41918
Irnvestrments under resale agreements 170,985 14,00 98321 14,020
Financial desivalve conlracts (%) 1,452,068 1391688 B71.672 B3T 692
Intestank loans 60,672 23,370 13,934 4674
Loans and accounts recaivables from customers 15,215,318 13,378,379 13,350,182 11,717 33r
Available for sale mvestmeants 1,473,580 1,830,090 101,875 154,088
Irvestments in other companies 1,275 Ta1r 7,275 rair
Intangibée assats 77,600 77,260 77,580 77,260
Property, plant, and equipment 154,085 184,122 154,085 184 122
Current taxes 12,499 4501 1,250 454
Deferred taves 117 584 85124 11,796 89523
Cither assels 40,537 452 559 474,135 69,313
Off-balance-sheet assels
Conngent koans 3173788 1,160,118 1,897 977 693,009
Totals 25,083,504 25812 17,245,265 14,202,115

(*}  “Financial derivative confracts” are presanted at fer "Credd Equevalent Risk™ value as established in Chapler 12-1 of the Recopilacidn Achualizada de
Nesrnas - RAN - (updated compilation of rules) tssued by the SBIF

Tha lenveds of Baza: capital and Efectve nel aquity at the close of each perod are as follows:

Percentage
As of Decemnber 31, As of December 31,
200 2009 200 2008
MCh§ MChS £ %
Basic capital 1,831,784 1,658,316 T30 7.56
Effectve nat equity 2,503,858 2,214,052 1452 1558
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 27 = NON CONTROLLING INTEREST

This Hem reflacts e nat amount of the subsidaries’ net equity atiibutable to equity mefuments which do not balong fo the Bank aither dractly or indirecthy,
including the part that has been atiribuled to incoma for the pericd

The non conlrelding inkerest in the affilistes” equity is summarzed s follows

Cither comprehensive incoma

Available Total other
Third-party for sale Deferred  compreheénsive Comprehensive
As of December 31, 2090 share Equity Income investments fax income incame
% MChS MEChS MChS MChS MChS MCHS
{11 3,630
B B
B T L] 14 L] 1655
Special Purpose Entities:
Baries Sarbandes 5 A 100 16483
1y Cobranzs Limésda 100 [
100 13 ;
1] am 278
Subletals 4973 (1,685) g . : {1,685)
Totals el 2,078 {83} 14 ] 200
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

KOTE 27 - NON CONTROLLING INTEREST, continued:

Thia non contrading infarest in aquity and the afflates’ income as of Decamber 31, 2008 is summanzed as follows:

Other comprehensive incoms

Available for Total other
As of Decomber 31, 2009 Third-party  Equity sale Duferred comprohensive  Gomprehensbe
share 123108 Income nvestments lax income income
% MCh§ MCHS MCHS MCHS MChs MCh
22612 156 ¥ 2 2 054
3102 12 25 H (104) kRE]
27380 [ m
28 b}
3 380 3
51 L] &
(0 1% 29 s - N et}
Subtotals B,608 1815 - - - 1815
Totaks 0798 505 (125) kil {104) 4948
1000




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

NOTE 28 -INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE:

This itam refers to interest earned in the paniod by all the finanaal assets whosa return, whather implcitly or explcify, is defermined by applying the effective
mberest rate method, regardess of the value al fair vakie, as well as fe reclassificalions of products 8% 8 consequence of hedge accounbing.

&)  On the financial slatement closing date, the composibon of income from inferest and adjusiments, nol including income from hedge accouning, is as

follows
As of D ber 31,
2010

Interest  Adjustments Propakd fees Tatal Iitenest Adjustments  Prepaid fees Tatal
ltemns MChS MChS MChS MChS MChS MCHS MCHS MChS
Repurchese agresmants 2,041 105 . 2,145 16,803 3,503 . 20508
Imarbank koans a3 - - q3s 252 - - 252
Commercial loans 473550 65672 3080 542 620 TR0 H 165,137) 30e 279
Mortgage loans 186,540 101,579 5415 296,334 18z 262 (B,801) 4108 arsro
Consumer lbans 481,880 1,533 2898 486,202 506,896 [1.8:44) 3248 508301
Invesiment insruments 47 512 13,154 - 60,706 4731 (20 548) - 26685
Other interest income 176 1,028 . 7,202 3,102 1,897 . 4999
Interest income 1,201,022 183,809 11403 1,396,234 1,331,658 (170,928) 10374 1471114

b} Asindicaled in secbon ) of Noba 1, suspended inbarest |s recorded i suspensa accounts (ofl-balance-shael accounts) unbl it are affectvely racensed

Al the panod end, the dated of incomea from suspanded inferest 5 &s follows

As of December 31,
210 2009

Imerest  Adjustments  Prepaid lees Total Interest Adjustments  Prepaid lees Total
Off balance sheet HChs MChS MChS MChS MEhs MChS MChS MCh
Commaencial loans 22675 335 - 26,020 2,124 3933 - 28157
Worlgage leans 3,056 3501 - TAET 5570 2726 - B.20B
Consumer loans 16,282 498 - 16,780 32788 {671} - 32T
Totals 42013 T.344 - 50,257 59,582 5,088 . B5.570
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MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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KOTE 28 -INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE, continued:

¢]  On the financial statermant closing dale, the composition of income from inferest and adjustments, not including income from hadga accouning, i as
Tedowrs:

As of December 31,
2010 2004
Interesi  Adjusiments  Prepaid fees Toal Interest Adjustments  Prepaid feis Total
ltems MChS MChS MChs MChs MChS MChS MChS MCHS
Demand deposite i) (378) - (889) (704 (167) - a1
Repurchase agreements (2,164) (215} : [2.379) (15,372) 572 . (14,800)
Time depaosits and liabilies (169,875) {51,784) . (221,659 {283,658 65,008 . (227.748)
interbank bamawings (29.872) (33) . {29.905) (29.030) 4 - (28.966)
Issued debt instruments {132 415) {55, 124) (187,539) {112,549) 49,801 ‘ (62.748)
Other financial liabilities {4.941) (388) . (5.929) (3.834) 1,847 2 [2,387)
Other interes! expense {109} (6,098} - (6,207) [1,904) 1) - (2.068)
Interest expenses totals {339,B88T) (14,6200 . (454,507) (457,141} 117,555 . {339,556)
d}  Atthe end of e period the summarny of interest and expenses is as folows:
As of December 31,
PRl J009
tams MCh$ MCh§
Interest incame 1.396.234 171114
Interest expense 454 507) (339,565)
Interest income a1, 727 831,528
Income from hedge accounting (nef) {2,008} 24 938
Total net interest income 838,718 856,516
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

WOTE 28 - FEES AND COMMISSIONS:

This itam incudes tha amount of fees eamed and paid in e period, except for ®icse which are an integral part of the financial mstrument's affactive interest
rabe

As of December 31,

210 2003

MChS MCh$
Fee and commission income
Feas and commssions faf lines of credits and overdrafts 15,603 25822
Fees and commissaons for guarantees and letters of credit £2852 24,558
Fees and commissions for card senicas 107,047 96,338
Fees and commissions for management of accounis 2701 27 566
Fees and commissions for collections and payments B0.136 65,782
Fesas and cornmizsians for inlermedsabon and managament of secunbas 10,882 T.B08
Fees and commissions for investments in mutual Aunds or others 852 30,766
Compensabon for marketng of secuntes 32783 16,507
Oithce banking 9435 8,586
Cither fees earned 12 482 12342
Totals 338,183 315,925

As of December 31,

2000 2009

MCh§ MChS
Fee and commission expense
Compensalion for card operation (51, 148) (44.718)
Feas and commissions for sacuntes Fansachons {1,781} (1,278}
Office banking {7 603 (B,034)
Other fees {14,089) (9.76T)
Totaks (74,601) (61,795)
Nat fees and commissions income 263 582 254130

The fees eamed through transactions with letters of credit ane recorded in the Consolidaled Statement of Income in the “Interest income™ ilem
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MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ROTE 30 - INCOME FROM FINANCIAL OPERATIONS:

This item includes the adustments for changes in Snancal insfuments, excepd for interest atinbutable o the apphcaton of the effactve infarest rate mathod for
adjustments to asse! values, 25 wel as the meome eamed in purchases and sales of financial insruments

A5 of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the deted of income from financial operafions is as folows

As of Decemnber 31,
2010 2008
MChS MChS
Net income from financial operations
Trading derivalives 3,508 (102 B25)
Trading investmenis 31,058 49 21
Sale of loans and accounts receivables Fom cusiomens

Cument portfohio 2573 542
Viritten-off portiolio 9,624 8664
Avadable for sale nvesimants (8.319) 47 335
Cbver inoome from financial operations 21 9%
38,755 3,887

Totals

ROTE 31 - NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE INCOME:

This itesm includes the income eamed from foresgn cumency Fading, diferences that arise from comverfing monetery items in a foreign cumency fo the functional
currency, and thosa generaled by non-monetary essets in a foreign currency at tha me of their divesbiura

Az of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the deted of foreign exchange income is as folows

As of December 31,
2010 2009
MCh§ MCh§
Currency exchange differences

et profit (less) from cumency exchange differences 273997 401 6895
Hedqging dermatves (215,71) (266,221)
Income from adjusteble assets in foreign cumency {3.1786) (10,938}
Incame fom adjustable labibes n foreign curancy 2133 ar ans
57,833 163,241

Totals
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NOTE 32 - PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES:

Th 2010 and 2009 activity for pravision for laan losses reconded on the incoma staftement is a5 follows

Loans and accounts receivables from customens

As of December 31, 2010 Interbank Cormmercial Martgage Consumer Contingent
loans loans loans loans credits Total
MCh$ MCh§ MChS MChS MChS MChS
Mllowances and charge-offs
- Individual evaluations {131) (58.4TT) - . (3416) (B 024}
- Group evaluations - {65.552) {16.300) (187 740) (Fd) (268,990
Total allowances and charge-offs {131) (124,129) {16,300) (187,740) {3.714) (332,014}
Allowances released
- Individual evaluations 18 10,828 - - 1838 12 863
- Group evaluatons - B,6E3 b52 7136 219 16,969
Total released allowances 119 198,511 952 7,135 2155 29872
Recovery of loans previously charged off - 6,994 1,389 22006 - 30479
MNet charge to income 12 (o7,624) {13,95%) (158 508) {1,559) {271,883}
Loans and accounts receivables from customers
As of December 31, 2009 Interbank Commercial Martgage Consumer Cantingent
loans leans loans loans foans Total
MCh§ MCh$ MEhS MChE MChE MChE
Allowances and charge-offs
= Individusal evaluations m (34,739) . (1.380) {36.126)
- Group evaluationg - [73,774) (14,061) (276 530) - (364,355}
Total allowances and charge-offs m (108,513) {14,061) (276,530) {1,380) (400491}
Allowances released
- |Indiividusal evaluations - 5835 - - - 5,635
- Group evaluatons . 1.718 1450 18,455 72 FANE
Total released allowances - 1353 1,450 18,495 72 nan
Recovery of loans previously charged off - B446 2,560 28,268 - 39,274
Net charge to income M (92,714} {10,051) [229,7T67) (1.308)  (333.847)
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NOTE 33 - PERSONNEL SALARIES AND EXPENSES:

a) Composition of personnel salaries and expenses

As of December 31,

210 2009

MChS MCh
Personnel salanes 157 578 152,685
Bonuses or grabificaions 52958 47983
Stack-based compensation: 2042 23n
Senlonty compensation 6275 3075
Pension plans 936 100
Training expenses 15616 1452
Day care and kindergarten 1960 1.562
Health funds 26N 2519
Wealfara fund 440 452
Ofher parsonnel expenses 13,788 12245
Totals !

b} Stock-based benefits

Banco Santancer Chile and its Afirales have designed variable-compensation plans for her employees, based on perfonmance targets and objactives, the
achievemant of which are evaluated and paid cn a quarterly andlor annual basis. There are also mulli-year vanable-compensation plans designed to retain and
mofvale execufives, whose compensation depands on the achievernent of overal wide and individual targets over e course of a bme peniod exceeding one
year,

Long-term incentive policy

In 3007, the Parent Company's Board of Direclors approved a long-term incenfive plan [PI0B]) cansisting of graniing siock-opfions on Banco Santander S A (the
Parent Company) shares for tha 2008-2010 periad. This plan focwses on tha Santander Group's execulive drectors and cartam execulive employeas in Spain
and ofher Santander Group companies

Az of Decamber 31, 2008 approximately 90 of the Bank's executves enrollad in Plan PI06 exercised 3,099 B50 options over Banco Santander 5.4 shares (the
Parent Compary located in Spain) ata price of 9,09 per share.

Stock performance plan

This consists of 8 mul-year incentive plan wah compensabion in the Pareni Company's shares. The plan's beneficiaries are the Execulive Drectors, ofher
members of Top Management and other Bank employess designated by the Parent Company's Board of Direclors or, by delagation from it the Exscutive
Commitiee, The shares ane dsinbuted i the followang condibons are mel:

I The share price reaches the lop 10 a3 compared to 30 ofer global banks

il. Earnings per share regch the top 10 as compared o 30 other global banks

iil. The Bank has achieved its commercial and financial budget objectives in the tast two years

W. The execulive has achieved hisher personal goals during the kast two years and has confinued o work at the Bank until te end of the program

Thiss plan volves cycles of shares given o the benaficanas. Each cycle has a threa-year langth, 5o a cycle wil begin every year and, fom 2007 onward,
ancther cycle will simultaneously berminate. The obsective is b establish an adequale sequence between the end of the incentive program inked fo the previcus
plan (PIDG) and the successive cyces of this plan. Accordingly, the first two cycles began in July 2007, the first cycle had a two-year length (PI0S). and the
second cycla has a standard fhree-year length (PHD). In June 2008 and 2009 the ird-cycle (P111) and lourth-cycla (P112) incentive plans were approved by the
Parent Company. These new plans consst of three-year cycles and are linked to the fulfliment of the predelermined cbiectives. In 2010, the beginning of the
fifth cycle was approved. This new cycle has a standard term of three years and began ko impact the Consolidated Statements of Income in 2010

Fer each cycle and beneficiary who remains empleyed at the Bank heoughout the plam's term, the Parent deterrines 8 maximum number of shares thal may be
granfed, The objectives to be fulfilled, which will determine the number of shares o be granled, were defined by comparing the Santander Group's performance
with that of a reference group of financial instistions. These objectives are inked Io two parameters: Total Shareholder Return (TSR) and Increase in Eamings
per Share (EPS), each of which has a S0% weighting in ®e delermination of e percentage of shares fo be granted,
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KOTE 33 - PERSONNEL SALARIES AND EXPENSES, confinued:

The final number of shares to be granted in each cycle is delermined by the dagree of fulfillment of the cbjactives on the fird anniversary of sach cycle (with the
excepbon of the first cycle, for which the second anniversary is used), and the shares will be delvered within seven maonths from the dale the cycle ends. The
TSR and e growth of EPS for Santander and the reference financial institutions wil be calculated at that time, which will yield 50% of the amount of shares o
be granted according bo the following scale and based on the relafive pasibon of the Parent Company

The achievement of objectves chart for the 109, 110, and 111 plans i as bllows

Santander’s position in the Maximum percentage of Santander’s position in the Maximum percentage of

TSR Ranking shares earned EPS growth ranking shares earned
1# o 6th 50% izt o Gth B0%
7™ 43% i 43%
8 5% g %
@ 29% g 0%
10" 2% 10 2%
1" 15% 1* 15%
12 and above 0% 12th and abave 0%

For the 12 and 113 plans only TSR is messured

Santander's position in the Maximum percentage

TSR Ranking of shares samed
15t ta Sth 100%
6" B2 5%
™ 65.0%
8 47 5%
e H0N0%
10" and above 0.0%

If Banco Santander, S.A & within the first quartile (including the 25th percentia) for each of the measures consaderad (TSR and EPS growth), the meximim

pencentage of shares will be earned, if it is at the mexdian (including the S0th percentile). 30% of the maximum percentage of shares wil be earned. If it is below
tha median, all the share distributions wil be voided

As of December 31, 2010 the aforementoned chjectives were achieved in ther entinely, so the Bank recorded a cost for the period of ChE2 042 malion, which
correspands o the fair value of Pian 110 (which endad on June 30, 2010), Plan 111, Plan 112, and Plan 113 for fhe shares granted; this sum was charged o
mcame in the specilic period in which the beneficiaries provided their sanvices o Banco Santander Chile. This program had no diluting effects on the non-
coniroling interests. This fair value was calculated as described below:

The far value of the 50% whach it nked i the TSR was delermined by Santander Group on the basis of the Monte Carlo valuation model with 10,000
simulations ran to deferming the TSR for each of the reference Group companies, considering the aforementioned variables. The results (each of which
represents the detribution of a number of shares) are dassified in descending order through the calculation of the weighfed average, and khis amount is
discounted at the risk-free nberest rate

PI0Y PHD P11 PH2 PH3
Expected volallity [*) 16.25% 1567% 19.31% A236%  4054%
Histonical annual dandiend refurn 3.25% 3.24% 34T% 4.88% 6.33%
Risk-re interest rate: 447% 445% 483% 2.04% 3.35%

("] Ddermined on the basie of historical volatility swer th course of the perod (lwo o thrse years).
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KOTE 33 - PERSONNEL SALARIES AND EXPENSES, confinued:

The simulabion model's application yields a percentage value of 42.7% for PI0G. 42 3% for P10 and 44 % for the second cycle for P 1, 55.4% for P12, {which
s applied to 50% of the value of the granted shares fo determine the carrying amount of the incenive's T5R-based portion) and finally 45 64% for PI13. Since
this valualicn i related io 8 merket condition, it cannot be adjusted afler the date on which the shares are granted

In view of i high comedation between the TSR and EPS, it can reasonably be concluded that the TSR value is also vald for EPS in a high percentage of cases
Accordingly, it was detenmined that the fair value of the portion of the plans linked to the Bank’s relative EPS position, for exampie fha remaining 50% of the
shares granted, was the zame as the 50% corespandng fo TSR, Snce this valuation daes not refer to market condibions, the number of shares expeclad to be
granted will be re-examined and adusied on a per-annum basis.

Below k= a table which provides a detad of the foragoing

Date of Date of
commencement temmination
Number of Exercise Number of  of the exercise  of exercise
shares price Group of employees individuals period period
£

Plans in force on January 1, 2005
Options granted (Ptan 106) 4284700  809(™) Managers 123 0NS2008  MMSE00E
Oplions exercised - - -
Options cancalled of not exercised (267,700) . . )] 0152008 0152000
Plans in force on January 31, 2005 407,000
Oplions ecercrssd - . . - . -
Oplicns cancalled, net (Plan 108) {166,600) 809 Managers = DINS2009 0N SH008
Plans in force on January 31, 2006 3,850,400
Options granted (Plan 1089) 270,823 - Managers 158 0772006 DGANA00S
Options granted (Flan 1083) 12844 - Other non-managerial positions 23 072006 DGOOZ009
Options granted (Ptan 110) 276,048 - Managers 159 07MN2007  0GROZ0
Options granted (Plan 110) 12720 - Other non-managenal positions 2 O7MN/2007  0RBN2MD
Options cancallad, net (Plan 106) (184,900) 4508 Mananers - . -
Plans in force on January 31, 2007 4,237 835
Options granted (Fian 108) 134 985 - Managers 159 07012006 0GO02009
Opticns granted (Plan 109) GAN - Other non-managenal pestions 2 O7MN2006  DGR02009
Oplions granted (Flan 110) 676,553 - Managers 150 72T 0RRNEID
Options granted (Pan 110) AT - Other non-managerial positions 2 072007 DRAWEN0
Opticns granted (Plan 111) 385,236 - Managers 161 O7/2008  0GR0011
Options granted (Plan 111) 26,558 - Other non-managerial pesitions 53 07012008 06RO
Options cancalled, net (Plan 06) {565,650 - - - MAS2009 01152009
Optiong exercised, ned (Plan 105) {3,009,850) - Managers 90 . -
Plans in force on January 31, 2008 1,843 343
Opticns granted (Flan 109) 260472 . Managers 159 072006 DGAWEI0S
Options granted (Plan 108) 12,780 - Oither non-managerial positions 22 072006 0630/2008
Opticng granted (Pian 110) 566,568 - Managers 159 07/01/2007  0GRO0Z2010
Options granted (Fian 110) 26,108 - Qther nen-managerial posifions 22 072007 DERNEN0
Dptians granted {Plan 111) 661,568 - Managers 161 070172008 0GR
Opticns granted (Plan 111) 44 483 - Othver non-managenial pesitions 53 O7/2008 0GR0011
Options granted (Flan 112) 327 BE2 - Managers 57 0712008 0GR0ZIZ
Options granted (Flan 112) 35,848 - Other non-managerial positions 76 072008 0AO02012
Options exercised (Plan K9) (675,280) . Managers 15 - -
Oplicns exercised (Plan 109} (32,025 - Other non-managanial positions 2
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NOTE 33 - PERSONNEL SALARIES AND EXPENSES, continued:

Bedow = a taible which provides 2 detad of the foragoing, continued

Date of
Date of termination
Number of  Excercise Numberof commencement of exercise
shares prica Group of employees individuals  of the exercise period
€
Plans in force on January 31, 2009 3,082,145
Opfions grarted (Plan 110) 231 o76 . Managers 162 OTANF2007  DGR02010
Opfions granted (Plan 110} 4,070 - Other nor-managenial positions ] OTAAR00T D600
Options granled (Plan 111) 857 712 . Managers 167 OFAO/2008  DGAOGAD11T
Optiors granted (Plan 111} 3Hamn . Ofher non-managenal posions 47 O7TNN/2008 06RO
Ophions granted (Plan 112) 554,330 - Managers 170 OFNAF2008  DEI0A2012
Cptians granted (Plan 112) 43,787 : Other non-ranagenal postions 63 O7N0/2008 0602012
Opfions granted (Plan 113) 376 049 . Mot distributed 072010 DGR3
Opftions exercrsed (Plan 110) (1.757,145) - Managers 162 - -
Options exercised (Plan |10) (To.070) . Orther non-manageial posiions 18
Plans in force on January 31, 2010 3,066,004
Plam 111 1,717,169
Plan 12 972 856
Plan 13 376049

(™) The exencise price for the opbions under Plan 106 was 9.09 Euros per share, whach is the weighted average of the average daily market price of the Bank
shares over the continucus mearket for the first 15 rading days of Janeary 2005. This was the critenon established in the resolubon appreving Plan 106,
sdopled at the Annual General Meeting of the Parent Company on June 18, 2005, Such plan maintained a reskicion on exercising the oplion 15 days prior
lo the: 2008 Fnancal Stalernent dasing date, which explains why the opbons nof exercised bafone Decamber 15, 2008 were cancellad in ther antiraty
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ROTE 34 - ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:

Az of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the composstion of the item = as follows:

As of December 31,

2010 2009

MCh§ MChS
General administrative expenses
Maintenance and repair of property, plant and equipment 11,165 10,260
Office lease 18875 i7.202
Equipment lease 156 28
Insurance payments 1.740 1,183
Office supplies 6,693 6,626
Information technology and communicaon expenses 21,092 19,780
Lighting, hesating, and other utiltes 5504 5.204
Security and valuables ransport senaces 10,185 10,135
Representation and personnel ravel expenses 4024 3,768
Judicial and notarial expanses 6466 4470
Fees for technical reports 4171 56685
Feas for professional sendces 4B a3
Other general adminisiratve expenses 2564 amz
Cuisourced services
Data processing 20066 14585
Ofher 10017 0308
Board expenses
Cormpensation (o Board members B4 645
Marketing expenses
Publicity and advertising 14,228 13,847
Taxes, payroll taxes and contributions
Real estate contrbubions 1655 1,885
Patents 1663 1.7
Offer taxes 28 24
Confribufions to SBIF 5508 5431
Totals 147,343 136 M2
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WOTE 35 - DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION:

a) &) Thevalues of deprecialion and amortization chargas durng the 2010 and 2009 panods are datailed balow

As of December 31,
2010 2008
MChs MCh$
Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment [2217%) [21,681)
Amorizations of Intangitle assels (27,228 (24,932
Impaimment of property, plant. and eguipment 4,925 {5
Totals (54,328) (45,658)

b} b} The reconciliation between e book values and the balances as of Decerber 31, 2010 and 2009 is as folows

Depreciation, amortization, and impairment

2010
Property, plant Intangible
and equipment a3sets Total
MCh$ MCh$ MCh$
Balance as of January 1 {43,054) {51,101) (94 155)
Depraciation and amartization charges in the period {22,175) (27 228) 45,403)
Imgaiment [4.925) {4.925)
Sales and disposals in the period 178 - iTB
Balance as of December 31 (69,378) (78,329) {147, 705)

Depraciation, amortization, and impairment

2009
Property, plant Intangible
and equipmant assels Tatal
MCh MChE MCh%
Balance as of January 1 (#1,414) (26,169) (47 583)
Depreciation and amortization charges in the peniod (21,681) (24 834 (46 523)
Impairnant {5) - (75)
Sales and dsprsals in the period 126 . 126
Balance as of December 31 (43,054) 151,101) (84,1535)

#s of December 2010, the amount of imparment of property, plan, and equipment iotaled Ché 4,925 milion due to the Earthquake on February 27, 2010 which
affected some of the offices located at the damaged zone for a folal Chsd, 739 milion n offices and Ch$186 milion for ATMs. As of Decamber 31, 2009 the
amount of impaimment o propaty. plant, and equpment otaled CHETS millon for damages to ATMs
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WOTE 36 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES:

a) b} Orher operating income are comprised of the following companents:

As of December 31,
210 2008
MChS MChS
Incorme fram assets received in liew of payment
Income from sale of assets recesved in lieu of payment 2838 2462
Recovery of charge-ofis and incame from assats recaived in lieu of payment 2,706 4544
Subtotals 5,544 7406
Income from sale of investments in other companies (%)
Gain on sale of investments in other companies - 1858
Subtotals - 1859
Other income
Lagses 17 1,123
Gain on sale of proparty, plant and equipment (*') 31,248 7622
Recovery of provisions for conlingencies T.040 14793
Compensation from insurance companies due o earfhouake 3175 -
Others (™) 36,278 440
Subtotals T7.856 ar
Totals E3.400 B3

(") On March 10, 2009 Viza inc. ransfemed 1o Banco Santander Chike 34 093 class LAC shares On March 20, 2009 51% of thess shares were sold
comespanding to 17,387 shares &t $27 442 per share, generaiing a sale profit of ChE447 million

On June 26, 2009 16,049 MasterCard shares were sold Al the tme of sale ther accouning valse was ChSE3 millian and their sefing pice was Chi1 453
miflion genersting & sale profit of Ch$1 370 milkon

(™) In April 2010, Banco Santander Chile sold 5 ofices. Al ®e time of zale the iotal accounting value of these assets was Che4 927 million, ther selling price
was Ch311.547 milion, generaling a ChE 6,620 pro§t millon

In June 2010, Banco Santander Chile sold 11 offices. Al the ime of sale the tolal accounting value of these assels was ChiB, 138 million ther selling price
was Ch§14.548 milion generating a Ché 6.408 milion profit

In July 2010, Banca Santander Chile sold a piace of proparty. Al fha mea of sala the lotal accounting value of his good was Che2840 million, its selling price
was Ch3TE million, generatng a Chs 4 million less, included in the “ether cperaling expenses” ne

In October 2010, Banco Santander Chils lendered the sale of 16 offices. The sale was awarded by Compariia de Segures CorpSequros S.A for ChS18.478
million (UF B51,320), which generated an approximate profit for Ch$10,220 milion. Its accouniing value was Che8,250 million (UF 387,227). The bill of sale
was signed on Oclober 3010

In Newember 2010, Bance Santender Chile scid a piece of property. At e tme of sale the total eccounting value of Bis good was ChE158 milkon, its s2ling
price was Ch$2a0 million, generating a Ché 62 million profit

In Decerrber 2010, Banco Santander Chile soid 11 offices. Al the brne of sale the tolal accounting value of these assels was Ch4,257 milion ther saling
price was Ch$11,534 million generating a ChS T 677 million proft

(") This line includes the release of addiional provisions for Ch$ 35,504 million due to the recalibrabon of the model for establishing contingent allowances
according to Chapler B-3 from tha SEIF Compendium of Accounting Standards
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KOTE 36 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES, continued:

b} b} Other oparatng expanses ara comprisad of e following companants

As of December 31,
20Ma 2009
MCh$ MCh$

Provisions and expenses for assets received in lieu of payment
Charge-alfs of assets recesved in bau of payment 10,815 8,182
Provisions for assets receved in Beu of payment 3647 FRET)
Expanses for maintenance of assets received in liew of payment 2,302 2912

Subtotals 16,854 13,87
Credit card expenses
Credit card experses 102 3,004
Credit card memberships 3675 2,808

Subtofals BTTT 5,902
Customer services 7,758 8,807
Other expenses
Operaling charge-offs 4843 3,108
Life ingurance and genaral product insurance policies 5,703 4 553
Additional tay on expenses paid cverseas 2174 1,748
Expenses for merigage credis 1,853 ai4
Leosses on sale of property, plant and equipment A 24
Expanses for foreign rade operations 123 308
Incame from keasing ransactons a2 o
Provisions fer conbngencies () 47 476 1,084
Earthquake expenses 5875 .
Othears 2511 4,206

Subtoltals 70,581 15,825
Tolals 102,068 44,405

{*] This flem includes the affect of addSonal provisions per available cred® line for the period, iotaling ChE6,902 million. It also includes ChE39 800 milkan
comespanding o the early adoption of Chapler B-3 fram the Compendium of Accounting Standards from the SBIF, according to Nede 2
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NOTE 37 - TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

In addition to Affiliates and assoc@ted enbbas, the Bank's “related parties” indude the “key personnel” of the Bank's executive sialf [members of the Bank's
Board and the Managers of Bance Santander Chile and its Affliates, together with thelr close relabives), as well as the enfities over which the key personnel
could exercise significant influence or confrol

The Bank alzo considers the companies that are part of the Santander Group worldwade as related parties, given that all of them have a common parent, |.e.,
Banco Santander 5.4, (located in Spain)

Article B3 of the Ley de Sociedades Andnimas (Public Companies Acl), which |s also applicable to banks, provides thal any Fansacion with a relaled party must
be made under equitable conditions simiar to those that cusiomarily prevail in Be market

Moreover, Articke B4 of the Ley General de Bancos (General Banking Act) establshes imits for loans that can be granied io related partes and prohibits lending
o the Bank's dreclors, managers, or representatives.

Transactions between the Bank and its related parties are specified below. To facilitale comprehensicn, we have divided the informabion inte four categories
Sartander Group Companies

This category includes all the companies fat are confrolled by the Santander Group around the world, and hence, it also includes the companies over which the
Bank exercres any degree of control (AMikales and special purpose entibes)

Associaled companies

This category includes the enfities over which the Bank, in accordance with sacfion bj of hote 1 to these Financial Statements, exercises a significant degree of
miuence and which ganerally belang o the group of entibes known as business support companies.”

Hey personnel
This calegory includes members of the Bank's Board and the managers of Banco Santander Chile and its Aflikates, together with ther close relaives
Other

This calegory encompasses the relaled parbies that ane nol included in the groups identified above and which are, in general, enliies ower which the key
personnel coukd exercise significant influence or conlrol

The terms for rensactons with related partes are eguivalent io those which prevail in ransactions made under market condiions: or 1o which the comespanding
congsiderations in kind have been atirbuled,
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KOTE 37 - TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES, continued:

a)  Loans to related parties:

Bedow are leans and receivables, and contingent leans, comesponding o related enlities

& Santander

As of Decernber 31, 2010

As of December 31, 2009

Comipanies Associsted Key Companies Associated Hey
ofthe Group  companies  permsonnel Qthar af the Group companies  personnel Cither
MCh§ MChE MChS MChE MChS MChS MCh$ MChE
Loans and accounts
receivables
Commercial loans 36966 670 24TB 14015 11.331 914 2840 108,372
Merigage loans . . 15,157 . - 12,754
Consumer loans 2.182 1,744
Leans and accounts
receivables 36,966 670 19,817 14015 13 14 17338 108,372
Pravision for loan losses (112) {1} (87} (14} (13) (1) {11} {258)
Net loans 36,854 19,730 14,001 11,318 L] 1737 108,074
Guaraniees 7641 18,649 1359 4552 45550 596
Contingent loans
Parsonal guranieas - - 15,900
Letters of credit 2554 . 1,868 - -
Guarantees 12,307 B4 134 544 . 258
Contingent kxans 152N 84 136,512 15,900 25
Pravigions fof contngent loans {n - - . 21}
Net contingent loans 15,270 E . 84 136,451 15,900 23
The activity of loans io relaled perties during e years 2010 and 2009 is shown below
As of December 31,
2010 2009
Companies  Asseciated Koy Compandes  Assoclated Hey
ofthe Group companies  personnel  Other of the Group companies  personnel  Other
MChS MChE MChS MCh% MChS MCh§ MCh§ MCh%
Balances as of January 1 147 843 914 17330 108531 107 815 51 14,845 110,089
Mew kans 11,954 258 6901 11800 176,518 2268 24178 30.2H)
Payments (#07,560) (500) 4.423) (106,132) [136.468) 1.403) (9.763) (31688
Balances as of December 31 52237 670 19817 14089 147,543 914 308 1086M
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AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Assets and liabilities with related parties
As of December 31,
2010 2009
Companies  Associated Key Companies  Associated Key
of the Group  compankes  persomnel  Other ofthe Group  compankes  personnel  Other
MCh§ MCh$ MCh$ MCh§ MCh§ MChs MCh$ MCh$
Assets
Cash and deposits n banks MM
Trading investments -
Invesinents uncel resale agreements - -
Financial derivative confacks 41 737 405411
Avalable for sale invesiments * *
Other assate 132,152 117,060
Liabilities
Depasits and other demand kabiktes 9,905 G014 1311 4128 1503 6,238 02 925
Ivvesiments under repurchase agresments 47,655 . . - . . . .
Time deposits and ofher ime liabilties 320,522 1657 4B 740 411,205 - 1126 21652
Financial derivalive confracts T EM - - 245,574 - -
Issued debt instuments 9,362 89258
Other financial lisbilities 153,912 55,156
Other liahilities 2782 i1}
¢} Income (expenses) recorded with related parties
As of December 31,
2010 2009
Companles of  Assoclatod Koy Companies of  Assoclabed Ky
the Graup companies  personnel  Other the Group  compandes  parsonnel Crhseer
MChS MCh$ MCh$ MChE MChS MCh$ MCh$ MCh$
Income (expensa) recorded
Income and expenses from inlerasts and
readjustments {10,093) 55 1,279 {23.344) 42 308 (7E%)
Income and expenses from fees and sarvices 70,359 43 102 a3 56,822 T T 50
Hatincome from financial and foneign 25 457 ) 4098 129 (48 ) 7 (1364
exchange operations
Oither operating revenues and expenses (4 B5E) . (4,294) .
Key personnel compensation and expenses . (29,879) - (28,663)
Adminisfrative and other expensas {20,738 (M7 - {13,107} {16,656) -
Totals 121,119 (21,674) (28502) 4198 145123 (16,553} (28.274) (14353
(") Reflects dervative conlracts that hadge Group posibions in Chile
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KOTE 37 - TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES, continued:
d} d) Paymaentsto Board members and key managemeant parsannel

Tha compensation received by the key managemant persennal, including Board members and all the executives holding Manager pogiions, shown in the
“Personnel salaries and expensas” andior “Adminisfrative axpenses” lems of the Consoldated Stalement of Incorms, cormespands o the follawing calegories

As of December 31,
2010 2009
MCh§ MCh$

Parsonnel salarnes 14801 1353

Compensation to Board membsers B4 645

Bonuses or gratificalions 10,038 10,318

Compensalion in slock 1372 1,676

Training expenses 7 49

Semarity compensalion 1,104 1,759

Health funds 242 242

Other personniel expenses 417 343

Fensaon plans o34 100

Totals 28879 28,663

) Composition of key personnel
Az of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the composstion of the Bank's key personnel is as follows:
Pasifions No. of executives
2010 2009

Directors 13 13
Division managers 18 13
Department managers a2 a3
Managers ] 58
Total key perscnnel 181 167
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KOTE 37 - TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES, continued:
i Stock-based benefits

Tha following tablie details the acivity in slock-besed benefits paid to the key personnel of the Bank and its Affiliales. The detail for each of these benefit plans is
described in section b) of Mobe 33

Date of Date of
COMMEncEment temination
MNumber of Excercise Group of Mumber ¢! of the exercise of the exercise
shares price employees  individuals period period

13
Pians in force on January 1, 2005
Dptions granted (Pan 108) 4,284,700 9.00(*) Managers 123 01152008 01152000
Options exercised - ; - - - -
Opticns cancellzd or not exercised (267 700y - - () 0152008 TR R
Plans in force on January 31, 2005 4,017,000 9.09
Options exercised . . . . : .
Options cancalled, nat (Plan 106 (166,600) 9,09 Managers 5 01N52009 01NSR00
Plans in force on January 31, 2006 3,850,400 900
Optians granted (Flan 10H) 270,823 - Managers 158 07172006 063072009
Oplions granted (Pian 110) 276,048 . Managers 159 070172007 030010
Options cancelled, net (Flan [06) (184 200) 2,04 Manegers - . -
Piang in force on January 31, 2007 AHZ3IT -
Oplions granted (Plan 109) 134,885 - Managers 158 07012006 0673072008
Oplions granted (Plan 110) 676.553 - Managers 156 0712007 0673052010
Options granted (Plan 1) 355236 Managers 161 O7M/2008 Da/307011
Options cancallad, net (Plan 106) (565,650) - # 2 D4/15/2009 01152009
Oplions exercised, ned (Plan 106) {3,099 B50) . Managers 90 - -
Plans in force on January 31, 2008 1,753 645 -
Oplions granted (Plan 109) 269472 - Maragers 158 07012006 T o]
Options grantad (Flan 110) 566,556 i Managers 158 070172007 053072010
Oplions granted (Pan 111) i1 968 . Managers 161 074012008 063072011
Opticng granted (Ptan 112) 327 gaz2 . Maragers 157 07m2009 0E3002
Options exercised (Plan 103} (&5, 280) - Managers 158 - -
Plans in force on January 31, 2009 2,904,255 .
Ophons granted (Plan 110) 237 876 - Managers 162 Q71207 0E30010
Options granted (Plan 111) 857,772 . Managers 167 07m12008 0673072011
Opticns granted (Flan 112) 554,230 - Managers 170 070172009 Da30M012
Options exercised (Plan 110} (1,757, 145) x Managers 162 : =
Plans in force on January 31, 2010 2,507,197 -
Plan 11 1.614 876 -
Fian 112 82221 .

{**) The exercise price for the oplions under Plan 106 was 9.09 Euros per share, which is the weighted average of the average daily market price of the Bank
shares over the continucus market for the first 15 trading days of January 2005, This was the critenon established in the resolution approving Plan 106,
adopted at the Annual General Meeting of the Parent Company on June 18, 2005. Such plan maintained & restricion on exercising the option 15 days prior
o the 2008 Financial Stalement closing date, which expiains why the oplions nol exercised before December 15, 2008 were canceliad in ther entirety
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NOTE 38 - PENSION PLANS:

During the second half of 2009, the Bank granted an addifional benafit ko ils principal executives, consisting of a pension plan whose purpose is to endow fem
wath funds for a betier supplernantary pension upan e retinement.

For this purpase, e Bank wil maich the woluntery confribubions made by the beneficeries for their fulwe pensions with an equivalent confibution. The
exaculives will be enlitied 1o recaive this benafit only when they Tl all of the kaliowing condibions:

i. Aimad al Group management

il. The paneral requisite to apply lor this benefil ks that the employes must be werking al te Bank al age 60.

iii. The Santander Group will take on insurance (pension fund) on the employee's behat for which it will pay a premium contribution periodically.
. The Santander Group will be responsibla for granting the benefils drectly.

If the workang relationship between the manager and the respective compary ends, before she or designated beneficiaries fulfils the abovementioned
requinernants, she will have no rights under this benefit plan

In the event of the executve’s death or total or partial disabdity, she or designated beneficianies will be entified o receive this benefit

The Bank will make the contributions 1o tis benefit plan on the basis of mixed collective insurance policies whose beneficiary i the Bank. The life insurance
company with whom such policies are executed iz nat an entity inked or refated to the Bank or any ofher Santander Group company

During the second half of 2000, he Bank made a contrbution of ChE4,726 milkon, and & current contibubion of ChE26T milicn. The rights owned by Se Bank
for the Plan at the and of the 2010 period fotal CheS, 170 milkan

The amount of defined benefit agreements has been quantified by the Bank, based on the follawing criteria

1. Calcutation method:
Use of the projected unit credit method which considers each working year as gensrafing an addiional amount of nghts over benefits and values each unit
separalely. It ks calculated in function of the fund contrbutions considered as a main varkable, factors assocated with the legal annual penson limit, semonity,
age and yearly income for each unit valued indandually.

2. Updated actuarial assumpbions:
Achuarial assumptions with respect io demographic and Enancal vamables are non-biased and mutually compatible with each ofher. The most significant
actuarial assumpions consderad in the calculations were

Post-employment Post-employment
plans plans
2010 2009
Mertality tabhe R-2004 R-2004
Disability table POT 1985 POT 1985
Tumover rates 5.0% 5.0%

Asszats related fo the persan fund conlributed by the Bank inta the insurance company with respect i defined benefit plans are presented as nat of assodiated
commitrmants. The balance of this fem a the end of the penod i a5 lllows:
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KOTE 38 - PENSION PLANS, continued:

Tha period's activity for post-employment banalits s as follows

& Santander

MChS

Plan assels

Commitments for defined-benefit plans
For actva personnel

Incued by inactive persannel

Minus

Unrealized achsarial (gen) losses
Batances at the period end

Thwe: period's flow for postemployment benefits is as Tollows:

417

4983

(R0

4,893

2010
MCh%

2009
MChS

a ) Fair value of plan assets

Balance af beginning of period

Expacied retumn of insurance confracts

Employer conlribufions

Actuarial (gain) losses

Premiurres paid

Benefits paid

Orther

Falr value of plan assels at end of period
b ) Present value of obligations

Preseni value of cbligations at beginning of the period

Met incorporation of Group companies

Senice cost

Inberest cost

Curtaiimentisattiement affect

Benefitz paid

Past service cost

Actuanial (gain) losses

Orher

Presant value of obligations at end of the pariod
Net balance at the period end

120

4,593
202
43

5170

(1)

(12)

(953)
447

4993

{100)

{100}
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MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
NOTE 38 - PENSION PLANS, continued:

ERDFCD?CE.‘HIE of retum on plan @ssets and reimbursement rights

10 2009
Expached rate of refurn on plan's assals UF +2.50% annua LIF +2.50% annua
Expected rate of refurn on rembursemant rights UF + 2 50% annual LIF + 2.50% annual
Plan expensas
210 2009
MChS MChS
Cument period servioe cost 841 100
Inferest cost -
Expecied rebun on plan assats (202)
Expected retun on insurance confracts linked 1o the Plan
Extraordinary allocations .
Actuarial {gains)losses recorded in the period 12
Past sarvice cost
Other

Totals ™ 100




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES & Santander
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

WOTE 38 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:

Far value = defined as the amount al which a fnancal insfrument (2sset or Rability) could be exchanged or salfed, respectively, on that date betwean
knowledgeable, willing partes in an am's length fransaction (e, nol in a forced o bquedation sale). The mest cbjective and customary relerence foe the fair
value of an asset or ability & the quated price that would be paid for it on & ransparent organized market "estmaled farr valug’)

For fnancial inskrumants with no available market prices, far values have been estimated by using recent transactons in analogows instuments, and in the
absance therecf, the present values or other valuation lechniques based on matematical valuation modeis sufficienty accepied by he international financial
communly, In the usa of thesa modals, consideralion & given fo e specific particulanbes of the asset or lability to ba valued, and especially o the different
kinds of rigks assocated with be assel of liabiity.

These techniques are inherently subjecive and are significantly influenced by the assumplions used, incleding the dscount rale, the estimates of fulure cash
Tlows and prepayment expectations. Hence, the far value estimaied for an assel or liability may not coincide exactly with the price ai which that asset or kabiity
could be delivered or satfed on the date of its valuation, and may not be justiiad in companizon with indapendent markets

Determination of fair value of financial instruments

Below s a compartson babween S value al which the Bank's financial assats and labdites are recorded and their far value as of December 31, 2010 and
2004:

As of December 31,
2010 2009
Amount recorded Fair value Amount recorded Fair value
MCh$ MCh$ MCh$ MCh$

Assets

Cash and depasits in banks 1,762,198 1,762,198 2043 458 2043 458
Un=saftiad ransachaons 374,368 374,368 468,134 458,134
Trading investments 379670 379,670 758,539 198,539
Investments under resale agreements 170,545 170,385 14,020 14020
Financial derivative confracts 1,624,378 1,624,578 1,383,878 1,383,878
Loans and accounts receivable from customers and interbank

loans 15,784 950 17,624,736 13,401 748 15,075,810
Available for sale invesimenis 1,473,080 1,473,580 1,830,080 1,830,080
Deposits and interbank bomowings 13079 248 13,191 438 12755581 12 445 748
Unsettied transactons 300,125 300,125 275474 275474
Investments under repurchase agreemants: 294 725 294 725 1,114 605 1,114,605
Financal dervative confracts 1,643579 1643979 1,348,905 1,348 906
Issued debt instumends and other financial keblites 4 35T AT 4,596,640 30m 587 3184880

In addiion, the far value esimates presented above do not attempt o estmate the value of the Bank's profits generated by its business activily, nor its future
activities, and accordingly, they do not represent the Bank's value as a geing concern. Balow & a summary of the methods used to estimate e fir value of the
Bank's financial inshuments:

a)  Cashand deposits in banks

The recorded value of cash and interbank loans approxdmales its estmated fair valua in view of these mskuments’ short-tarm nature

b} Unsettled transactions, trading instruments, available for sale investment instruments, resale agreements, and securities loans

The estmated tair value of these financial instuments was defermined through the use of market values or quotes by an avedable dealer, o the prices quated
on the market for similar financial instruments. Investments maturing in less than one year are valued at their recorded value because they are - in view of thair
short termns - deemed 1 have a fair value that does not significantly dverge from er recorded value. For the far value estimates of debl investments of deblt

securibies included in thess items, addibional vanables and inpuls are considered o the exient applicable, including an estmale of prepayment rales and the
ssuers’ credit risk
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KOTE 38 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued:
¢} Loans and accounts receivable from customers and interbank loans

The fair values of commercial loans are esfimales made by pefoming a cash flow discount analysts, using the interest rabes that are cumently cffered for loans
with termes similer to those of bormowers having a smilar credit quality. The farr values of uneamed loans are estimated by using e cash flow discount analysis
stemming from the sattlement of the underfying secunbes, if ary (or other sources of payment), af an esbmaled discount rate. For foating-rate loans whose
prices change Fequently and are not subject ko any significant change of credit nsk, the esimated far values are based on the recorded values. The fair values
estimated for certain morigage loans, credit cards, and other consumer loans are based on market values for smilar loans, adusted for diferences in the loans’
characlerisics

d) Deposits

The disclosed fai value of deposits thal do nol accrue inberest and savings sccounts is the amaunt payable on the reperting date, and accerdingly, it is equal to
the recorded amount. The feir value of time: deposits is calculated by using a discounted cash flow calculalion, which applies current inkevest rates being offered
al the time o a calendar of manthly maturities establshed for tme depesits. The value of lang-term relations with depositors does not take inlo consideration the
disciosed far value estimate.

) Short and long term issued debt instruments

The fair valea of thesa nancial instruments & caloulated by using the cash flow discount analysis based on the curent incremental lending rales for smiler
typers of loans having similar raburties.

) Financial derivative contracts

The estmated fair value of cumency forward confracts was calculated using the prices quated on the market for Bnancial insiruments having smilar
characleristics

The fair value of interest rate swaps represants the estmated amount that the Bank expects to receive or pay to rescind the conracts or agreements, bearing in
rind the termn structures of the interest rate curve, the inderlying assat's volatiity and the counterparts’ cradit risk.

It there are no quoted prices on the marked (erther direct or indirect) Tor any derivalve insirumend, e respectve far value estmales have been calculaled by
usng models and valuaton lechriques such as Black-Schales, Hull, and Monle Carlo sirulations, taking inlo corsideration the relevant inpulsioulputs such as
wvolatility of options. observable comelations between underlying assels, counterparts’ credd risk. implic! price volafity, the velocity with which the volaliity
renerts o its average value, and the straight-ine relationship (comelation) betwean the value of a marke! vanabde and is volatiety, among others

Measurement of fair value and hierarchy

|45 38 provides a heerarchy of reasonable value which separates the inputs andior valuation bechnique assumplions used to measure the fair value of financial
instruments, The hierarchy atiributes the highest prority fo unadjusied quated prices on active markets, io identical (level 1) assels or liabiities, and & lower
priority bo measures which involve significant unobsensable inputs of outputs (level 3 measuraments). The three levels of the hierarchy of Bar values are;

Level 1: inpulsloutpuls with (unadusied) quoted prices on active markets for idenfcal ssels and lisbilibes which the Bank can access on the date of
maasurament

Level 2: inputsfouiputs ofher than the quoled prices included in level 1 which are observable for assets or liabiliies, either direcly or indinecSy.
Lewel 3: inputsioutputs not obsenvabie for the asset or the liability

Thea hierarchy level al which a measuremand is classified is basad on the lowes! level of inpubloulpul which is sigraficant for the measurerent of fe fair value of
the financial instrument in its enfirety

The best svidence of a fnancial instrumant's fair valua at the initial trme i the ransaction price obsarved in the market (Leval 1)
In cases where quotalions cannot be cbserved, Management miakes its best estimale of the price that the market would set using its own internal models which

in most cases use data based on cbservable markel parameters a5 signifcant inputs (Level 2) and, in very specific cases, they use significant inputs nat
observable in market data
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KOTE 38 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued:
Financal instruments at far value and determinad by quatations pubkshed in active markets (Leved 1) include:

1) Chiagn Government and Department of Treasury bends
2) Average Chamber Swaps

3) FX Forward and Inflation

4) Cross Cumency Swaps (CCE)

5) F¥ Options.

&) Interest Rate Swap (IRS) FX

Instrurnants which cannal be 100% observable in e market are valued accarding i ofher inpuls which are observable in the market (Leved 2). They include
1) Morigape bands
2) Privabe pager
3) Deposits

In limifted occasions significant inputs not chaervable in merkel data are used (Level 3). To camy out this estmate, several lechnigues ane used, including
extrapolation of cbsarvable market data or a mix of ob=aneble data

1) Interest Rerte Swap (IRS) TAB
2] Local cumency intarest rale opons
3) Bonds (in our case, low liquidity bonds)

Al the moment, the Bank has delermined soma fnancal instruments as Level 3 since the markal value estimale is based on infernal modelling information,
which is obsenvable market data

The fallowing instruments ane classlad under Level 3

Type of financial instrument Madeal used in valuation Description
Biack Mammal Moded for 2
CapaFloorsSwaptions CapfFloces and Swaplions Thea &5 no obsensabie mpul of impicit voiatlity

+ UF opfons Black - Scholes These is no observabéa input of implict volablity

. . 1 Hybrid HW madel for rates and Brownian mation for FX. There is no observabile
Cross cumency swap with window Hull-Vifhifa input of imglicit voiatiity

+ELT06S CUTAnty s Wit alrode: - Wil Poruerd Rt Start Fwd unsupported by MUREX (platiorm) due fo the UF forvard estimale

Santiago 3.4 Agreement (FRA)

+ Cross cumency swap, Interest rale \Velidation obiteined by using the interest curve and interpolang at flow maturities,
swap, Call money swapin Tasa Aclva  Sundry but TAS s not a directly chservable vanabla and = not comelated to any markat
Bancaria [Actve Bank Rale) TAB Iput.

The following table presants the assats and abilties that are measured at far value on a recurrent basis, &s of Deceamber 31. 2010 and 2009

Fair Value Measurement
As of December 31, 210 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
MChE MChS MChE MCh$

Assets
Treding invesiments 8670 348,638 032 -
Bvalabie for sale investments 1473580 1,087 467 36,224 268
Derfvatives 1,624,378 . 1,520,330 104,030
Totals 3478028 1,445,125 1,927,595 104,308
Liabilities
Dervatives 15435879 - 1,638 557 5427
Totals 15643879 - 1,638,557 542z
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KOTE 38 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, continued:

& Santander

Measures of fair value

As of Decernber 31, 2009 Level 1 Lewvel 2 Level 3
MChS MChS MChS MChS

Assels
Trading imvestments 198,53 798,538
Auailable for sale investments 1,830,080 1,830,080 - -
Dernatves 1,353,878 - 1,181 850 212 18
Totals 4022507 262861 1,181,650 212218
Liabilities
Derivatives 1,348,905 880,058 456 648
Totals 1,348 906 - 880,058 458,848

The following table presents the Bank's actvity for assels and liabiliies measured at fair value on @ recument basis using uncbeanved sgnificant entries (Level 3)

as of December 31, 2010 and 2004

Assels Liabilities
MCh§ MCh§
As of January 1, 2010 21218 |#68,848)
Total realized and unrealized profits (lossas):
Included in profit (107 £a4) 474270
Included in comprehensive income (26) .
Purchases, Esuances, and placemants (nef) .
As of December 31, 2010 104,308 5422
Total profits or losses included in income for 2010 that are attributable to change in unrealized profits (losses) (107.810) AT42T0
related to assets or liabilities as of December 31, 2010 ’ :
Assets Liabilities
MChS MCh$
As of January 1, 2009 81,304 (51,401)
Total realized and unrealized profits (losses):
included in prafit 130,814 (417 447)
Included in comgrehensve income - -
Purchases, issuances, and placerments (nel)
As of December 31, 2009 Fak sl (455 Bas)
Total profits or lossas included in income for 2008 that are attributable to change in unrealized profits (losses) 130,914 (#17.447)

refated to assets or liabilities as of December 31, 2009

The realized and unrealized profits (Josses) included in income for 2010 and 2008, in the assets and kabdiSes valued at far valve on & recurrent basss through
uncbsarvable significant entnes (Level 3) ere recorded in the Income Statement under the "Net income from financial cperabions” item

The potental effect as of December 31, 2010 and 2000 on the valsa®on of assets and liabilities valued at fair value on a recusTent basis through unobservable
significant enfries (level 3), generated by changes i the principal assumplions if ofher reasonably possble assumpbons that are less or more favorable were

usid, B not considensd by the Bank o be significant
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NROTE 40 - RISK MANAGEMENT:
Introduction and ral description

Through its activity with financial insiruments, the Bank is exposed o several fypes of rsk. The principal risks relaled o the financial insiruments hat are
applicabla fo the Bank are the fallowing

Market risks: these arise from holding financial instruments whose vaiue may be aflected by fluctuations in market conditions, generally including the
following types of risk
o Fereign axchange risk: this arises s a consequence of exchange rate Suckualions among currencies.
b.  Inferestrate risk: this arises a5 a consequence of fuctuations in marke! interest rates.
¢. Pricarisk. fis arises as a consequence of changes in market prices, either due o fachors specific 1o the insirument isell or due to faciors thal
aflect all fhe instruments negobialed in e manked
d. Infation risk: fis arises as @ consequence of changes in Chile's inflation rate, whose effect would be mainly epplicable to financial msruments
denominated in UFs.

Credit risk: ths is the risk of one of the parties fo & financial instrument failing fo meet its contrachual obligations for reasons of insalvency or inabiity
of the indwiduals o legal entities in question, causing a financial loss on the dther party.

Liquidity risk: bquadity risk i the poeshbility that an enlity may be unable to meat its payment commifments, or hat in order i meat them, it may
have o raisa lunds on anerous lerms or damage ils image and reputation

Operating risk: tis is a risk arizng from human emrors, system erors, frawd or external events which may damage the Bank's reputation, may have
Iegal or reguiatory mplicabons, o cause financial losses

Thes note includes mfomabon on the Bank's exposure o these nsks and on its objectves, poloes, and processes involed in ther measuwrament and
management.

Risk management structure

The Board &= responsible for the establishment and monifoing of the Bank's risk management struclure, fior which perpose it has an on-ine corporate
govesnance sysham with the inbemational recormmendations and rands, adapled 1o Chilean requiatory condibions and abie 1o apply the most advanced practices
in the markels in which the Bank operates. To optimize the performance of this funcion, the Board has established the Assets and Lisbilites Committee
{ALCOT), whose pancipal task 5 lo assist in camying oult il funclions refabing to oversight and management of the Bank's risks. To complement the ALCO in the
risk management unction, the Board also has Bree key committees: he Markets Committes (FCOM " the acronym in Spanish) the Executive Gredt Commities
{CEC,” the acromym in Spanish) and the Audit Committee ("CDWA.” the ecronym in Spanish). Each of these commitiees is compesed of dineclors and executive
members of the Bank's management

The ALCO is responsibie for formulating the Bank's risk management policies according o guidelnes of the Board, these of Santander Spain's Global Risk
Department, and the reguialory requirements adopled by e Chilean Superintendency of Banks and Financial Insbibutions ("SBIF7). These policies have been
crealed mainly to idenbfy and analyze the risks faced by the Bank, deterrmine the risk limits and appropriate controls, and keep Frack of the risks and comply with
the fimits. The Bank's risk management policies and systems ere regularly reviewed to reflect the changes in market condiions and in products or services
offerad. Through training in and management of standards and procedures, he Bank seeks o develop a discipined and constructive confrol envranment in
which all its ampioyess understand thesr funclions and obligations.

To carry out its dubes, the ALCO works directly with the Bank's control and msk departments, whose pint objectives include the following

evaluale risks whose magnitude might threaten e Bank's scivency or which might pofentially pose signiicant risks to its opera$ions or repuiation;
ansure that the Bank = equipped wath the means, systems, siuctures, and resources oonsistant with best practices, which enable the implameniation
of the rigk management straleqgy,

- ensure the integralion, conlrol, and management of all the Bank’s risks;

- apply homogeneous rsk principles, policies and melrcs throughout the Bank and its businesses,

= develop and implement a risk management model sl the bank. in order for risk exposure o be adequalely integrated info fe different decision
making processes,
mnuﬁ rigk concenTations and mitigation altematives, moniter he macroeconamic and compebtive environment, quantifying sensithities and the
foreseeable impact of different scenanios on sk positioning; and
canry out the management of structural liquidity, inferest rate and exchange rate risks, &5 well as those ansing from the Bank's own resource bass,
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To achieve the aforementioned objectives, the Bank (its managament and the ALCC) perfarms a vanety of activities relating o risk management, including the
Tollowing: calculate exposures to ek of different portiolios andior invesiments, taking into consideration mitigaling aclors (guaraniees, netting, collateral, ele ),
calculate the probabdifies of expected loss for each partiolio andlor ivesiment; assign loss faclors o the new Framsactions (rating and scoring). measure the risk
wvalues af the partiolios andlor investments based on different scenarics by means of historical simulations, specify limits for polential losses based on the
different risks incumed; determing the potential impact of the stuctural risks on the Bank's Consclidated Statements of Income; sed limits and aleris which
guaranies the Bank's iquidity, and identify and quantify the operaling risks by line of business, 50 as to fcilitale teir mifigation through comecive aclions

The CDA is mainly responsible for supenvising compliance with the Bank's risk management policies and procedures, and for reviewing e adaptation of the rigk
management Famework o the risks faced by the Bank,

Lredit risk

Credt riek: this & the rizk of one of the parties o a financial instrument failing to meet ite confractual obligatons S reasons of insolvency of inabiity of the
indrviduals or legal entites in question, causing a Enancial loss on the other party. For credi risk management purpases, the Bank consclidates all the elements
and companents of the exposure 1o credit risk (for example, indwidual aears by creddor, the innate risk of a given fine of business of industry andior
geographic risk).

Mitigation of credt! risk for loans and accounts receivabie

The Board has delegated the duty of credi risk management o the ALCO and CEC, as well a3 1o the Bank's nsk daparimants, whose roles are summarzzed
balow

Fomulation of credit poboes. by consulting with the business unds, meeling requinements of guaraniees, credit evalusafion, risk rating and submission
of reports, documentation and legal procedures in compliance with the regulatory, legal and inkernal requirements of the Bank.

Establish struchire for the authorizaion of approval and renewal of credd appliications The Bank structures credit risk levels by assigning
concentration fimits on such risk for individual bormowers, indusky segments, and counfries. The autherization imits are assagned bo the respective
officars of the business unil (commercial, consumer, PYME), in order fo be permanently monilored by Management In addiion, hesa limils are
periodically reviewed. The risk evaluation bearms at the branch bevel regularty interact with cuslomers, bul for large-scale operations, the sk leams of
fhe parent and even the CEC work directly wath fhe cusiomers in the evaluation of credit risk and preparation of the loan applications. Even Banco
Santander — Spain participates i the approval process of the most important loans, swch as those made 1o customers or economic groups with
amounis of dabl that excasds USE40 million.

Limit concentrations of expasure ko customers of counferparts, in geographes areas o indusiries (lor accounts recanable or loans), and by issuer,
creditrating, and liquidity (for imvestments)

Develop and maintain the Bank's credit risk classifications, for the purposa of dassitying risks accordng o the degree of exposure 1o fnancal loss
that i faced by the respective financial instruments, with e aim of focusing risk management specifically on the associated risks.

evaluale credit sk, Management's risk divisions are largely independent of e Bank's commercial division and evaluale all credit nshs in
excess of the specibed limits, prier (o lcan approvals for cuslomers or prior fo the acquisition of specific invesiments. Renewals and revisions of loans
are subject io smilar processes

While prepaning a loan application for a corporate cuglomer, the Bank verifies muliiple paramelers such as ablity fo sendce debl (generally including
fhe projected cash flows), the customer’s financial history, andor projections for the econamic seclor or indusiny in which it operates. The risk divisson
= closety mvohved in thes process. Al apphcations contain an analyss of the customen's stengths and weaknesses, a rating, and a recommendation
Crexit limits are not dedermined on the basis of the customers’ cutstanding loan balances, but on the financial group's direct and indirect credil risk
For example, a corporalion would be evaluated jointhy with its subsidianies and affilates

Consumer Ioans are evaluated and approved by ther respective sk dwisions (individual, PYME), and the evaluation process is based on an
evaluation sysiem known as Gama (Claw) (Banco Santander) and Syseva (Santandar Banefe) Bath of these processes are decentalized,
aulormated, and based on a scoring system that includes the credit sk policies adopted by the Bank's Board. The loan application process is based
on & collection of informafion ko determine the customer's financial condition and ability fo pay. The parameders used io evaluale an applicant's credi
risk include several variables, such as income level, duration of current employment, indeblednass and oradit bureau reports.
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Proside advice, orientafion and specialized knowledge & the business unils in order io promote the Bank's best practices in credit risk management

Mitigation of credit sk of ather financial assels (investments, derivatives, commitments)

A5 a part of the acquisition process of financial investments and financial instuments, the Bank examines the probabilty of uncollectibility from issuers or
counierparties, using inlernal and extemal evaluations, such as risk evalualors that are independent from the Bank. The Bank is also govemned by a sinct and
consanvative policy which ensures that the ssuers of its investments and the counterparties in derhative ransactions are highly reputabla.

In addition, the Bank cperates with a variety of mstuments which mply credi sk, but are not reflected in the Consobdated Statement of Financial Posibon, such
a3 guaraniess and bonds, documentary lethers of credi, performance bends, and cornmilments 1o grant loans.

Tha guaranbees and bands mply an irewacabla payment cbigation. § a guaranbeed custormer fils io meat their obbgations 1o thind parties sacured by the Bank,
the Bank will make he relevant payments, henoe, these ransacbons mply the same credd nisk exposune a3 an ondinary loan

Documentary betlers of credit are commitments documeanied by ta Bank on behall of customers, which are acured by the shipped merchandise to which they
relate, and hence, have a lower risk than drect indebledness. Pesformance bonds are contingent commiiments which become enforceablie only if the customer
fads 1o camy out the work agreed upon with a third party and sacured by such performance bands

For commitments o grant loans, the Bank is potentially exposed io losses in an amount equivalent io the iotal unusad amount of the commitment. However, the
probable amount of loss s amaller than the total unusad amount of the commitment. The Bank monsors the maturibes of lines of credit becauwse long-tarm
commilments generally pose a higher credit sk han shor-temn commitments

Maximum credif dsk exposire

For financial assats recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the credi risk exposure is equal to their book value, For the financial
guaraniess granted, the maximum cradd risk exposure | the masimum amount the Bank would hawve & pay If the guaranies were enforced

Below is the dsinbubon by financial asset of the Bank's maximum exposure to credil sk a5 of Decamber 31, 2010 and 2009, without deduction of collateral or
cradit improvements recanved

As of December 31,
010 2009
Amount of Amgunt of
auposune exposune
Note MGChS MCh$

Cash and deposils in banks 5 1.762.108 1043458
Unsettled transactions 5 374,358 458,134
Trading invesiments § IT9ET0 TE8.530
Investments under resale agreements 7 170,985 14020
Financal derivative contracts ] 1624378 1,363 876
Loans and accounts receivable from custorners and interbank loans: Gand 10 15,284,950 13401749
Available for sale imvesiments 12 1473980 1,830,000
Of-balance commitmants:

Letiers of credit issued bl 200532 155956
Confinmed foresgn letters of credit 24 85,735 35818
Pledyes and ofier commercial comemiiments 4 38751 655,780
FAvailable credit lines 24 4832359 4615787
Plediges and ather commercal commitments 24 166,550 168931
Other rrevecable credit commitments 24 120428 -
Totals 27392926 25,583,140

128




BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES
MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KOTE 40 - RISK MANAGEMENT, continued:

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Credd quality = classified as described in the SBIF's Compandium of Standards as of Decamber 31, 2010 and 2009

& Santander

Az of December 31, 2010

Commercial Consumer Mortgage
leans loans loans Total

Category MCh$ MChE MChS MChS %
A - 2323508 2,323 %08 148
Al 27162 - 27,762 ]
A2 3,186,711 4288503 7475674 475
Al 2,537 455 - 238870 3,174 425 202
B 1,615,180 174,586 12596 1.807.764 15
B- - 75655 - 75,655 05
c - TTB12 - 77812 0.5
= 245012 - 20570 265,582 17
c2 B5442 0554 84,008 1
c3 63232 G701 58,433 04
c4 12437 224 83671 05
D - 43429 - 43,429 0.3
D1 BG, 318 - 26,199 112,817 07
02 55746 28408 84,154 05

Totals 8,375,355 2,700,180 4,651,137 15,727,282 100.0

As of D ber 31, 2009
Commercial Consumer Mortgage
loans loans loans Total
Category MChS MChS MChS MChE %

A 1,855,241 1,885,241 138
Al . !
AZ 3,187 959 3.B0B, 195 6,906,154 509
A 2998955 . 223,528 3222 884 235
B 501,080 165,181 10,481 776,742 55
B- - 69,150 - 69,150 0.5
c - 74,735 3635 783N 06
(¥ ] 204732 . 18,101 242 833 16
c2 07,885 B,640 106,525 0E
c3 E0.6T9 2012 B259 04
C4 56,085 - 27204 B4.279 08
D - 3742 - B4z 0.3
b B0.574 . 42438 183,02 0.9
Dz 38324 - 14,328 53 552 04

Totals 7,348,174 2,244,049 4,159,053 13,751,276 100.0
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The A categories pertain 1o bormowars that pese minimal oedit risk

The B calegories pertain to borrowers: that pose a cerlein creditrigk, having minimal inability to pay and a low vulnerability i defauling on their financial
obligations. The categary includes borrowers whase abiltty 1o pay depends an favorable business and economic cond®ans, [t may indude hose who
have past-due confractual inferests or princigal payments but such impairment is not deemed inappropriate by he Bank. based on the level of available
security inferest andior the stage of collection of the amounts owed 1o the Bank,

The C and D categories pertain io impared loans for which the Benk determines that the borrower will not be able o raise all the principal and intenest
owed pursuant 1o the terms of the loan agreement

See Mole 32 for @ defad of the Bank's mpaired loans and their respectve allwances. See also Note 21 for a detail of the maturibes of the Bank's fnancial

assels.

Impairment of other financial instruments

A5 of December 31, 2010 and 2000, the Bank had no sgnificant impairment of its financial assets other than loans and acoounts recedable
Security interests and credit improvements

The maxmum exposure o credit ek & reduced in some cases by securily interests, credil improvements, and other acticns which mitigate the Bank's
exposure, Based on the foregaing, the creation of sacurity inferests are a necessary bul nol a sulficient condibon for granting a ban; accordingly, he Bank's
acceptance of risks requines the verificalion of other variables and parameters, such as the ability fo pay or generate lunds in onder 1o miigate the risk being
taken on.

The procedures for management and valuation of sacurity inferests are reflacted in the infernal risk management policy. The basic principles for credit risk
management, which includes management of the secunty inlerests recened in ransactors with customers, ane sal forth in hese policies. In thes respect, the
risk, mansgement model includes a determination of he exislence of appropriste and sufficient securily interests that enable recovery of the lkan i the
bomower's crcumstances do ot allow it lo meet its obligatons

The procedures used for the valuabion of security interests conform b best markel practices, which provide for the use of appraisals for morigage secunbes,
market prices for stock sacubes, value of the interest for nvesiment funds, eic. All coBateral recaived must be propary documented and regetered in the

appropriate reqgisty, and must be spproved by the Bank's legal dnisions.

The Bank also has rating tools which allow it o rank the credit quality of transactions or customens. In order to analyze the manner in which ithis probability
fuctuates, the Bank has historical databases which slore intemnally generated information. The rating lools wary acconding to the segment ko which the customer
being anslyzed belongs (commercasl, consumer, PYME. ).

Badow i the datail of security interests, collateral or credi! improvements provided o e Bank as of Decamber 31, 2010 and 2009

200 2009
MChS MChS
Monimpaired financial assets:
Prepertiesimorigages 1.571,546 6,778,005
Investments and offwers 435347 32435
Impaired financial assets:
Propertiesimortgages 406 442 517,405
Imvesiments and others 235,841 648
Totals 8,653,228 7,644 357

iquidity ris

Liquidity risk & the rsk hat the Bank may have difficulty meeting the obligatons associated with its financial obligations
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The Bank is canfinually expasad to demands for cash arising from multiple bankang transactions such as payments fom checking accounts, payments on time
depasits, payments of guarantees, disbursements for derivative fransactions, ele. As is inharent in banking activity, the Bank does nat hold encugh cash 1o
cover the balance of these posiions, snce experience shows hat only @ minimal amount of these funds will be withdrawn, which amount can be foresesn with &
high degree of certainty

The Bank's approach to bquidity management = 1o make &s certain &5 possible that it abways has encugh Bquidity 1o meet iz obligations when they mature,
under bofh normal croumstances and condibions of stess, withaul incurring unaccepiable losses or running the risk of damage to e Bank's repulation. The
Beard saks limils at a rmanimum portion of rmaluning lunds avaiiable lo make these payments, and over a mnimum level of interbank Fansactions and alher lban
Tacilbes which must be available to cover unexpected levels of demand, which is pericdically reviewed, Moreover, the Bank must comply with regulatory mits
imposed by the SBIF for term asymmetries.

Thesa limits affect the asymmefries of future fows of income and outiays on an individual basis. They are:

i} asymmelries of up to 30 days for all cumencies, up fo e amound of basic capdal,
() asymmelries of up o 30 days for foraign cumencies, up io he amount of basic capial, and
(i)  asymmelries of up to 30 days for all cumencies, hwce the basic capital

The freasury department receves mfarmaton from 2l the busness units on the liquidty profile of ther fimancial assats and labikbes, as wel as details of other
expecled cash flows stemming fom future businesses. Basad on thal information, the reasury depariment maintaing a partfobia of liquid shorl-term assets,
comprised mainly of liquid mvestments, loans and advances fo ofther banks, to make sure fe Bank has sufficient liquidity. The business units” iquidity needs are
mef through short-ferm ransfers from the freasury department bo cover any short-term fluctuations and lng-erm financing o address all the structural bquidity
requirements:

The Bank maonilors it bauidity pesition every day, delermining the huture fows of ik ouffays and revenues. In addibon, siress lesks are parformed at the end of
each menth, for which a variety of scenarics encompassing bot nommal market condibons and conditions of market fluctuation ere used The byuidity policy and
procedures are subject o review and approval by the Bank's Board. Periodic reports ane generaled, providing a detail of the Bquidity posibion of the Bank and its
Afisates, including amy exceptions and the: cormeciive measures adopled, which ane regularty submitied to the ALCO or review.

The Bank relies on customear (retail} and insttubonal deposits, cbligabons b banks, debl instruments, and tme deposits as its main sources of funding. Although
mast cbligations fo banks, dabl instumeants and time depasits have malunbes of more than one year, customer [retal) and institulional daposits tend to have
shorter rmabunities and a large proporiion of them are payable within 90 days. The short-term nature of these depesits increases the Bank's Bquadity risk, and
hence, the Bank aclively manages this risk firough confnual supenvision of the market frends and price management

Exposure to liguidity risk

One of the key measures used by the bank ko manage bquidity resk &= the rabo of nel iqud assets ko custamen deposits, For this purposa, the net liquid assels
must include cash, cash equivalents and debt securiies for which fere is an aclive and liquid market, minus bank deposiis, fved-mcome securilies issued,
lans and other commitmants maturing within the next monfh. A simlar but nol idenfical measure is usad o determing the bank's compliance with the liquidity
imit estabkshed by the SBIF in which the Bank delermines ®we asymmety bebtween its nights and obligaions based on maburity according fo estmated
behaviour. The ratics asymmeries at 30 days with regands 1o capital and at 90 days with regards twice the capital are shown in the teble below:
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BANCO SANTANDER CHILE AND SUBSIDIARIES

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

& Santander

As of December 31,
210 2008
% k]
3 days n 20
30 days forsign currency 14 &}
80 days 43 =]

Hext, i e breakdown by the maturity of the assets and liabiibes balances of the Bank ss of December 31, 2010 and 2008, considering aiso those off-batance

commitments
Up ta 1 Bobweon | and  Between 3 Batwesn 1 Mare than 5
As of December 31, 2010 Demand month 3 morths and 12 and 5 yoars years Total
months

MChS MChS MChS MCh$ MChS MChE MCh§
Maturity of assets (Note 21) 74T 54 2.247 897 1,350,519 3017 9E7 6205570 5843374 21512861
Maturity of Eabilfies (Mate 21) (4580318 (2,538,345 (2.189.,575) 4301503 (3565048 ([2221564) [10675254)
Net maturity (1.832,785) (378.448) (839,056) (1,373,535) 2639 622 3721810 1,837 607
Otf-balance commitments:
Pladges and other commercial commitments (8,131) (BSATD) (12 570) (62,179) {166,550)
Confirmad foreign ketters of cradit (8.912) (38,003) {1.011) (37,723) . (85,734)
Letters of credit issued (63,368) (99.828) (10,779) [¥5,537) (20 209,532)
Guaranieas (53, 165) (08, 144) (248 .869) {465,532 (32 841) (B08,751)
Net maturity, including commitments (1es2785)  (S10024)  (1160791) (1646385  2O36EH 3856849 477,035

Upto1 Between 1 and Between 3 Betwesn 1 Mare than 5
As of December 31, 2009 Demand manth Fmonths amd 12 and § years WERT Total
months

MCh§ MCh§ MCh$ MChE MChS MCh§ MCh%
Maturity of assets (Nofe 21) 3450409 1,236,010 1.083 804 3205387 5701393 5612382 20,289,385
Maturity of kabiles (MNate 21) (3043847 (2.890.270) (2,665,281) (4214749) (3552474) [(1485527) (1B556153)
Met maturity (498.438) (1463 269) (15M147T)  (1009.362)  214801% 4126860 1,753,242
Off-balance commitments:
Guaraniees (23.412) (B5,662) (43.378) (16,322) (127) (169,831}
Confirmed foraign letters of cradi 8.851) (6.935) {17.453) {2,579 - (35,618)
Letiers of credit issued (49,347} (82,458 (16.68%) {7435) [155,955)
Pledges and other commercial commilments (76,173} (02 40) (287,001) (193 458) {B,739) 855, 780)
Net maturity, including commitments (496,438)  [1,621,052) (1,640001) (1373878 1929125 4,120,003 15,758

The above tebles show the undiscounted cash flows of the Bank's finencial ezsets and lisbilites basad on ther estmaled maturibes. The Bank's expected cash
fows from these instuments can divarga considerably fom this analysis. For example, demand daposits are axpecled to remain stablis of grow, while not all off-
balance loan commitments that have been arranged are expecied to be executed. In addition, the feregeing detail excludes dsposable lines of credit, since they

do not have conlractually defined maturities
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Market risk

Market risk arises as a consaguence of activity in the markets, trough financial instuments whose valee can be affecied by fluchuiations in market conditicns,
reflected in changes in the diferent assets and financial risk faclors. The risk can be mitigated through hedges using other products [assalsfabdites or
desivaltives). or by canceliing the cpen fransactionposition. The purposa of market risk management is o manage and control exposwre o market risk, keeping it
wathin accepied paramelers

There are four major rick factors that affect market prices: interest rales, exchange rales, prces and inflabion, In addibon and for certain postons, it is necessary
o consider ofher risks as well, such as spread risk, basa risk, commodity risk, velatility or comelalion sk

Market risk management

The Bank's internal management 1o measure market risk is based mainly on the procedures and standargs of Santander Spain, which are in fum based on
analysis of management in three principal components:

- frading portiolio;
- domeshic financial management portiobo;
- foreagn financial management partioho

The frading portfobo = comprisad mainly of invesiments valued at far value and free of any restrichon on thair mmadiale sale, which are often bought and sold
by the Bank with the intent of selling them in the shart term in order to benedit frem short-term price lucluations. The firancial management porticlics include all
the fnancizl investments ol considered a part of frading portfolio

The ALGO has the overall responsibility for marked risk. The Bank’s risifinance depariment is responsible for formutating detailed management policies and
applying them to the Bank's operations, in conformily with the guidesines adopled by the ALCO and the Global Risk Department of Banco Santander — Spain

The depariment’s funchons in connecticn with financial management peetiobos include he follkwing

{) apply the "Value at Risk™ (VaR) techniques o measure interest rate nisk,

(i) adjust e Fading porticlics to market and measure the daily income and loss from commercial activities.

(i) compare the real VaR with the established limits,

(v} establish procedures to prevent losses in excess of predetermined limits, and

(v} fumish inferrnation en the radng actviies i the ALCO, olher members of the Bank's management and the Global Risk Department of Sanlander - Spain,

The depariment’s funchons in connection with financial management portiolos include he follawing

() perfom sensibwly simulaions (a5 explained below) o measwe inlerest rate risk for achvibes denominated in local cumency and the polential loss
lorecasted by these simulations, and
(i) provide daily reports hereon o the ALCO, ofter membsers of the Bank’s management. and the Global Risk Department of Santander - Spain

Market risk - frading portiolio

The Bank applies VaR mathodalogies to measure the market rrsk of i trading portfolio. The Bank has a consalidated commercial pasifion comprised of foced-
income invesiments, foreign cumency bading, and a minimal posiBion in equity secunties. This porticlio |s comprised mestly of Chilean Cenfral Bank Bonds,
meargage bonds and locally issued, low-risk corporate bonds. Al the end of the year, the trading portfolo included no equily partfolio securities,

For the Bank, the VaR estimale is made under the historical simutation methodology, which consists of analyzing the behavior of the income and losses thal
would have ocourred in the current partiolio if the market conditions fior a given histonical period had been applicable, in order fo infer the maximum loss on the
basis of that informabon with a given level of confidence. The mathodalagy has the advantage of pracisaly raflecting the histoncal distibution of e market
variables and nol requiring any essumpbons regardng the distibution of specific probabliies. All e VaR measures are intended o determing the disfribubion
funclan for a change in the value of a given partfolio, and once thal destibution i known, lo calculale the percentile relaled fo the necessary level of confidence,
which will be equal io the value at risk by virtue of those parameters. As calcutated by the Bank, the VaR is an estmate of the maximum expecied loss of markel
value for @ given portiolio over a 1-day horizon, with 8 99.00% confidence level. It is the maximem 1-day loss fat the Bank could expect to experience in a given
portiokio, with & 89 00% confidance lewel In other words, it ks the loss that the Bank would expect to axperience only 1.0% of the tme_ The VaR provides a single
estrmale of market risk which iz not comparable from one market risk to another. Felurns ane calculated through ®e use of 8 2-year ime window or at beast 520
data points obtained since the kst reference date for calculation of the VaRt gaing backwand in tme
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Tha Bank wses the VaR estimales to provide a waming when the statisbcally expected lossas in its rading portiolio would axceed prudent levelds, and hance,
there are certain predetermined hmits.

Limitabens of the VaR mode|

VWhen applying & calculaion methodology, no esswumplons are made reganding the probabdity distibution of the changes in the risk fBactors; the historically
observed changes are ussd for the nsk factons on which each pasiion in the portioha will be valued

It & necessary to define a valuabon function fifx) for each instrument |, preferably the same one used to calculate the market value and income of the daily
position. This valuabon funcon will be applied in each scenana io generabe simutabed prices for all the instruments in each scenario

In addition, the VaR methadology should be interpreted taking indo consideration the following limstabons

Changes in market rates and prices may not be indepandant and idengcally distributed random veanables, and may not have a nomal distibution. In
particular, the assumplion of normal destnbution may undefestmalta the probability of exirems markel movernants,

The hislorical data used by e Bank may nol provide the best estimate of the joint disiribuBion of changes in the risk faclors in the fulure, and any
modification of the data may be nadequate. in parbcular, the wse of historical data may fail o capture the risk of polential extreme and adverse market
fluchuations, regardiess of the time period used,

- A f-day time horizon may not fully capture the market risk posisons which cannat be liquidated o coverad in a single day. it would not be possibie fo
liguidate or cover all fhe positions in a single day;

- The VaR is calculated at the dose of business, but rading positicns may change substantially in the course of the Fading day;

- The use of a 555 level of confidence doas nat take account of, of make any statement aboud, the losses that could occur outside of that degres of
confidence; and

- A model such as the VaR does not capture al the complex afects of fe risk factors over the value of fhe pasitions o portfolics, and accordingly, it could
underesimate pofential losses

Al no time @ 2010 and 2009 did the Bank exceed fe VaR limits in connection with the three components which comprise e frading poriiolia: fwad-income
vesiments, vanable-income irvestments and foresgn cumrency invesiments. The high, low, and average levels for each component and for each year were as
folows:

2010 2009
VAR P a
Consolidated;
High 11.18 9.7
Low 353 424
HAversge 725 5.88
Fixed-income investmaents:
High 1137 9,14
Lowi 363 4
Average T S.87
Variable-income investments
High 0.18 165
Low 002 0,04
HAverage .08 047
Foreign currency investments
High im T2
Low .43 066
Average 164 231
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KOTE 40 - RISK MANAGEMENT, continued:
Markat risk - local and foreign financial management

Thea Bank's financial management porffolis includes most of the Bank’s non-reding essets and liabilities, including fe credilioan portiolie. For these portiolios,
mvesiment and financng decsians ane stongly influenced by the Bank's commercal sratages

The Bank uses a sensifvily analysis bo measure the market nsk of local and foreign cumency (not included in ®e ading portfolio). The Bank performs a
simulation of scenarios, which is calculated as the difference betwean the present value of the cash flaws in the chosen scenario (a curve with a paraliel
miawvement of 100 bp in &l its segments) and ther value in the base scenario (curent markat). AN the inflation-indexed local cumency (UF) positions are adusted
by a sensitvily Bactor of 0,57, which represents a 57 basis point change in the rale curve for the real rates and a 100 basss point change for the nominal rates
The sarme sconanio s performed for the net forelgn curency positions and e inberest rates in US dollars. The Bank has s establshed limils regarding the
maximum kss which thess interest rale movements may impose on the capital and ned financial income budgeted for the year.

Limitaticas of the sensitity models

The mest mportant assumplon i the use of a 100 bases ponl change in the yield curve (57 basis points for the real rales). The Bank uses a 100 bass point
change because sudden changes of hat magnitude are conssdered realistic. The Global Risk Department of Santander Spain has estabshed comparable imits
by couniry, to be able to compare, menilor and consolidate the marked risk by country in a realistic and orderly way

In addiition, the sensitivity simuiation methodology should be interpreted taking into consideration the following imitabons:

The smulation of scenarics assumes that the volumes remain in the Bank's Consobdated Staterments of Financial Pesiton and are always renewed al
maturity, theretry amitting the fact that certain credit risk and prepayment consideratans may affect the maturity of certain positions.

This model assumes an identical change along the enfire length of the yield curve and takes no account of the different movements for different matuities
The model lakes no account of the sanstvily of volumes which results fom inlerest rate changes.

The limits to losses of budgeted financial income are caloulated basad on the fnancial income foreseen for the year, which may not be actualy earned,
meaning that the real percentage of inancial income al risk may be higher than the expected one

Market risk - Fmancal mana ent = Decamber 31, 2010 and 2009
2010 2008
Effect on Effect on
financial Effect on capital financial Effect on
income income capital
Financial management portiolio - local currency (MChS)
Loss limit 37,200 152,300 37,284 127,000
High 16,845 126,306 1771 123834
Low 2074 B6ST3 1,504 85,781
Buerags 10317 108,133 6404 107,235
Financial management portfolie - foreign currency (in millions of SUS)
Less; lirrit 460 4.0 460 a0
High 258 1.5 164 173
Low 04 03 12 15
Average 146 31 i3] 114
Financial management partfolic - consolidated (in MChE)
Loss limit 37 200 152,300 37 264 127,000
High 20128 126,308 17,724 123,836
Low 010 B6STS 1939 96,280
Bverags 12993 109,156 E.188 107 495
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KOTE 40 - RISK MANAGEMENT, continued:
Oparating risk

Cperating risk & the msk of direct or indrect losses stemming Fom a wide vanely of causes relaled to the Bank's processes, personnel, lechnolagy and
nfrastructune, as well as exlemal faclors ather than credd, markel, or liguidty, such as these refated 1o begal or regulatory requirements. Operaling risks arise
From all the Bank's operations

Th Bank's chjective & I manage eperating risk in order to miligate aconomic losses and damage o he Bank's reputalion through a fledble internal control
shruchre

The Bank's management ts mainly responaible lor the development and application of controls (o address cperatng risks. This responsibility & supported by the
global development of the Bank's operating risk manesgement siandards in e following areas:

Fisquirements for adequate seqregation of dubies, including independent authorization of transactions
Reguirements for reconciliation and supervision of ransactions

Complmncs with 1he applicable legal and requiatory requiremants

Decumentation of cenlrols and procedures

Reguirements for periodic evaluation of applicable operaing risks and improvement of the controls and procedures o address the risks that are
icdentified

Regquirements for disclosure of operating losses and the proposed comective measures
Development of coningency plans

Training and professional development

Adoption of ethical business standards

Reducion or mitigation of resks, including acquisition of insurance policies if they are effectve

Compliance with the Bank's standards is supported by a program of periodic reviews conducted by the Bank's intamal sudit unit, whosa results are intemally
submitied Iy the management of te business uni that was examined and to the COA

Concentration of risk

The Bank operates mainly i Chile, so most of its finencial insiruments ane conceniraled in fhat country. See Nefe 10 of the inancial statements for a datail of
the concentration of the Bank's lnans and accounts receivabia by ndusty

HROTE 41 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

Az of January 11, 2011 the Bank igsued 2 Soating rate 3 month LIBOR note for LSS 500,000,000 wath a 5 year maturity, inferest will be paid quarierly starting on
Hpeil 19, 2011,

Between January 1, 2011 and the dale on which these financial stalements were ssued (January 24, 2011}, no other events have occurred which could
significaniy affect ther interpretation

FELIPE CONTRERAS FAJARDOD CLAUDID MELANDRI HINOJOSA
Accounting Manager Chief Executive Officer
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